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! BY-LAW NO. 8892 :]

A BY-LAW TO AMEND BY-LAW NO. 8497, ,.'A BY-LAW TO DESIGNATE CERTAIN

PROPERTIES WITHIN THE MUNICIPALITY TO BE OF HISTORIC OR ARCHITECTURAL

VALUE OR INTEREST" (EXPAND REASONS FOR DESIGNATION)
P
PASSED: ~August 16th, 1976.

. The Council of the Corporation of the City of Kingston enacts as-
follows:

1. By-law No. 8497, "A By-Law to Designate Certain Properties Within
the Municipality to be of Historic or Architectural Value or Interest', is
hereby amended by expanding the reasons for designation as set forth on the
attached Schedule "A".

This by-law shall come into force and take effect on its passing.

GIVEN THREE READINGS AND FINALLY PASSED the 16th day ¢' August, 1976.

L/v

CLERK’COMP ROLLER : MAYOR.
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’ (z;’ ST. GEORGE'S CATHEDRAL BLOCK (cont'd)

~2 =
o

p// (a) ST. GEORGE'S CATHEDRAL - King Street East at Johnson Street

Built: Begun in 1825; enlarged in 1840-1848; enlarged in 1891;
restored and added to in 1899-1901

Architects: 1825 T Rogers
1891, 1899 Joseph Power

Description: All and singular that certain parcel or tract of
land and premises situate, lying and being in the |
City of Kingston and County of Frontenac, and being
more particularly described as Lots 122, 139, 142
and Part of Lots 159 and 162, Original Survey, as
described in Instrument #15538.

Owner: Incumbent Dean of Ontario, Rector of St. George's
Cathedral Church at Kingston and Church Wardens for the
time being of the said Church.

Reason for Designation: Architecturally, St. George's is
reminiscent of Sir Christopher Wren's London
churches. 1In 1862 it became the seat of the first
Bishop of Ontario.

®) @) ST. GEORGE'S CHURCH HALL - Wellington Street between
Johnson and Clarence Streets

- Description: All and singular that certain parcel or
tract of land and premises situate, lying
and being in the City of Kingston and County
of Frontenac, and being more particularly
described as Part of Lots 162 and 159,
Original Survey, as described in Instrument
#15538.

Owner: Incumbent Dean of Ontario, Rector of St. George's
Cathedral Church at Kingston and Church Wardens
for the time being of the said Church.

(i1) SEXTON'S HOUSE - Wellington Street between Johnson and
. Clarence Streets

Description: All and singular that certain parcel or

tract of land and premises situate, lying
and being in the City of Kingston and County ;
of Frontenac, and being more particularly
described as Part of Lots 159 and 139,
Original Survey, as described in Instrument
#15538.

Owner: Incumbent Dean of Ontario, Rector of St. George's ;
Cathedral Church at Kingston and Church Wardens
for the time being of the said Church.

]

(iii) CARETAKER'S COTTAGE — Clarence Street between Wellington
: and King Streets

Description: All and singular that certain parcel or i
tract of land and premises situate, lying
and being in the City of Kingston and County
of Frontenac, and being more particularly
described as Lots 160 and 161, Original
Survey, as described in Instrument #523.

Owner: ' ‘Her Majesty The -Queen, as Represented by The
Minister of Public Works, Canada. -

Reason for Designation: All of Kingston limestone, contribute to
the variety of scale (e.g. the modest Caretaker's
Cottage) and of design (e.g. the Gothic revival
style of the Church Hall) in the Cathedral Block.
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ST. GEORGE'S CATHEDRAL BLOCK (cont'd)

(c)

(1)  CUSTOMS HOUSE 294 King Street East
Built: 1856-58

Description: All and singular that certain parcel or tract
of land and premises situate, lying and heing
in the City of Kingston and County of
Frontenac, and being more particularly
described as Lot 121 and Part of Lot 141,
;riginal Survey, as described in Instrument

523.

Owner: Her Majesty The Queen, as Represented by The i
Minister of Public Works, Canada.

(ii) OLD POST OFFICE - 86 Clarence Street

Built: 1856-58 ' !

Architect: Hopkins, Lawford and Nelson, Montreal. 3

Description: All and singular that certain parcel or (ract -
of land and premises situate, lving and being |
in the City of Kingston and County of i
Frontenac, and being more particularly.
described as Lots 160 and 161, Original Survey,
as described in Instrument #523.

i
. |
Owner: Her Majesty The Queen, as Represented by The I
Minister of Public Works, Canada. ' |

i

Reason for Designation: Both of these buildings were erected by f
the Government of the United Canadas to house i
government services. They are very fine examp'es
of mid-nineteenth century architecture.

Reason for-Designation: These limestone buildings are not only

significant in themselves, architecturally, they arc

I
|
FRONTENAC COUNTY COURT HOUSE, REGISTRY OFFICE AND GAOLER'S RESIDENCE f
i
i
i
!

(a)

(b)

also valuable as a group which shows structures of
varying sizes, design and uses as a harmonious wholc.

FRONTENAC COUNTY COURT HOUSE - Court Street

Built: 1855-58, Rebuilt 1875

Architects: 1855 E. Horsey
1875 Joseph Power

Description: All and singular that certain parcel or tract of i
land and premises situate, lying and being in the l
City of Kingston and County of Frontenac, and bcing%
more particularly described as Part of Farm Lot 25,
Concession 1, City of Ringston, as described in '
Instruments #49344 and #49345. !

Owner: The Corporation of the County of Frontenac

Reason for Designation: The Court House is an elegant monument .
to the Classic-Revival style, which was frequently |
used for public buildings in the mid-nineteenth

century.

REGISTRY OFFICE - Court and West Streets

Built: 1876

Description: All and singular that certain parcel or tract of
land and premises situate, lying and being in the

City of Kingston and County of Frontenac, and being
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(3) TFRONTENAC COUNTY COURT HOUSE, REGISTRY OFFIC

b =

AND GAOLER'S RESIDENCE (cont'd) :

(b)

(c)

REGISTRY OFFICE - Court and West Streets .(cont'd}

Description:

Owner: The Corporation of the County of Frontenac

Reason for Designation: Built in 1876, is a successful small

GAOLER'S RESIDENCE - Located Behind the Frontenac County Court

(cont'd)

more particularly described as Part of Farm Lot 25,
Concession 1, City of Kingston, as described in
Instruments #49344 and #49345.

scale adaptation of what is in most cases a much
larger structure.

Built: 1858

Architect: E. Horsey

Description:

Owner: The Corporation of the County of Frontenac

Reason for Designation: The Gaoler's: Residence is a simple but

House

All and singular that certain parcél or tract of
land and premises situate, lying and being in the
City of Kingston and County of Frontenac, and being
more particularly described as Part of Farm Lot 25,
Concession 1, City of Kingston, as described in g
Instruments #49344 and #49345. i

dignified stone structure; its plain -éxterior 'is
embellished with the sophisticated details of
quoining and semi-elliptical arched entranceways.

(4) COMMERCIAL BUILDINGS - 149-151, 155-159 Wellington Street and

(a)

(b)

155-159 Wellington Street and 82-86, 90-94 Brock Street

82-86, 90-94 Brock Street

Built: 1847

- Description:

oer: I |

149-151 Wellington Street

:All and singular that certain parcel or tract of .

1and and premises situate, lying and being in the
City of Kingston and County of Frontenac, and being
more particularly described as Part of Lot el
(School Lot) and Part of Lot 5, Plan B-28, as *
described in Instrument #248790. :

Built: 1847

Description:

Owner:

All and singular that certain parcel or tract of
land and premises situate, lying -and being in the
City of Kingston and County of Front—nac, and be%n%
more particularly described as Part of School Lot "G
according to the Original Plan of the Town of
Kingston, as described in Instrument #262965.
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(4) COMMERCIAL BUILDINGS '~ 149-151,155~159 Wellington Street and

(5)

6)

)

82-86, 90-94 Brock Street (cont'd)

Reason for Designation: This chain of stone buildings is a good and
rare example of a terraced commercial row that has lost
none of its links. It provides a living illustration
of commercial building of the mid-nineteenth century
in the heart of the City. ' '

CARTWRIGHT HOUSE - 191 King Street East
Built: 1832-33

Description: All and singular that certain parcel or tract of land
and premises situate, lying and being in the City of
Kingston and County of Frontenac, and being more
particularly described as Part of Lots 71 and 80,
Original Survey, as described in Instruments #118988
and #208710. ‘

owner: [N

Reason for Designation: This house was originally owned by one of
the most famous of Kingston's early families, the
Cartwrights. One -of the sons.who grew up in this house,
Richard John, became Minister of Finance and later
Minister of Trade and Commerce in Ottawa.

The well proportioned lines of the house give
distinction to an excellent example of-a town residence

built for a large, well-to-do family in the early 1800's.

GILDERSLEEVE HOUSE - 264 King Street East

Built: 1825

Description: All and singular that certain parcel or trdct of land
and premises situate, lying and being in the City of
Kingston and County of Frontenac, and be:.ng more
particularly described as Part of Lots 123 and 138,
Original Survey, as described in Instrument #235474.

omer:  [INEG——————

Reason for Designation:. This house was built by a shipwright and
_ shipping line owner, Henry Gildersleeve. His family
name, one of the most important in Kingston's history,
is associated with the development of steam navigation
on Lake Ontario. The stone house is a fine example of
a town residence built in the Loyalist style.

ROSEMOUNT APARTMENTS - 46 Sydenham Street
Built: 1849-50

Architect: William Coverdale

Description: All and singular that ¢ertain patcel or tract of land’
and premises situate, lying and being in the City of
Kingston and County of Frontenac, and being more
particularly described as Lots 35, 36, 37, 49, 50 and
51, Plan B-27, as described in Instrument #255812.

Owner: Rosemount Properties Ltd.

Reason for Designation: This stone house was built for E. H. Hardy,
a dry goods. merchant. The building has two unusual
features: its blend of Regency elements with the style
of a Tuscan villa, and the liberal use of wood to accent
the architectural details and to add lighiness to the

building.




(8) 149 AND 151 EARL STREET

(a) 149 EARL STREET

Built: 1873-74

Description: All and singular that certain parcel or tract of i
land and premises situate, lying and being in the
City of Kingston and County of Frontenac, and being
more particularly described as Part of Lots 39 and
47, Plan B-27, as described in Instrument #96796.

ower: | NEENENEEE

(b) 151 EARL STREET

Built: 1873-74

Description: All and singular that certain parcel or tract of i
land and premises situate, lying and being in the i
City of Kingston and County of Frontenac, and beingl
more particularly described as Part of Lots 39 and
47, Plan B-27, as described in Instrument #136703.

omer: [N

Reason for Designation: This stone double house, built for R. and J.
Gardiner, merchants, is a grand example of the Victorian
aversion for plain, straight lines.

The facade has a mixture of pitturesque bay
windows, French mansard roof and a neo-classical entranceé-
way consisting of Corinthian columns supporting an - - ;
entablature.

(9) KERR HOUSE - 155 Farl Street ' o

Built: 1848-49 / |
- / |
Architect: William Coverdale y |
Description: All and singular that certain parcel or tract of land ‘
and premises situate, lying and being in -he City of
Kingston and County of Frontenac, and being more
particularly described as Lot 46, Registered Plan B-27,
as described in Instrument #166782. :

|
|
omer: [N !
|

Reason for Designation: This house was built for S. Shaw, merchant.
This stone building, one of a group of three buildings

- :of similar design and proportions, is a substantial !

city residence of the mid-nineteenth century. -All threeg

are representative of this type, and none have suffered !

serious alterations.

(10) TFRASER HOUSE - 161 Earl Street

Built: 1847
Architect: William Coverdale

Description: All and singular that certain parcel or tract ?f land
and premises situate, lying and being in the City of
Kingston and County of Frontenac, and being more
particularly described as Lot 45,‘Plan B-27, as
described in Instrument #164564.
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(11)

(12)

(13)
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FRASER HOUSE -~ 161 Earl Street (cont'd)

ower: [N

Reason for Designation: This house was built for J. & M. Fraser; it
is the middle one in the group of three similar houses.

MACHAR HOUSE ~ 169 Earl Street

Built: 1849-50
Architect: William Coverdale

Description: All and singular that certain parcel or tract of land
and premises situate, lying and being in the City of
Kingston and County of Frontenac, and being more
particularly describéd as Part of Lots 42, 43, 44 and |

‘Lot G all as shown on Registered Plan B-27, as described|
in instrument #166237, save and:except the lands conveyei
i
I

in dinstrument #230746

Reason for Des1gnatlon' This home was built for William Grant, it is
- ‘the most westerly house in ‘the group.of-three similar
houses.

ST. ANDREW'S MANSE - Southwest Corner of Clergy and Queen Streets
Built: 1841-42
Architect: George Browne

Description: All and singular that certain parcel or tract of land
and prémises situate, lying and being in the City of
Kingston and County of Frontenac, and being more
particularly described as Lots 349 and 3,0, and Part of
Lot 351, Original Survey, as described in Instrument
#77419.

Owner: Trustees of St. Andrew's Presbyterian Church

Reason for Designation: Since the date of its construction, this
building has served as the manse for the Presbyterian
Church. The facade of this dignified Regency stone
house has been beautifully preserved.

HILLCROFT - Hillcroft Drive off Union Street

Built: 1852-54
Architect: William Coverdale

Description: All and singular that certain parcel or tract of land
and premises situate, lying and being in the City of
Ringston and County of Frontenac, and bef ng more
particularly described as Part of Lot 16, Registered
Plan 528, as described in Mortgage #152091

owmer:  [INNEEEEE

Reason for Designation: This residence was built for Francis Manning
Hill, and was once the home of Sir Alexander Campbell.
The stone building is a fine example of a country villa
built by a wealthy professional man of taste.
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(14)
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(16)

(17)
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BARBERRY COTTAGE - .102 Centre Street

Built: 1853
Architect: J. Grist

Description: All and singular that certain parcel or tract of land
and premises situate, lying and being in the City of
Kingston and County of Frontenac, and being more
particularly described as Part of West ! of Lot 22,
Concession 1, and Part of Lots 8 and 9, Plan A-7, as
described in Instrument #265850.

owmer:

Reason for Designation: Barberry Cottage was built for Mrs. H.
Cassady, widow of a Mayor of Kingston. The wood
details on this simple stone building add a touch of
lightness and elegance; the result is a successful
attempt at a. picturesque style.

68 CENTRE STREET

Built: 1836-38
Architect: possibly William Coverdale

Description: All and singular that certain parcel or tract of land
and premises situate, lying and being in the City of
Kingston and County of Frontenac, and being more
particularly described as Part of West % of Farm Lot
22, Concession 1, and kmown as Lot 3 and Part of Lot 2,
as described in Instrument #192130.

owner: [N B

Reason for Designation: An interesting contrast to the large stone
and stucco villas in the same neighbourhood, this brick
house has all the cottage charm of a modest country
villa. :

ELMHURST - 26 Centre Street

Built: 1852
Architect: William Coverdale

Description: All and singular that certain parcel or tract of land
. and premises situate, lying and being in the City of
Kingston and County of Froniernac, and being more
particularly described as Part of West % of Lot 22,
Concession 1, as described in Instrument #239915.

ower: [N

Reason for Designation: This house was built for H. Fraser, merchant. |

This large stone villa, with richly detailed woodwork,
shows -the dignity .of .a. strong Italianate influence
combined with the Regency style -

BELLEVUE HOUSE - 35 Centre Street

Built: 1838-40

Description: All and singular that certain parcel or t—act of land.
and premises situate, lying and being in the City of
Kingston and County of Frontemac, and belng more
particularly described as Part of West % of Farm Lot 22,
Concession 1, as shown on Plan 1368.
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(17) _BELLEVUE HOUSE - 35 Centre Street (cont'd) !

Owner: Indian and Northern Affairs, Department, Municipal Grant:
Division, Department of Finance.

Reason for Designation: This stucco house was built as a country
estate for the merchant C. Hales, but its most famous
occupant was Sir John A. Macdonald, who rented it tor |
a year. The building is an excellent example of a
romantic Tuscan villa.

(18) HALES COTTAGES - 311-317 King Street West

(a) 311 King Street West
Built: 1841

Description: All and singular that certain parcel or tract of
land and premises situate, lying and being in the
City of Kingston and County of Frontenac, and being
more particularly described as Part of Southwest %
of Lot 22, Comncession 1, as descrlbed in Instrument
#60754. '

owner: |
(b) 313 King Street West
Built: 1841

Description: All and singular that certain parcel or tract of
land and premises situate, lying and being in the
City of Kingston and County of Frontenac, and being
more partlcularly described as Part of Southw:st %
of Lot 22; Concession 1, as degcribed in Inst-ument|

#39692.

(c) 315 King Street West
Built: 1841

Description: All and singular that certain parcel or tract of |

- ’ land and premises..situate, lying and.being in the
City of Kingston and County of Frontenac, and belng

more particularly described as Part of Southw: st %'

of Lot 22, Concession 1, as described in Inst- ‘ument

#59905.
@ |
Built: 1841 | ) : !
Description: All and singular that certain parcel or tract of ‘
City of Kingston and County of Frontenac, and belna
more particularly described as Part of SOuthWtSt %
of Lot 22, Concession 1, as described in Inst.ument
#114351.

Reason for Designation: Five stucco cottages were built for Cha:les
Hales of Bellevue, and rented to government offici. 1ls
when Kinston was the capital of the United Provincers of
Upper and Lower Canada. This range of attached dwc1l-
ings serves as an excellent example of early, pres:ige,
row housing.
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(20)
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(22)
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ST. HELEN'S - 440 King Street West

Built: 1837-38

Description: All and singular that certain parcel or tract of land
and premises situate, lying and being in the City of
Kingston and County of Frontenac, and being more
particularly described as Part of Broken Front of Lot 21
Concession 1, as described in Instrument #33705.

Owner: Her Majesty The Queen, as Represented by The Minister of
Public Works, Canada.

Reason for Designation: T. Kirkpatrick, Mayor of Kingston, moved into]
his new country villa in September 1838 and was then
removed from office because he lived outside the town.

This stucco building, built on an unusual
plan, is a good example of an elegant country villa.

HAZELDELL ~ 225 Mowat Avenue

Built: c.1842

Description: All and singular that certain parcel or tract of land
and premises situate, lying and being in the City of
Kingston and County of Frontenac, and being more

particularly described as Part of Lots 4 and 15, Plan
589, as described in Instrument #182216. _ l

omer: [N . ;

Reason for De51gnat10n' Sir John A. Macdonald's mother resided here I

from 1860-62, and his sisters from.1860~65. This. stone!
house is a good example of the use of austere, simple !

proportions in the Regency style.

ROSELAWN - Union Street West at College Street

Built: 1841-43

Il
1
|
!
i
i
i
!
i
1
i
H
t

Architect: Wllllam Coverdale

Description: All and 31ngular that certaln parcel or tract of land
and premises situate, lying and being in the City of
Kingston and County of Frontenac, and being more
particularly described as Lots 1, 2 and 3, Registered
Plan B-1l, as described in Instrument #201868.

Owner: Queen's University at Kingston
Reason for Designation: This house was built for D. Smith, lawyer.

This- substamtial stone .villa is a combination of vernac
ular Neo-classic and Regency styles on a grand scale.

- e =

ROCKWOOD HOUSE - Kingston Psychiatric Hospital Grounds

Built: 1841
Architect: George Browne

Description: All and singular that certain parcel or tract of land
and premises situate, lying and being in the City of
Kingston and County of Frontenac, and being more |
‘particularly described as Part of Block 60, Regist.red
Plan 54, lands described in instrument #C209, save and
except lands conveyed to the City of Kingston by
Instrument #158282,

Owner: Her Majesty The Queen as Represented by The Minister of ;
Public Works, Ontario. -
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(25) 103 WELLINGTON- SlREET
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(22) ROCKWOOD HOUSE - Kingston Psychiatric Hospital Grounds (cont'd)

Reason for Designation: This house was bullt for J. S. Cartwright,

, lawyer. This imposing stucco building is one of the most

famous Regency villas in Kingston.

(23) BISHOP'S HOUSE - Cornmer of Bagot and Johnson Streets

Built: ¢.1812

Description: All and singular that certain parcel or tract of land
and premises- situate, lying and being in the City of
Kingston and County of Frontenac, and being more )
particularly described as Lot 248, Original Survey, as
described in Instrument #223810.

Owner: The Corporation of the City of Kingston

Reason for Designation: This building was first recorded in the
Ordnance Papers of 1813 as being owned by the Reverend
Macdonnell. Although this building has received some
stylistic alterations, namely a mansard roof and some
Gothic Revival trim, it is on the whole a good example
of a Classic Revival townhouse.

(24) VICTORIA AND GREY TRUST COMPANY - 168 Wellington Street

Architect: George Browne

Description: All and singular that certain parcel or tract of land
and premises situate, lying and being in the «City of
. Kingston_and, County of Frontenac, and: being more
‘particularly déscribed” s Part” of Lot 188;~0riginal-
Survey, as described in Instruments #78705 and #181985

Owner: Victoria and Grey Trust Company

Reason for Designatiomn: This commercial block is one of the two
remaining round-cornered stone buildings designed by
George Brewne in the early 1840's. The classical
symmetry of its design and the fine texture of its stone
ashlar facade have both been well preserved.

Built: c. 1837
Building: Sidney Scobell

Description: All and singular that certain parcel or tract of land
© and premises situate, lying and being in the City of
nd. being more .
Tot 164, Orlglnal
Sutvey, as ‘described in Instrument #212428 i

omer: [N

Reason for Designatiom: This house is an excellent example of a
whimsical Greek Revival treatment on what is otherwise -
in scale and character - a Loyalist style cottage.
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67 FARL STREET !

Built: 1847

Description: All and singular that certain parcel or tract of land
and premises situate, lying and being in the City of
Kingston and County of Frontenac, and being more
particularly described as Part of Lots 155 and 166,
Original Survey, as described in Instrument #199653.

owner: [

Reason for Designation: Although this residence has undergoﬁe a
series of minor alterations, it nonetheless remains
important as a corner building of a block of houses
which'were all constructed before 1860. An interesting
feature of the building is a turn-of-the-century gable
dormer with a curved balcony.

LASALLE COTTAGE - 65 Earl Street

i

Built: C.1867

Description: All and singular that certain parcel or tract of land
and premises situate, lying and being in the City of
Kingston and County of Frontenac, and being more
particularly described as Part of Lots 155 and 166,
Original Survey, as described in Instrument #75143.

omer: |G

Reason for Designation: This small frame house is an interesting
contrast to the larger brick and stone houses nearby.
The simple, but elegantly-detailed, facade has been
well preserved. :

63 EARL STREET

Built: 1853

Description: All and singular that certain parcel or tract of land
and premises situate, lying and'being in the City of {
Kingston and County of Frontenac, and being more
particularly described as Part of Lot 146, Original
Survey, as described in Instrument #175033.

|

|

omer: NN i
l

Reason for Designation: This brick house was built for Thomas Maxwell, .
a ship's captain, in about 1853. 1In spite of minor
alterations the essential character remains; the case-
ment sash windows add an interesting touch.

53-55 EARL STREET

Built: 1844

Architect: Thomas Rogers

Description: #All and singular that certain parcel or tract of land
and premises situate, lying and being in the City of
Kingston and County of Frontenac, and being more
particularly described as Part of Lot 146, Original
Survey, as described in Instrument #211812.

omer _
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(30)

(31)

(32)
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53-55 EARL STREET (cont'd)

Reason for Des

49 EARIL STREET

ignation: This pleasant stone double house, with its
elegant elliptical arched doorways and carriageway, is
a good example - in site, scale and layout - of the
better class dwellings available to military officers
stationed in Kingston in the mid-nineteenth century.

Cvmet':

Built: c.1834

Description:

Reason for Des

47 EARL STREFT

All and singular that certain parcel or tract of land
and premises situate, lying and being in the City of-
Kingston and County of Frontenac, and being more
particularly described as Part of Lot 135, Original
Survey, as describe rument #133588

ignation: This stone house was built by William
Johnson, who bought this property in 1833. This
residence  is a well-kept, simple but dignified
uilding or good proportions.

Bu1lt 1841

Description: All and singular that certain parcel or tract of land

and premises situate, lying and being in the City of

Kingston and County of Frontenac, and being more

Owner:

Reason for bés
ﬁSterling, who_uged it as:a boarding house for about .

218 KING STREET EAST

particularly described as Part of Lot 135, Original
Survey, as deecrlbed in Instrument #181893

ignation: ‘Thié“iuilding”ﬁag built For Mrs.: Rachel

‘twelve years.' The sticco house is a modest residence

of pleasant proportions which has been altered slightly,
but sympathetically, over the years.

‘Built: 1833

Description:

Owner: Lorfam Liidited
Reason for Designatlon. This stone house was built by R. Flandgen as

v This Well»proportloned §fone house, in its refinement

All and singular that certain parcel or tract of land
and premises situate, lying and being in the City of
Kingston and County of Frontenac, and be‘ng more
particularly described as Part of Lot 126, Original
Survey, as described /in Instrument #219375.

a homey it was converted in 1850 into a grocery store.

and simplicity of decoration, is typical of the town
residences being built in the 1830's by second gens¢ratior
Loy:lists.

-
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(33) 220-222 KING STREET EAST

(34)

(35)

. (a) 2?4 King Street East

(b) 226 King Street East

omer: |
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Built: 1868

Description: All and singular that certain parcel or tract of land
and premises situate, lying and being in the City of
Kingston .and County of Frontenac, and being more
particularly described as Part of Lot 126, Original
Survey, as described in Instrument #155419

owner: | N
Reason for Designation: The property on which this building stands
. was bought by J. Neill, a grocer, in 1866. This double
brick house is a good example of a design popular in
the nineteenth century when those who could not afford

large houses buyilt these comfortable two-family units,
and rented one unit.

224~226 KING STREET EAST

Built. 1843

‘Description: Allzand singular ‘that cértain parcel or tract of
land and premises situate, lying and being in the
City of Kingston and County of Frontenac, and being
more.particularly described as Part of Lots 126 and
135, Original Survéy;, as described. 1n,Instrument
-«#59853.,,n-.,,._, . :

owmer: [N

Built: 1843

Description: All and singular that certain parcel or tract of
land and premises situate, lying and being in the
City of Kingston and County of Frontenac, and being
;.. more particularly.described as Part of Lots 126 and

135, -Origihal ‘Survey, as’described in Instrument
#99997

!
omer: [N A

t

i

Reason for Designation: J. Watkins and S. Muckleston, merchants, were
the original owners of this unusual stone terrace. ThlS

double house, ©n a substantial scale, is .very ‘handsome, |

Ats arches have a grace and rhythm seldom attalnad w1th

rough ashlar.

232 KING STREET EAST

Built: c.1812 4 '

Description: All and singular that certain parcel or tract of land
and premises situate, lying and being in the City of
Ringston and County of Frontenac, and being more
particularly described as Part of Lots 125 and 136,
- Original Survey; as. described in Instrument #81127.

Reason for Designation: This simple stucco covered building is said
to have been erected-:about 1812. Built by the Stuart
family as a rental property, it remained in their
possession until 1850.




W

(36)

lan

(38)

(39)

- 15 -

240 KING STREET EAST

Built: C.1829

Description: All and singular that certain parcel or tract of land
and premises situate, lying and being in the City of
Kingston and County of Frontenac, and being more
particularly described as Part of Lots 125 and 136,
Original Survey, as described in Instrument #65451.

Owner: Children's Aid Society of Kingston and Frontenac

Reason for Designation: This large brick house, an important
component of the streetscape, was built by Archdeacon
G. 0. Stuart for a relative, Dr. Murray. In spite of
alterations, the house retains its original proportions;
it is probably one of the oldest brick houses in the
city.

EMPIRE LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY - 243‘King Street East

Built: 1853-54

“Description: All and singular that certain parcel or tract of land

and premises situate;, lying and being in the City of
Kingston and County of Frontenac, and being more
particularly described as Lot 85 and Part of Lot 86,
Original Survey, as described in Instruments #55642 and
#55643.

‘Owner: Empire Life Insutrance.Company

Reason for Designation: The original ownef of this stome building was
the Commercial Bank of the Midland District. This
building is a fine example of the Baroque Revival’style,
not only in the variety of ways in which the stone is
handled, but also in the interestlng use of form and
detailing.

FRONTENAC CLUB - 225 King Street East

Built: 1845-46

" ‘Architect: Mr. Crame:

\

Description: All and singular that certain parcel or tract of land
and premises situate, lying and being in the City of
Kingston and County of Frontenac, and being more
particularly described as Lots 84 and 67 and Part of

Lot 42, Original Survey, as -described in Instrument
#106803

omer: (N

" Reason for Designation: This stonelﬁuilding was built for the Bank

of Montreal, which occipied the premises until 1906.
In the dignity of .its design, it is a f1ne example of
the Classic Revival style.

223 KING STREET EAST

Built: 1834

Description: All and singular that certain parcel or tract of land

- and premises situate, lying and being in the City of .
Kingston and County of Frontenac, and being more

particularly described as Part of Lots 41, 68 and 83,

Original Survey, as described in Instrument #62083. 0
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223 KING STREET-FAST (cont'd)

omer:

Reason for Designation: This stone building was constructed by J. S.
Cartwright to serve as a law office and residence for
his law students. The simple design of this substantial
townhouse 1is dignified by the ashlar detailing.

221 KING STREET FAST

Built: 1834

Description: All and singular that-certain parcel or tract of land
' and premises situate, lying and being in the City of
Kingston and County of Frontenac, and being more
particularly described as Part of Lots 41, 68 and 83,
Original Survey, as describéd in Instrument #112520.

Owner: Kingont Investments Ltd.

Reason for Designation: This stone house was built as the townhouse
of J. S. Cartwright. The building has been given 2
highly individual character by -the unique handling of
planes, textures and details. 1In spite of the numcrous
unsympathetic additions, its character is still strong.

Built: Before 1832

Description: All and singular that certain parcel or tract of land
and premises situate, lying and being in the City of
Kingstoh and County of Frontenac, and being-more
particularly described as Part of Lots 41 and 68,
Original Survey, as described in Instrument'#47497.

owner: NN

Reason for Designation: An 1815 map shows a building on this lot
which belonged to the Cartwrights; they sold it in 1867.
This substantial stone building seems to have been
designed as a rural, rather than an urban, dwelling.
It is one of the bulldlngs on a complete block of old
.limestone  structures. e

20 WILLIAM STREET

Built: Before 1826

Description: All and singular that certain parcel or tract of land
and premises situate, lylng and being in the City of
Kingston and County of Frontenac, and being more
particularly described as Lots 67 and 84 and Part of
Lot 42, Original Survey, as described in Instrument
#106803.

omer: [N

Reason for Designation: This stone building was one of the first
structures built on the block of -land owned by the
Cartwright family. It is a substantial, handsome, town-
residence of the early nineteenth century. .

-
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v

128~132 ONTARIO STREET

Built: 1841-42

.. Description: All and singular that certain parcel or tract of land.

Description: .All and singular that certaln parcel or tract of land

Built: 1841

Description: All and singular that certain parcel or tract of land
and premises situate, lying and being in the City of
Kingston and County of Frontenac, and being more
particularly described as Part of Lots 25 ‘and 42,
Original Survey, as described in Instrument #245612.

Owner: Empire Life Insurance Company

Reason for Designation: This stone row was built in the heart of
Kingston's o0ld commercial centre and has had a variety
of tenants from sailmakers to publishers. It is a
handsome example of early commercial building; the
facade has been well preserved.

NICHOLSON MEAT MARKET ~ Cornmer of Ontario and William Streets

-and- premiges situaté,-lying afid being ‘in the City of
Kingston and County of Frontenac, and being more
particularly described as Part of Lots 25 and 42
Original Survey, as descrlbed in Instrument #195397

Owner: - -Empire Life Insurance Companx

" Reason” fot Designation: This is a good:example of a stone building

designed as both a house and a shop. It gives an
interesting variety to the commercial row beside it.

ROYAL CANADIAN HORSE ARTILLERY CLUB - 193-195 Ontario Street
Built: 1848-49

Architect: William Coverdale

and premisés 51tuate, lylng and- being in the City of
Kingston and.County of Frontenac, .and being more .
particularly described as Part of Water Lot No, 21 in
front of Town Lot 21 and part of land lying between
sald Water Lot and the’ southerly side of Ontario Street
as described in Instrument #99496

0wner‘~.RoYa1 Canadian Horse~Artillery'Brlgade‘Assbciatiqnmgm c

Reaon for Designation: ‘This large stone row was built for J. & W.
Breden to be used for shops and offices with dwellings
above. It is a good example of the type of plain but
substantial building that was once at the core of the
0ld commercial district.

6-10 PRINCESS STREET

Description: All and singular that certain parcel or t-act of land
and premises situate, lying and being in the City of
Kingston and County of Frontemnac, and being more
particularly described 'as part of land lying between
Town Lot 5 and Water Lot 5, Original Survey, as desgrlbec
in Instrument #256244

Owner: Norbro Holdings Ltd.
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6-10 PRINCESS STREET (cont'd)

Reason for Designation: These two buildings form a pleasant grouping
of early limestone buildfngs planned as commercial and
residential properties in the central business district.

WESLEY TERRACE - 272, 274, 278, 280, 282 and 286 Johmson Street

(a) 272 Johnson Street

Built: 1856
Architect: William Coverdale

Description: All and singulatr that certain parcel or traect of
land and premises situate, lying and being in the
City of Kingston and County of Frontenac, and being
. more particularly described as Parts of Lots 'b"
~and 18, Plan B-27, as described in Instrument
#271009. .

omer: [

“ib) 274“30hnson-Street

Built: 1856 S~
Architect: William Coverdale

Descripfion: ‘All and “singular that certain parcel or tract of
land and premises situate, lying and being in the
City of Kingston and County of Frontenac, and being
more particularly described as Parts of Lots "b"
and 18, Plan B-27, as described in Instrument’
#238290. -

owner : [

(¢) 278 Johnson Street

““Built: 1856
Architect:- Williah-Cdverdale™
Description: All and singular that certain parcel or tract of
land and premises situate, lying and being in the
City .of Kingston and County of Frontenac, and being

more particularly described as Part of Lot "b",
-..Plan. B=27, as-described in.Instrument #217235.

omer: [N

(d) 280 Johnson Street

Built: 1856
Architect: William Coverdale

Degcription: All and singular that certaim parcel or tract of
land and premises situate, lying and being in the
ity ofrKiligston  atid-County ‘of ‘Fronteénac, and being
more particularly described as Part of Lot "B",
Plan B-27, as described in Instrument #188483.

omer: |
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WESLEY TERRACE - 272, 274, 278 280 282 and 780 Johngon Street(ront db

(e) 282 Johnson Street

Built: 1856
Architect: William Coverdale

Description: All and singular that certain parcel or tract of
land and premises situate, lying ani being in the

City of Kingston and Couniy of Tromi@nac, and being

more particularly described as Part of Lot 18,
Plan B27, as described in Instrument #7823G.R.

owner : I B S

(£) 286 Johnson Street

Built: 1856
Architect: William Coverdale

Description: All and singular that certainm parcel or tract of
land and premises situate, lying and being in the

!
!

City of Kingston and County of Frontenac, and heing.

more particularly described as Part of Lot A,
Plan B-27, as described in Instrument #58439

ower: [N

Reason for Designation: This brick terrace was built for Willian
Anglin; it is an excéllent example of a quality row om
a good residential street.. :
A\

MCINTOSE CASTLE - 14 Sydenham Street

Built: 1852
Architect: J. Power

Description: All and singular that certain parcel or tract of lund
" and premises situaté; lying and being in.the City of |
Kingston and County of Frontenac, and being more
particularly described as Part of Lot 61, Plan B-=27,
as described in Instrument #225980.

omer: [N O

Reason for Designation: This "castle" was built for D. McIntosh. a
ship owner and forwarder. It is an excellent examrle
. of a Gothic Revival villa. .

HOCHELAGA APARTMENTS ~ 24 Sydenham Street
Built: C.1885
Description: All and singular that certain parcel or tract of land

and premises situate, lying and being in the City of
Kingston and County of -Frontenac, and being more

particularly described as Lot 60 and Part of Lots 61 and

57, Plan B-27, as deseribed in Instrument #269069 (to
correct Instrument #162449).

omer: [N

Reason for Designation: This brick house is an excellent example of

late Victorian architecture with elaborate ornamentntion;

v




- 20 ~

(50) CLYDE TERRACE - 30, 32, 34 and 36 Sydenham Street

(a) 30 Sydenham Street

Built: 1866

Description: All and singular that certain parcel or tract of
land and premises situate, lying and being in the
City of Kingston and County of Frontenac, and being
more particularly described as Part c¢f Lot 5%, Plan
B-27, as described in Instrument #244755. i

omer: .

(b) 32 Sydenham Street

Built: 1866

Description: All and singular that certain parcel or tract of
land and premises situate, lying and being in the |
City of Kingston and County of Fronfenac, and melng}
more particularly described as Part of Lot 59, Plan]
B-27, as describéd in Instrument #224761. ;

Ovner : I

(c) 34 Sydenham Street

Built: 1866 i . ‘ :
Description: All and singular that certain parcel or tract of
land and premises situate, lying and ‘being in the
City of Kingston and County of Frontenac, and helng
more particularly described as Part of Lot 55.
Plan B-27, as described in Instrument {#242325.

owner: |

(d) 36 Sydenham Street -

Built: 1866 -

Déscription: All arnd singula? that ceftain parcel or tract of
- ’ land and premises situate, lying and being in the
City of Kingston and County of Frontenac, and being
more particularly described as Part of Lot 59,
Plan B-27, as described in Instrument #103512.

owmer: [

Reason for Designation: This range of brick buildings was.built for
Mr. T. Hendry, a wholesale grocer. This handsome
terrace is a good example of quality row housiug.
(51) 66 MAIN STREET

Built: c.1855

Description: All and singular that certain parcel or tract of land
..and premises situate, lying and being in the City of .i
VKlngston and County of Frontenac, -and being more
vnartlcularly described as Lot 17, formerly Block KK,
Plan 1624, as described in Instrument #94765.

. ower: [

Reason for Designation: This dignified stone residence is a‘good
example of vernacular Classic Revival.

-
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CRIMEA TERRACE ~ 198, 200 and 202 Queen Street

(a) 198 Queen Street

Built: c¢.1854

Description: All and singular that certain parcel or tract
land and premises situate, lying and being in
City of Kingston and County of Frontenac, and
more particularly described as Part of Lots 3
Plan D-23, as described in Instrument #79267.

omer: [N

(b) 200 Queen .Street

Built: c¢.1854

Descriﬁtioﬁ: All and singular that certain parcel or tract
land and premises situate, lying and being in
City of Kingston and County of Frontenac, and

more particularly described as Lot 5, PlanD-23, as

described in Instrument #206369.

—

(¢) 202 Queen Street

Built: c¢.1854

I
Description: All and singular that certain parcel or tract
land and premises situate, lying and being in the

City of Kingston and County of Frontenac, and

more particularly described as Lots 6 and 7, Plan

D-23, as described in Instrument #29267.

ower: [N

Reason for Designation: Sheriff Corbett had these three stone dwell--
ings built, adjoining his large brick double house,
rental properties. They are similar in style, size and !
construction, but alterations have detracted from the

coherence of the terrace.

CORBETT'S HOUSE - 196 Queen Street

Built: 1851

Architect: Wiliiam Covef&ale

Description: All and singular that certain parcel or tract of land
and premises situate, lying and being in the City of |

Kingston and County of Frontenac, and being more

particularly described as Part of Lots 3 and 4, Plan

D-23, as described in Instrument #79267.

Reason for Designation: Sheriff Zorbett commissioned Coverdale to

build this handsome double house; the facade is an
elegant combination of brick and stone.

ELIZABETH COTTAGE - 251 Brock Street

Built: 1841-43

Architect: E. Horsey

of
the
being
and 4,

of
the
being

of

being |

as
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(54) ELIZABETH COTTAGE - 251 Brock Street (cont'd)

Description: All and singular that certain parcel or tract of land
and premises situate, lying and being in the City of
Kingston and County of Frontenac, and being more
particularly described as Part Lot 16, Selma Park,
designated as PART 1, Plan 13R-863, as described in
Instrument #29333.

Owmer: Crown Trust Company, Executor and Trustee for
Louisa Anderson Fowler

Reason for Designation: Two generations of Fowlers, the original
owners, lived in this house before it was turned into a
residence for elderly ladies. The cottage is an
excellent example of the dellghtful romanticism of a
Regency Gothic style.

(55) HORSEY STONE - 247-249 Brock Street

Built: 1843 -
Architect: E. Horsey

Description: All and singular that certain parcel or tract of land

’ _and premises situate, lying and being in the City of
Kingston and County of Frontenac, and beihg more
particularly described as Part of Lots 14 and 15, Selma
Park, designated as PARTS 3 and 4, Plan 13R863, as
described in Instrument #260390.

Owner: Damben Investments Limited

Reason for Designation Bu11t orlglnally as a double house, this
‘'stone terrace later became a girls' private school and
then g halfway house for psychiatric patients. 1In the
quality of its design, this building is the finest

-~ . example of terrace housing in Kingston.

(56{ 110-112 RIDEAU STREET
N

.

Built: ¢.1810

Description: All and singular that certain parcel or tract of land
and premises situate, lying and being in the City of
Kingston and County of Frontenac, and being more
particularly described as Part of Lot 269, Original
Survey, as described in Instruments #255905 and
#257299.

Owner: The Frontenac H1stor1c Foundatlon

Reason for Designation: This house was built for Lleutenant Colonel
D. Macpherson and was occupied from 1835-39 by John A.
Macdonald, his parents and two sisters. It is a good
and very early example of plain substantial housing.

(57) -WELLINGTON STREET BREWERY - 308 Wellington Street

Built: 1794 and 1857
Architect: 1857 William Coverdale

Description: All and singular that certain parcel or tract of land
and premises situate, lying and being in the City of
Kingston and County of Frontenac, and being more
particularly described as Part of Lot C, Original -
Survey, as described in Instrument #49810. '
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WELLINGTON STREET BREWERY - 308 Wellington Street (cont'd)

Owner: Estate of Charles Samuel Anglin
Reason for Designation: J. Darley, the proprietor of Freeman's
Tavern, was the first owner of this stone brewery. It

is an excellent example of early industrial building.

RIDEAU TERRACE - 2-8 Rideau Terrace

Description: All and singular that certain parcel or tract of land
and premises situate, lying and being in the City of
Kingston and County of Frontenac, and being more
particularly described as Part of Lot C, Original Survey
as. described in Instrument No. 49810.

Owner: I
Reason for Designation: These stone buildings were built as workmen's
cottages, in connection with the brewery, and it is

likely that they were built before 1826.

1 RIDEAU STREET

Built: 1826

Description: All and singular that certain parcel or tract of land
’ . and premises situate, lying and being in the City of
Kingston and County of Frontenac, and being more
particularly described as Part of Lot E, Original
Survey, as described in Instrument #81190.

Owner: Howard Kelly Limited
Reason for Designation: Built for D. Benson in 1826, this was the
Benson family home for over fifty years, it is typical

of the early unadorned stone dwellings.

87-89 BARRACK STREET

Built: ¢.1820 ’ - i

Description: All and singular that certain parcel or tract of land i
and premises situate, lying and being in the City of
Kingston and County of Frontenac, and being more .
particularly described as Part of Lot E, Original Survey,
as described in Instrument #81190.

Reason for Designation: The tentral unit of this block of stone
- buildings, it'is typical of the simple, unadorned
dwellings erected in the early years of the ninetecnth
century in, what was then, a fasionable residential
street. h

Owner: Howard Kelly Limited ‘
]

85 BARRACK STREET

Built: 1855

Description: All and singular that certain parcel or tract of l.nd
and premises situate, lying and being in the City of
Kingston and County of Frontenac, and being more
particularly described as Part of Lot E, Or1g1na1 Survey
as described in Instrument #42444.

Owner: $S. Anglin Co. Limited
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85 BARRACK STREET (cont'd)

Reason for’Designaﬁion: An important unit in this block of early
stone houses, number 85 is half of a building erected
for J. Meagher, a produce merchant.

ST. PAUL'S ANGLICAN CHURCH - Queen Street at Montreal Street

Built: 1845-47
Architect: William Coverdale

Description: All and singular that certain parcel or tract of land
and premises situate, lying and being in the City of
Kingston and County of Frontenac, and being more
particularly described as Abstracted as the Upper and
Lower Burial Ground in Index 4 P720.

Owner: Incorporated Synod of the Diocese of Ontario .

Reason for Designation: St. Paul's was built in memory of Reverend R.
Cartwright. The building was financed by public
subscription and by gifts from officers and soldiers of
the garrison. It is a good example of simple,
vernacular Gothic.

136 PRINCESS STREET ~ Southeast Corner of Princess and Bagot Streets
Built: .1872

Description: All and singular that certain parcel or tract of land
and premises situate, lying and being in the City of
Kingston and County of Frontenac, and being more
particularly described as Lot 261, Original Survey,
as' described in Instrument #188 and #97894.

omer —

Reason for Designation: Built for Macnee and Minnes, a wholesale dry
goods firm, this stone building is an important example
of the Classic Revival style as used in the Victorian
era for commercial structures.

ARTILLERY PARK BARRACKS GUARD HOUSE -~ 119 Barrack Street
Built: «¢.1843

Description: All and singular that certain parcel or tract of land
- and premises situate, lying and being in the City of
Kingston and County of Frontenac, and being more
particularly described as Part of Artillery Park,
Original Survey, as described in Instrument #203664.

omer: [N

Reason for Designation: This Guard House was used by the Provost
Corps for many years. This plain stone building of
unusual proportions i's one of the few remaining
structures, in the city itself, which played a role in .
military history.

'
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141, 143, 145 JAMES STREET

- B-30, as described in Instrument #265374.

(a) 141 James Street

Description: All and singular that certain parcel or tract of
land and premises situate, lying and being in the
City of Kingston and County of Frontemac, and being
more particularly described as Part of Lot 2, Plan

omer: [N

(b) 143 James Street

Description: All and singular that certain parcel or tract of
land and premises situate, lying and being in the
City of Kingston and County of Frontenac, and being
more particularly described as Part of Lot 2, Plan
B-30, as described in Instrument #67938.

(¢) 145 James Street

Description: All and singular that certain parcel or tract of
land and premises situate, lying and being in the
City of Kingston and County of Frontenac, and being
more particularly described as Part of Lots 1 and 2,
Plan B-30, as described in Instrument #271085.

owner: |

Reason for Designation: This is an excellent example of multiple
housing on a very modest scale. The unity of its well-
proportioned facade has been maintained. . . i

L‘v

18 BARRIE STREET

Built: 1830

Architect: T. Rogers i

Description: All and singular that certain parcel or tract of land ;
’ and premises situate; lying and being in the City of
Kingston and County of Frontenac, and being more
particularly described as Part of Block "B", a Sub-
division of Farm Lot 24, Concession 1, as described in
Instrument #51569.

omer: |

Reason for Designation: Although the original character of this brick!
house has been obscured, the building is still a good
example of Victorian Classic Revival. :

SUNNYSIDE - Northeast Corner of Union and Macdonnell Streets

Built: 1847

Description: All and singular that certain parcel or tract of land
and premises situate, lying and being in the City of
Kingston and County of Frontenac, and being more
particularly described as Part of the West % of Farm
Lot 22, Concession 1, as. described in Instrument #222813|

Owner: Orphan's Home and Widows' Friend Society
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SUNNYSIDE - Northeast Corner of Union and Macdonnell Streets (cont'd)

Reason for Designation: This stucco house was built for J. Counter,
one of Kingston's most distinguished mayors. This build-
ing is a good example of a Regency style country estate.

LAKEVIEW - 86 Beverley Street

Built: 1850, 1855

Architects: 1850 J. Crawford
1855 William Coverdale

Description: All and singular that certain parcel or tract of land
and premises situate, lying and being in the City of
Kingston and County of Frontenac, and being more
particularly described as Part of West half of the East
half of Lot 22, Concession 1 and Lot 19, Plan B15,
designated as Part 2 on Reference Plan 13R890.

Ovner A

Reason for Designation: This is one of the very few Kingston houses
which retains not only most of its original yard and
garden, but also the attached "offices'" which are little
altered. This stone building is an excellent example of
a country estate built in the Regency style.

OTTERBURN =~ 124 Centre Street

Built: 1834

Description: All and singular that certain parcel or tract of land
and premises situate, lying and being in the City of
Kingston and County of Frontenac, and being more
particularly described as Part of West % of Farm Lot 22,
Concession 1, as described.in Instrument #82339.

Owner: Beth Israel Congregation of Kingston

Reason for Designation: The Regency elegance of this stucco building's

proportions makes it a good example of an 1830's country
residence.

i
H

This by-law shall come into force and take effect on its passing.

GIVEN THREE READINGS AND FINALLY PASSED the 28th day of July, 1975. !

CLERK#COMPTROLLER

4



SCHEDULE "A" TO BY-LAW NO. 8892

REASONS FOR DESIGNATION

(1) CITY HALL - 216 ONTARIO STREET

Significance: In 1841, when Kingston was the
capital of the United Provinces of Upper and
Lower Canada, civic officials decided Kingston
should have a municipal building befitting its
status as a national capital. When the building
was finished in November 1844, Kingston was no
longer the capital. The building was offercd

to the government, rent free, to ihduce them to

stay in Kingston, but the offer was refused.

George Browne's plans and degcription of
City Hall show that it was envisaged as a centre
for all municipal functions - political, economic
and social. The base storey, fronting the water,
had twelve offices for ‘lawyers, brokers, etc.
Behind these, on the right of the entrance werec
the police station and gaol cells;:.on the left
was the office of the clerk of the Qarket. On
the principal floor, the door- at tﬂg north end of \“\\
the facade led to the Post Office (ﬂ}esent — >
Council Chamber), the one at the sohth end to l
the Customs Office. Between.these,tthe Corporat.ion
offices were on the right, a large news room on

the left. Across the back of the main floor were
five small shops facing the Market Square.



SCHEDULE "A' TO BY-LAW NO. 8892 ’ . ) Page. 2.

REASONS FOR DESIGNATION (cont'd)

(1) CITY HALL - 216 ONTARIO STREET (cont'd) -

Upstairs the large Town ﬁall was for_meetings
and dances; at the other end was the Merchants!'’
Exchange (1ater Ontarlo Hall). The next floor had
three committee rooms and the remainder of it was

intended for the Mechanics! Institute Museum and

\

Reading Room with its library on three gaileries

in the drum supporting the dome. The topmost
gallery was to be an observatory;4 In the Market
wing, space was provided for green grocers,'
butchers and the like. The three storev block at
the King Street end; housing sales rooms, restaurant
and a printing office; was surmounted by a tall

cupola with a bell, cloek‘and watch tower.

‘ JWhen the Market wing was destroyed by fire
in 1865, it was replaced by a shorter wing,
designed by William Coverdale, and the belfry‘and.
clock werexadded to the main dome. In 1909, when
fire severely damaged the dome, it was rebuilt
under the direction of Joseph POWer, eccording -
to the original plans, with the. addltlon of the
clock and cupola. The lanterns on the wings weére

a later addition.

The City had 1andlord troubles WJth thc banks.
stores and saloons who were tenants after the
Post Office and Customs moved out in 1859. At
times the basement offices housearwelfaré cases.
As the work of the municipal government and the
administrative. staff increased, the City gradﬁally
took over the whole building.'-Meﬁorial Hall was
established in iQiif\vIn 1946, Ontario Hall was

temporarily subdivided into offjce%.

CJ

The condjtien of the portico became so
dangerous that it was removed in }956. A false

pediment was applied in 1963 to protect the stonewo:lk.
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REASONS FOR DESIGNATION (cont'd)

(1) CITY HALL - 216 ONTARIO STREET (cont'd)

In 1965, the Federal Government gave the City a
special grant of $ 100,000. to restore the portics,

which was rededicated in 1967.

This building is one of the finest nineteent:
century municipal buildings in Ontario and is
one of the great classical buildings of Canada.
It is enhanced by its waterfront site. Tﬁe
classical detail of the building is handled with
‘boldness, skill and imagination‘by this Irish
architect who was brought from Montreal to help
in the City's transformation into the country's
capital. His use of the local stone is particula iy
sensitive with subtle variatiohs in texture from .
the foughness of the basement to the smoothness

of the upper storeys.

Its two large public rooms were among the
finest in nineteenth century Ontario. Even to-da:.
these rooms are perhaps only surpassed in iype
and scale by certain rooms in Osgoode Hall and

St. Lawrence Hall, Toronto.

Built of Kingston limestone, the City Hall
is a T—shapéd sfructufe; the f?éade of *the
building faces the harbour and the rear,wing
_entrance faces King Street. The* central block,
three storeys high with circular chimneys at each
corner, is crowned by a dome containing four cloc!
faces. The dome stands on a circular drum and
supports a slender cupola topped by a weather van...
The main wings are six bays .wide and two storeys
]

high above a base s{drey; they'ferminate in single bay

pavilions finished with panélled attic storeys.
There are cupolas on each wing. The pavilion
end walls are curved to the back(where the fear

wing is a two storey structure with a flat roof.
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REASONS FOR DESIGNATION (cont'd)

(1) CITY HALL - 216 ONTARIO STREET (cont'd)

The central section of the facade has a
two-storey portico with four Tuscan columns
rising to a pediment. The pilasters under the
portico and on the pavilions are also Tuscaﬁ
while the drum of the dome has ;ixteen Roman Doric

attached columns. A dentilled cornice circles

the main building.

Stonework in the City Hall has a variety
of treatments. The base storey of the facade
has rough-faced, picked blocks;l‘qn the main
floor horizontally channelled ashlar emphasizes
the width of the building. The-upper storey,

string course and rear wing are all smooth ashlar.

Considerable variety also occurs in the
fenestration. 1In the principal floor of both
the main building and the rear wing all of the
windows are square headed and reéessed in scgmental
arches. 1In the facade the upper ﬁloor arched
windows are éet in an applied arc5Qe with moulded
trim arches. The top storey of the central block
has two groups of three narrow arched windows set
between pilasters in tﬁe front and‘three square-
headed windows with side lights in the back. The
sixteen windows in the drum are square-headed with

eighteen panes cach. The front window of each

pavilion has side lights in a stone enframement.

The circular ends each have in the upper
storey,<QWofggched niches and three ‘segmental
arched blind windows: Six bays at the back are

similar to the facade. The rear widg has ten bays

S st

to a side; the upper storey windows:are square-

headed and recessed.

City Hall has five major entraﬁdes in front,
one door in each circularAend and a major entrance
in the rear wing plus a side door. Three front
entrances are under fhe portico; thé centre two
storey arch with keystone gives limited access to

the base storey since the. opening haé been filled
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REASONS FOR DESIGNATION (cont'd)

(1) CITY HALL - 216 ONTARIO STREET (cont'd)

in on the main and second storeys. The double
doors with transom lights on either side of this
archway are recessed with blind arches above the

transoms. The doors are replacements.

Entrances to the end pavilions have pilaster..
and entablatures. The double doofs with eight
square, fielded paneis have a panglled transom.

In the south end the door panels have been replaccd
by glass. The arched openings of the base storey
contain the windows and doors, eight panes each,
above a'panel. In the nbrthérn wing the panels

in four openings have been replaéed by rough-faced

stone.

The King Street facade of the rear wing is
a composition of three arched openings separated
by pilasters topped by a pediment between panelledd
. parapets. The éentre opening, coﬁtaining the '
entrance, is two storeys high witﬁ a keystone
arch. On either side the arches rise to a storey
and a half with a blind arch abdvé‘the first storey

windows. Both door and windows are replacements.

The interior still retains s&me of the original
detail in stone, wood and plaster. The two large
rooms on the second floor have pilasters and
entablatures supporting curved ceilings, which ate
coffered and panelled. The windows’have panelled
reveals and moulded arched surroundé. There are
elaborape_brackets3 pilasters and architraves to
openings in the halls. The entrance halls have -
plaster cornices and a ceiling medallion besides the
original moulded window frames wjth‘end blocks.

Main stg{gs have heavy turned balusters with a

wide hanéféii:,’ln;tﬁé drum a spirai stéir hasg
slender turned balusters,,»E§tensive'interior alt “r-
ations have changed the main floor but it still
retains an interesting variety of door frames,

window. treatments and plaster brackets.
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REASONS FOR. DESIGNATION (cont'_d)

(2) ST. GEORGE'S CATHEDRAL BLOCK

Bounded by King, Johnson, Clarence and Wellington
Streets; containing St. George's Cathedfal,

St. George's Hall, two stone residences, the 01d
Post Office, the Customs House and Reni-Amable

Boucher Park.

Significance: The differing limestone buildings,
together with their stone garden walls and iron
railings which define the vériety of green spaces
‘between, render this block quite unique in the

City of Kingston. The relatiqnship of the building
masses to each other and to the streets, provide

a most interesting‘progréssioﬁ of scaie from the
smallest residential building to St. George's
Cathedral. The whole block offe;;‘a‘sense of rep:se
with trees and grass, small flowér gardens, and

glimpses of the Cathedral behind garden walls.

"~ The green spaces, including the Rent-Amable
Boucher Park‘have'jﬁst as much importance as the
buildings of the block, and are thémselves worthy

of preservation.

P

-Only a few portions remain of the railing
which oncé~enclosed all of the Cathedral grounds.
The King Streef entrance to the Caﬁhedral is
emphasized by a pair of ornate wrdﬁght iron piers
and lanterns, while on the Wellington Street side,

the garden is divided from the street by a railed

iron fence with Bishop's mitres on the top of each
“post.” “Another-Section of a similar iron fence
runs between the Cathedral gérden and the small

park fronting Clarence Street.
‘A decorated wrought iron fence on top of a
stone base divides the grounds of the Customs -
" House and the 0ld Post Office, from the small park
between, and from the Cathedral garden towards

the centre of the block.
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REASONS FOR DESIGNATION (cont'd)

(2)

(2)

ST. GEORGE'S CATHEDRAL BLOCK (cont'd)-:

]

The plain stone base of an ‘6riginal iron

fence now removed separates the Customs House

areaWay from the sidewalk along King Street and

Clarence Street.

(a)

ST. GEORGE'S CATHEDRAL - King Street Fast at Johnson Street

5

Significance: The original St. Géorge’s Church

was built in 1791, a block away frem the larger

bu1ld1ng which replaced it in 1825. The church,

‘used as a garrlson church for . the grow1ng military

centre of Klngston,'started as a rectangular

building, unadorned. In the 1840’s the church

was enlarged and the portico and the cupola with

clock were added. In 1862 St. Geor%e's became

a cathedral and the seat of fhe fi?%t'Bishepvof

Ontario. During the 1870's, memorialiwindowsr

i
were installed and extensive interior renovations

carried out. e

¥~

In 1891 the church was. again enlarged and

the dome and side portico were added. Then on

New Year's morning 1899 the church quﬁdestroyed

by fire leaving only the stone wallgistanding.

By 1901 the rebuilding was complete w1th only a

few minor changes from the 1891 structure.

e B
- LN

e

.5
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REASONS FOR DESIGNATION (cont'd)

(2) ST. GEORGE'S CATHEDRAL BLOCK (cont'd)

(a) ST. GEORGE'S CATHEDRAL - King Street East at Johnson Street . (cont'd)

Many memorials of historical interest lend
importance to this building.’ Lerd Sydenham, the
first Governor General of Canada after fhe union '
of the provinces in 1840, is buried here. The

Cathedral Choir has acquired international renown.

Architecturally, the Cathedral is reminiscent
" of Sir Christopher Wren's London Churches, though
less ornate than most. As can be seen from the
dates-given above, the building evolved by stages

over a span of seventy-five years,ﬂfroh~a simple7'

rectangular building. 'Each addltlon 1s -s0 well
proportioned that the Cathe@ral as we know it
to-day, .could well have been the result of a
single design conceived at one time. |

1

The Cafhedral is rectangulaf;‘with a nave,
transepts, apse, two porticos, a dome and a clock
tower. It is constructed of smooth ashlar with
quoined eorhers, a plain base and a classical
cornice. The pedimente& King Street.portfce (1846)

= has four columns ip theaTusean ordep,,two pilast.rs

joined by a striﬁglcoarse and a coffefed'eeiling»
Under the portico 1s ‘the central doorway w1th
Georgian style panelled doors and two nlches, al’
arched, whlle the three blind w1ndows are rectanyular.
On elther 51de of ‘the portico are rectangular door—"~
ways with prOJectlng lintels and elght panels to

each pair of doors. Above each, the windows’ are
arched ‘with moulded architraves and:bracketed

SillSo ) i “&--ih L

_ Behind the portico pediment andaabove the
cornice-is"a»balustraded parapet~masking>the-rooi
behind. The clock tower (1846) rlses from an
octagonal base which becomes round above a small
cornice. The central portion of the clock tower
is round and has eight Corinthian columns with .

frieze and cornice. Four alternate spaces between

1
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REASONS FOR DESIGNATION (cont'd)

(2)

ST. GEORGE'S CATHEDRAL BLOCK (cont'd)

(a) sT. GEORGE'S CATHEDRAL - King Street East at Johnson Street (cont'd)

the columns house arched and louvred openings, with
quoined surrounds. Above this cornice, the shape

of the tower again becomes octagonal and.alternate

faces house four round clock faces and four square
louvred openings. The clock tower is topped by an

eight-sided ribbed dome with a ball finial.

The tall arched windows on the north-east and
south-west facades are finished with a simple moulding
and prbjecfing,stoneSgat:the_springiggrand apex of
the arches. The portico on the Johﬁson'Séreéf side
is identical to the King Street one with the exception
of the parapet which is more ornate, having a pair
of scrolls. On the north-east side is an additional
arched entranceway. The pattern of gpched and '
rectangular windows found on the‘thnson Street
facade isirepéated:hefe. The stonework ~to the
transept on this side of the building is picked to
a rough texture which is in marked, contrast to the
smooth ashlar of the earlier parts.of the Cathedral.

A one-storey additioﬁ bf hammer—drésséd limestone
links this side of the Cathedral to the Church Hall
behind. "

The north-west elevation has a semi-circular
apse with seven rectangular windows, the sills of
which continue around the wall as a string course.
A circular stained glass window to thg north completes

this elevation.

Above the jqution of the nave and transept
a decorated square base supports the :circular drur

beneath the large dome (1899). This drum is diviued

by sixteen metal columns withuCorinthiah capitals
supporting a classical frieze and cornice. The
spaces between these columns contain‘érched windo:-s |
decorated with moulded architraves and~p1ain
keystones. Above the dome which, like, the roof,

is covered with copper, rises a small bell lantern
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REASONS FOR DESIGNATION (cont'd)

(2) ST. GEORGE'S CATHEDRAL BLOCK (cont'd)

(a) ST. GEORGE'S CATHEDRAL - King Street East at Johnson Street (copt‘d)

with eight arched openings and columns, a balustrade,
frieze and cornice. This again is topped by a ‘ -
domed roof and crowned with a golden ball finial

and crosse.

(b) (1) ST. GEORGE'S" GHURCH HALL — Wellington Stréet between Johnsun
and Clarence Streets

Significance: This building, while completely

different in style from the Cathedral which it
complements‘and from the 01d Post Ofédce building

on the other side, is also of Kingsp?p 1imeétone,

and is sensitively related in scaiez%ﬁ the

adjacent buildings. Its steeply pltched gabled

roof and gothic arched windows lend varlety to . T
the Wellington and Johnson Street Siges of the

block.

The rectangular hammer-dressed _stone
building has triplevgofhié windows on“afl four
sides and segmental-arched windows on\phe lower
storey. On the Johnson Street elevatiqn the
gothic window is set in a shallow gabié&
projection while the window on the opgésite side

of the hall is flush with the main wafliand
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REASONS FOR DESIGNATION (cont'd)

(2) ST. GEORGE'S CATHEDRAL BLOCK (cont'd)

(b) (i) ST. GEORGE'S CHURCH HALL - Wellington Street between Johnson
and Clarence Streets (cont'd)

terminates in another gable. The Wellington
Street entrance-way is gothic'in shape with
heavy boarded doors decorated ﬁy ornate wrought-
iron hinges and studs. The stone chimneys are
decorated with a band of small quatrefoils
matching the larger quatrefoillopenings above
three of the gothic-arched winngs. The Hall
itself is connected to the Catﬁedral proper by

a plain stone link at the north corner.

(b) (ii) SEXTON'S HOUSE - Wellington Stréet between Johnson and

‘Clarence Streets

SR S - SR

b
¥
£

et

§
i

Significance: From an architectural standpoint
this little building is valuable?because of its

unusual siting. ‘It forms a visualglink between

&

the large Church Hall on one side,and the small
cottage on the other, and its desﬁéh is such that
o

a smooth transition of scale is achieved.
P

-
PRI
i
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RFASONS FOR DESIGNATION (cont'd)

(@)

ST. GEORGE'S CATHEDRAL BLOCK (cont'd)

(b) (ii) SEXTON'S HOUSE — Wellington Street between Johnson

and Clarence Streets (cont'd)

This small two-storey stone residence is

connected to the north-east elevation of the Church

Hall on one side, and to the rear of a small stone

cottage on the other. The house has a flat roof
and broad arched windows facing King Street and

commands a long view over the park-like Cathedral

garden.

(b) (iii) CARETAKER'S COTTAGE - Clarence Streét between Wellington

" “and King‘Stregts

‘Signifiﬁance§~%The locaﬁion‘bf'this small cottége
in the centre of the block wiﬁﬁ its view over the
long rose garden towards Clareﬁ%e Street, creates
a focal point within the central portion of the
block. It contribﬁtes to the Variety of scale
and design'i;s} block which wiﬁhin its boundaries

encompasses the monumental Catﬁédral and the modest

1
£

stone cottage.

The Caretaker's Cottage is a long storey and a
half building with a mansard roof‘and a mansarded
_gable above the front QQoff .This‘déorWay:is
'protected by a closedﬁﬁéardéaﬁboréh with a gable
roof. The ground floor windOWS'H;ve segmental
arches while those in the upper ééorey are small

dormers set in the roof.
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REASONS FOR DESIGNATION (cont'd)

(2) ST. GEORGE'S CATHEDRAL BLOCK (cont'd)

(¢) (i) CUSTOMS HOUSE - 294 King Street East

Designated as being of national significance
by the Historic Sites and Monuments Board of

Canada in 1971. -

13
£

(¢) (ii) OLD POST OFFICE - 86 Clarence Street

e ow o e T L =

Designated as being of national significance

by the Historic Sites and Monuments Board cof

Canada in 1971. 5
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REASONS FOR DESIGNATION (cont'd)

(2) ST. GEORGE'S CATHEDRAL BLOCK (cont'd)

(c) (i) CUSTOMS HOUSE - 294 King Street East - and

(ii) OLD POST OFFICE - 86 Clarence Street (cont'd)

Significance: These two buildings ﬁere erected
at the same time by the Go?ernment of the United
Canadas to house government services which had
been in rented quarters. fhe site, until 1844,
was occupied by the County Court House and guaol.
The style of building is of British derivation,
and is quite unlike the public buildings of :ihe
United States which at that ‘time were often :n
- the Greek Revival style. The buildings are very

fine examples of mid-nineteenth century architec-

turee.

Both buildings show gréat»sensitivity iu
the handling of stonework. The heavy treatm.nt
of the lower storeys emphasizgs the weight n eded
for support, while the smooth ashlar of the :ipper
storeys together with the decbration of the 1op
parapet walls relieve the squé of weight. - suilt
opposite each other, they are a model of non -

competitive good taste.

The 0l1ld Post Office is a rectangular bu’lding
having five bays on the Clarence Street facaite.:. -
The two long elevations however, are quifo different
from one another. The Wellinéton Street fac.ide is
divided into eight bays, while the opposite ne
which faces the small park, is'divided into nine.
Single pavilions project slightly on the two
Clarence Street corners, and at the centre o' the

Wellington Street facade. On the long elevation

facing the park,-four of the Qin&é%é ére‘false
and there -is no window in the lower storey of the
bay nearest Clarence Street. The building is
crowned by a cdrnice topped by a balustrade with-
urn finials. The ground floor:stonework is
heavily chamfered with a vermiculated surface to
the quoins and arched Gibbs surrounds of the

Windows on the Clarence and Wellington Street



SCHEDULE "A" TO BY-LAW NO. 8892

Page 15.

REASONS FOR DESIGNATION (cont'd)

(2)

ST. GEORGE'S CATHEDRAL BLOCK (cont'd)

(c)

(1) CUSTOMS HOUSE - 294 King Street East ~ and

(ii) OLD POST OFFICE - 86 Clarence Street (cont'd)

facades. There is a recessed triple arched
entrance on Clarence Street. The upper storey
is lighter in scale, the ashlar being smooth with

quoined corners.

The Customs House is a rectangular building
seven bays by three, with a three-~bay projection
on the long elevation facing the small park, and
a single bay projection on the south-west elevution.
A high moulded base rises to the sills of the
ground floor windows. The two storeys are divided
by a corniced string course on which rest the
upper windows. All the windows have semi-circular
arches. Those of the lower storey have arches in

keeping with the surrounding chénnglled ashlar,

. while those of the upper storey “have a-mouldea‘

N rallrleron fence Whlch haS“S‘

architrave which seté them off,from the surfacec
of the smooth ashlar. The building is crowned
by a classical frieze, a cornice with mutules

and a parapet with pilasters. --A-portico with
square double columns bridges the area-way on the

King Street side and leads to the main entrance

of the building. A raised panel above the.portico
is carried up through the frieze, the cornice,
and the parapet where it is decorated by a pai.

of ball finials. The central upper window is

‘empha51zed by a bracketed decorated ljntel COnCe

.the Clarence Street elevatlon the archod entrarnce

way has square pilasters and the triple-arched
window above has the same bracketed decorated
lintel as tﬁe‘central window of the King Streect
facade. The projectién ét the‘south—west end
of the building contains another entrance to
King Street with arched doorway and bracketed
canopy, while the south-west facade of this
projectiop contains a single window on the lower
storey and a triple one on the upper. The whol:
building is lightened by the area-way and low
wall which separate it from the sidewalk area.

The low wall was originally the “ose for a fin«-

= . Argwpved.
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REASONS FOR DESIGNATION (cont'd)

(2) ST. GEORGE'S CATHEDRAL BLOCK (cont'd)

(e) (1) CUSTOMS HOUSE ~ 294 King Street East - and

(ii) OLD POST OFFICE - 86 Clarence Street (cont'd)

Both the Customs House and the 01d Posi Office
have walled yards at the rear with gateways .hich
originally held iron gates leading to thcem from
Clarence Street. In’eagh case the design ot the

" gateway-pillars is related to the design of fthe’
building they accompany. A railed iron fence
tops the walls and divi@es each yard from the

small park between.

(3) FRONTENAC COUNTY COURT HOUSE, REGISTRY OFFICE AND GAOLER'S RESIDENCE

(a) FRONTENAC COUNTY COURT HOUSE - Court Street

Significance: The Court. House which over: thc *

" years has survived two fires and extensive
renovations, still retains the elegance whicl it
possessed when first built)} This elegance is due
to its sensitive siting whiéH éommaﬂds a dist int
view of the water, as wellzas the architects!
skilful handling ;f p}Bporéions and materials.
All the stone with the exception of that used
in the columns, was Quarriedron the site.
Externally, the building remains essentially fhe
same as the original except for the entrance

doors and an addition to the rear.
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REASONS FOR DESIGNATION (cont'd)

(3) FRONTENAC COUNTY COURT HOUSE, REGISTRY OFFICE
AND GAOLER'S RESIDENCE (cont'd)

(a) FRONTENAC COUNTY COURT HOUSE - Court Street (cont'd)

The Court House is composed of a central three
storey block flanked at each side by two sto:ey
wings which end in pedimented pavilions. Th-

roof ridges of these pavilions run at right ngles
to the main facade. The front and end eleva: ions
are faced with smooth limestone ashlar, whil. the
rear elevation is built of hammer-dressed asi-lar.
The base, frieze, cornice and the vee-jointe.i
quoins are of smooth ashlgr;throughoﬁt. The"
building is set on a plinth contéining the basement
windows which are 1it by areaways. The varicus
sections are.unified by the: plinth; frieze ard
cornice which run around the wholelbuilding, and
by the constant pattern of the fenestration in
which all the second storey windows are tall:r than

those of the ground floor.

The‘main entrgnceway on the front elevation is
pfofeééeduby'é cehtral'ﬁbrtiéb riéihg above a
short flight of steps. This classical portico
has six columns in the Ionic order, pilasters,
frieze, cornice and a coffered ceiling. The
tympanum within the pediment is decorated with

the Royal Coat of Arms.

Under this portico, the main entranceway is
decorated by a semi-circular arched surround
consisting of a moulded stone architrave, a
rebated course of channelled ashlar and a larse
keystone. The panelled double doors have six
glass panes in place of fhé original‘wood pan:ls.
A simply divided fan-light compietes this
entrance. The five windows under the portico

are all finished with moulded architraves.

- Those flanking the.doorway are'pedimentedAabOWQ
and stone panelled beneath, while the three in
the second storey have semi-circular arches arnd
bracketed sills, the central one being empha: ized

by a keystone.
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REASONS FOR DESIGNATION (cont'd)

(3) FRONTENAC COUNTY COURT HOUSE, REGISTRY OFFICE
AND GAOLER'S RESIDENCE (cont'd)

(a) FRONTENAC COUNTY COURT HOUSE - Court Street (cont'd)

The third storey of this section which forms the
base for the dome, hés an arch containing a
round window on each side, and the  corners arc
emphésized by a pair of rusticated pilasters
with a recessed panel between. A ribbed dome is

set on a drum 1lit by sixteen semi-circular arched

windows each with pilasters, moulded arch and
keystone. Between the windows, sixtecen attached
columns in the Corinthian order support a friecze
and cornice, and the dome which.is crowned by a
lantern with six semi-circular arches and attached
columns, repeating the architectural detail of

the drum below. At the very top is the flag pole.

The wings are four bays with rectangular windows
in the lower and upper storeys. All the wipdmws
have moulded architraves. . Those Lf@the lower
storey are set on a sill course with a recessed
panel below, and are topped by projecting lintcls,
while those of the upper storey are set on

bracketed sills.

The projecting pavilions of the front clevaticn
are emphasized by projecting quoined cormners.
The fenestration is in groupings of three. Th~
group in.the lower storey is rectangular,-framad
by four pilasters set on a bracketed sillland
topped by a projecting lintel above a frieze.

'Iﬁ theﬂﬁppér stbrey, the group-hasygemi—circu]ar'-
arched‘windows set on a sill suppofted by
decorative brackets and the centre window has a-
keystone. The pavilipns are crowned by octagonal

cupolas with ribbed domes and decorative finials.

The rear elevation has a projecting pediﬁented
central pavilion housing a small entranceway and
altered window with a string course above the
first storey. The second storey has a group of
three semi~circular arched windows with smooth
projecting surrounds and bracketed sill.

.?ﬁg four Pay wings have fectangular windows with
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REASONS FOR DESIGNATION (cont'd)

(3) FRONTENAC COUNTY COURT HOUSE, REGISTRY OFFICE
AND GAOLER'S RESIDENCE (cont'd)

(a) FRONTENAC COUNTY COURT HOUSE (cont'd)

smooth surrounds. The westerly one has been
partially hidden by a one storey addition of
Queenston limestone built in 1964-66. The

facade of the easterly wing is broken by‘a

projecting chimney running the height of the
building. The stone chimney has projecting
quoins of smooth ashlar and is topped by an

extension covered with stucco.

The pedimented projecting pavilions have rect in- -
gular windows which rest -on bracketed sills ad

are topped by segmental arched projecting lirtels.

The pedimented end'élevationsnéreAaiike, each

" having a stome flight of stéps with panelled
retaining walls, leading up to the double parnclled
doors. A panel of channelled ashlar with vou ‘soirs
'in;the’séme.style,psurroundsythe.elliptica113

arched &oorway which is accented by a hammer-

dressed keystone.

All windows are rectangular and are finished

with moulded architra&es; the two flanking the

doorway having a panel beneath, and those abcve
. hav;ng-bracketed sills. Thg‘ oveyall roofing

is ribbed copper sheetiﬁg.

A fountain was built in front 6f the Court He 1se

in 1903 to the memory of Sir George Airey Kirkpatrick.




SCHEDULE "A" TO BY-LAW NO. 8892 Page 20.

REASONS FOR DESIGNATION (cont'd)

(3) FRONTENAC COUNTY COURT HOUSE, REGISTRY OFFICE
AND GAOLER'S RESIDENCE (cont'd)

(b) REGISTRY OFFICE — Court and West Streets

Significance: Thiéhéﬁructufe is particularly

noteworthy for two reasons. It is a success! il
small scale adaptation of what is in most ca.-~s
a much larger structure. The latest addition

has been achieved with considerable sensitivity.

It does not dominate the older section but
rather seems an extension o% it in the same
scale, material and proportion. It is not a
reproduction of the features;in the original.
The siting of the Registry 6f£ice adds much

to its elegance.

The County Registry Office has been built in
three sections. The original section (1876)
is a T-shaped structure with:the bottom of thi T

facing Court Street.

The building is of hamﬁer—drqésed limestone a ‘hlar
with all‘the classical details executed in
contrastihg smooth ashlar, ana a rusticated sionne
base. The Court Street elevafion has an encl: sed
porch with Tonic stone pilastérs at the four
corners. These support é frieze, cornice and
pediment. The entranceway consists of a doub!e

panelled door surrounded by a semi-circular a::h

with moulded corbels at the springing of the
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REASONS FOR DESIGNATION (cont'd)

(3) FRONTENAC COUNTY COURT HOUSE, REGISTRY OFFICE
AND GAOLER'S RESIDENCE (cont'd)

(b) REGISTRY OFFICE — Court and West Streets (cont'd)

arch, and a keystone. The two windows flanking
the porch have semi-circular arches with braclketed
sills, moulded corbels at the springing of the

arch and a keystone. The corners of this elevation
are emphasized by pilasters and the same frie:e,
cornice and pediment of the porch is rcpeated

here, but on a larger scale. The side elevations
are alike having frieze, cornice and windows

identical to those on the Court Street front.

Angled Tonic pilasters cover the joint between
the front and rear portions which meet at right
angles. The West Street elevation of this pait
is divided into three main sections which are
framed by Tonic pilasters on which résﬁuthé f1ieze.
cornice and pediment. These are as on the front‘
elevation, except that the tympanum houses a pair
of small false windows with the same pattern «=
the rest of the fenestration below. To the rear
of this portion is the second section of the

* building, also faced with hammer-dressed lime:. one.
This section has a sloping roof gésked‘ﬁf a
parapet wall on the West Street elevation. Th.
window on the West Street side:is in the same
style as the others in the first section, but
those which face the prison wall have scgmente
arches. Two of the windows and a doorway have
been filled in. This section has smooth ashla
quoins and the\base which unifies the other se¢ iLios:

of the building is dropped here.

The final section of the building (1963) was = sled

0

40 the elevation, of the main éection which fac
the Court House. This part of the building is

" faced with Queenston limestone ashlar with a
chiselled finish. The facadé, facing the Cri("et.
Field across Court Street, has three rectangul ar
windows with smooth surround, keystone and sil: .
The frieze and base found in the older sectior

has been continued here. The semi-circular arched
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REASONS FOR DESIGNATION (cont'd)

(3) FRONTENAC COUNTY COURT HOUSE, REGISTRY OFFICE

AND GAOLER'S RESIDENCE (cont'd)

(b)

(c)

Significance: This

REGISTRY OFFICE - Court and West Streets (cont'd)

entranceway is in a shallow projection with
pilasters and a gable. It has a plain fan-light,
double panelled doors, and is surrounded by a
moulded architrave with a keystone. A pair o:
decorative iron lamps with white globes are o
either side of the entranceway. The elevation
facing the Court House has no base, two rectangular
sash windows as on the front, and three small .
windows without architraves, two downstairs arnd

one up. The rear elevatioﬁ is of four bays, 1he

windows being rectangular and having no surrounds.

GAOLER'S RESIDENCE - Located Behind the Frontenac County

simple. but dignified building

was until recently the jéiler's residence as w 11

as the entrance to the jail. The old residenc

is valuable as part of a group of limestone bu ldinsgs

+of varying sizes, design and uses. Its spacions

garden "and sheltered setting add to its charm.

The large sduare bracke%ed house is three bays
wide by three bays deep, and has a hipped roof.
The local limestone is genera;ly hammer-dressed
except for the base, the projé?ting chamfered ¢ioins
and the moulded top of the'chiﬁney stack, which are

of smooth ashlgr.
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REASONS FOR DESIGNATION (cont'd)

(3) FRONTENAC COUNTY COURT HOUSE, REGISTRY OFFICE
AND GAOLER'S RESIDENCE (cont'd)

(c) GAOLER'S‘RESIDENCE - Located Behind the Frontenac County
Court House (cont'd) '

Thé treatment of the entrances is unusual and is
identical in both the front and rear of the house.
The heavy stone parapets to the first floor cntrance
steps and landings, are arched over thé basement
steps which lead down to the jail entrance ai the
front of the house, and the basement at the 1«car.
The doorways have elliptical fan-lights and -~ide
lights, the front fan-light being decorated with
stained glass of later &épe. Each arched bauemépt
entrance is emphasized by a dropped'projecting
keystone and hgavynygﬁaining walls. All the stone
walls:-to thelvéfibué éhtégﬁéé,étépé'ére'ﬁow yaiﬁted

grey.

On the south eleVaéion which faces the ¢Court
Hoﬁse, the basement windows have segmental arches.
The two shuttered sash windows of the first floor ar«
not originale. Above them, however, thg briginal
sashes remain at éach'éiQQ*d% a éentral éfoup
consisting of three narféﬁ semi—éircular arched
windows. The west elevation has shuttered sash
windows below (replaced), and unshuttered abcve
(original). On the north elevation, the thrce
barred upstairs windows have segmental arche: and
one first floor window isfblind. From this «ide
of the building, the conneétion to the prison is
evident. The tw6 buildings:are linked by an enclosed

limestone connection with'circular barred windows.
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REASONS FOR DESIGNATION (cont'd)

(4) COMMERCIAL BUILDINGS - 149-151, 155-159 Wellington Street and
82-86, 90-94 Brock Street

1

R

Significance: This site was onék occupied by
wooden buildings and the Mi&lan@ District Scheol
Society, owners of the land, advertised in 1846
a twenty-one year lease on the land on the
condition that stone buildings of at least two
storeys would be built on the land in twelve

months. The erection of these buildings was the

L
’.

result. This three storey stone;ﬁange containing
a number of stores and businesseé at ground level,
and offices and apartments on the upper two flooi s,
has managed to keep its original architectural

B

i
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REASONS FOR DESIGNATION (cont'd)

(4) COMMERCIAL BUILDINGS - 149-151, 155-159 Wellington Street and
82-86, 90-94 Brock Street (cont'd)

quality. While it Was'obviously never intended

that the group should have gréat architectural
importance, these restrained and functional buildings
with their plain street facades on three sides,
provide a living illustration of commercial be 1d: =2
of the mid-nineteenth century in the heart of the

City .

Most of the store fronts on Wellington and
Brock Streets have received médern treatment and
all the buildings are now painted gfey. Alteratious
have, for the most part, helped to prescrve the

character of the rangp.

The range is built of sqhafed hammer-dressed
limestone with smooth ashlar fqr the base, quoins
and the ground floor of the Clafénce étreet facade.
The roof, which is hipped at the two Wellington Street
corners, is divided by the low parapets of the fire
walls. which separate’ the prépgfties into six vertical
sections. 149 Wéllingtoﬁ'stréet has two small gahl d
dormers, one facing Wellington.ﬁtreet, and the othu.r,
Clarence Street. R !

An elliptical archway on Welliﬁgfbn Street
originally led to a laneway and stables beﬁind.

There is evidence in the stonewérk that the opening
once held a gate. The archway ?é concealed at pre=ent

by a large modern illuminated sign.

On the Clarence Street facade, the original
”storefront with wood columns and panels below the
btore w1ndows, remaln. A central ‘doorway between the

two windows of the original store, has been replaccd

by another window.

In 1970‘the photo studio, at the corner of
Brock and Wellington Streets, was restored by removing
the large name board and so reveaiing the original
cast iron pilasters complete withfﬁheir ricﬂly

decorated capitals, frieze and cornice above.

Most of the window openings of the upper two
storeys, retain their original shébe, though most

of the sashes have by now been repiaced.
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REASONS FOR DESIGNATION (cont'd)

~(5) CARTWRIGHT HOUSE - 191 King Street East

jSignificance: The Cartwnighfifamily1hé§}been
intimately involved in ‘the 1ifé of KingSfon
and Canada since this area was first settled.
Robert David Cartwright, the first owner, was
the grandson of Richard Cartwriéht who had
emigrated from London, England t6 settle in

New York in 1741. o

The family, because of their Loyalist sympathies,
were escorted to the Canadian border in 1778.

The Hon. Richard Cartwright, Jr., father of Robert,
was an important figure in Canadian commerce and

a member of the Legislative Council.

The Cartwright house is on a corner close
to the centre of the o0ld city and just two,
blocks from Lake Ontario. If is élose also to
St. ‘George'!s Cathedral where Robert Cartwright
served as assistant minister. In June 1833 he
brought his bride, Harriet Dobbs of Dublin, Ireland,
to his new house. Five children were born to
them; the most famous son, Richard John, later
Sir Richard, became Minister of Finance and later
Minister of Trade and Commerce in Ottawa. When
the Reverend Robert Cartwright diéd‘in 1843, -the
house was rented. In 1877, William Ferguson bought

it and his heirs sold the house in 1927 to the

- the present owners.
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REASONS FOR DESIGNATION (cont'd)

(5) CARTWRIGHT HOUSE — 191 King Street East (cont'd)

The simple but well proportioned lines of
the house give distinction to an excellent examplce
of a town residence built for a large, well-to-do
family in the early 1800's. The layout inside is
typically eighteenth-century English with upstairs -
drawing room and the servants' rooms over the
kitchen in a separate wing. The adaptation of
the coach house to apartment use has been skilfully
carried out, and the design of the original house.

with its enclosed garden, remains‘faithfully preserved.

The house is rectangular ih shape, three
bays wide, with a kitchen wing at the rear and
a lean-to addition to the seutheast of thfs. It
is built of hammer-dressed 1imeétone except for
the King Streep facade where the ashlar is smooth.
Furrowed ashlar is used for the chamfered
projecting angle guoins, the base, thelstring
course between the two storeys, and the stone

sills. The window surrounds are of smooth ashlar.

The low pitch, gable roof was originally
covered with ribbed metal, but 13 now shlnﬂ]od The
gables,;whach .contain arched W1ndows to the ait1<
storey, end in parapet walls with corbel s(ones
that mask the ends of the gutters. Two pairs of
chimneys rise from the parapets!éf the gables. The
north gable end has a false window with closed
shutters in-both the first and second storeys. All.
the sash windows retain their original twenty - Cour
pane glazing and louvred shuttefs. The five
windows of the front facade are set in separate

shallow recesses.

The main enfrance has a projecting stone

-arch accented by :keystone and corbels at the
springing of the arch. The doorway is an elaborate
classical composition with pllasters, decorative
cornice with é'panelled return oﬁer the door,
elliptical fan-light and ornamentai‘sidelights

with wooden glazing bars. The wide front door
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REASONS FOR DESIGNATION (cont'd)

(5) CARTWRIGHT HOUSE - 191 King Street East (cont'd)

has eight fielded panels and a central bead.

This composition is repeated in an interior opcning.
which gives access from the entrance ha11 to the
stair hall. The front entrance is protected by an
enclosed portico with COluth in the Tuscan order .
complete with classical friéze and cornice, and o
simple wrought iron railing .above. The cnclosurx

of the portico is executed with semi-circular, arched,
fixed lights with wood panelé below and a s{x

panelled exterior door.

The house is set off from the King Stireet.
sidewalk by an arrowhead feﬁce in wrought iron, -ct
on a hammer-dressed ashlar base yjth furrowed stone
coping. Opposite the front‘door'a pair of wrought
iron gates are hung betweenvsquare pillars of
furrowed ashlar. On the Gore‘Sﬁﬂeetgsidyﬁfthp‘yardA
is enclosed by a higﬁ Waii.éfllimesfbpefand board
gates; a single bne for pedest?i«ns aﬂd, fnr'vnhirll-,
a double one flanked by square pillars in smeath

ashlar.

The gable of the kitchen wing has a parapct
rising to a chimney and the roof retains its original.
ribbed metal covering. The entrance to this wing is
protected by an enclosed stoée porch. An iron stair
of later date leads to the sgcond floor apartment.

The rear of the garden is defined by a high wall .n
‘sqqared stdnearubble-most‘oﬁ~which¢forms.thc rear of
ﬁhé“sééblé'and the coach house,'néw converted to

garage and modern apartment.  The other walls of

this building are in hammer-dressed ashlar

and a gabled roof and two chimneys, one Qf them
original, complete the building. The original
coach house entrance, now filled by a picture
window, is marked by an elliptical-arch in
émooth stone and-gf a design which métches that

over the front door in the main house.
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REASONS FOR DESIGNATION (cont'd)

(6) GILDERSLEEVE HOUSE ~— 264 King Street FEast

3

Significance: This house is a fine example of

a town residence built in the Loyallst style by

a shipwright and shipping 11ne owner for h1s
famllyo The name of Henry Glldersleeve, hls sons

and grandson, are ass001ated w1th the develop—

ment of steam navigation on Lake Ontarlo.

l.‘

The Gildersleeves owned the house untll 10090 and » %
the next owner, W.R. Glover was there for fifty- ;
three years. With few exceptlons, the house is

little altered and 1t has generally been malntalnod

with an appreclatlon of its architectural and

historical merit. .

The rectangular house is builtjdf hammer-

dressed llmestone w1th progectlng chamfered qu01ns
of vertlcally furrowed ashlar.; The angle drafts’
"of the chamfered qu01ns are boasted to give subtle
emphasis to the corners of the bulldlng. The
archltectural details such as- the base of the
King Street facade Wthh contalns the basément

windows, the strlng course- between the flrst and

second storeys, the two pairs Qf chlmneys and

the window sills are all in smqoth ashlar with

vertically furrowed face. i

™
]
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REASONS FOR DESIGNATION (cont'd)

(6) GILDERSLEEVE HOUSE ~ 264 King Street East (cont'd)

The wide soffit of the ribbed roof is decorated
with a motif of Greek derivation. On the Johnson
Street and south-westerly elevations, the pedimented

gables contain small arched windows.

The front of the house on King Street is
accented by a shallow projection crowned Qith a
pediment containing a small semi—circular'window*
The square portico has two round columns and two
square pilasters in the Doric order, and a wrought

iron railing forming a balcony to the second storey.

The broad eight-panelled, centre beaded door
with elliptical fan-light and ornamental side
lights, is balanced by the shuttered French door
above. The upper sashes on this facade are four

full panes and two half panes wide.

Part of the rear elevation is hidden by a
later sméll addition in chamfered concrete blocks
céntaining a rear entrance door of modern design
and an entrance to the basement which is protect:d
by a wrought iron railing. The ground floor of
the south—west elevatlon 1s hldden by the addltlon

of a later stuccoed sunroom elght bays by three.

The two street facades have been stuccoed, Lut
on the remaining two sides of the house, the smooth
ashlar quoins around the windows are still visible.
A1l windows' but the two on the ground floor of tho
King Street facade retain the original sashes, amni
all of these except three on the Johnson Street
facade and one at the reaf, retain the original
glazing bars. The columns of the portico have

been repaired by the addition of square fluted ba-.es.

nThé gag@gn wall on King and Johnéon Streets is
of hammer!ﬁr;;;éd'ashlar with'smqoth stonc coping.
A pair of squarc smoolh ashlar pi]lars t.opped by
ball finials, mark the cntrance from Johnsoo Stre
to the yard behind the house. Evidence of iron
gates remain. The stone coping has been replaced
by concrete on a iength of the Johnson Street sid:,
and by thin stone coping on the King Struet side
when this length_of_wgll had to be rebuilt in 1970,
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'REASONS FOR DESIGNATION (cont'd).

(6)

GILDERSLEEVE HOUSE - 264 King Street East (cont'd)

At this time the King Street;entrance to the yard
was formed. The whole yard'has been paved to
serve as pafking for the offices and flower store
now occupying the house. Thé two street facades
are divided from the sidewalkvby a wrought iron
railing on a stone baée. The original wrought
iron hitching posts and stone carriage-step rgmain
at the edge of the street opp;site the. front

entrancee.

. A brick stable and carriége house of unusual -
design and partly resting on the Johnson Stréet
garden wall, was built aboﬁt i890. The facade
holding the large wood ‘doors ié in poor.condition,

but not beyond rescue.

ROSEMOUNT APARTMENTS - 46 Sydenham Street

~

. Significance: Rosemount was built'for Edward H.

Hardy, a dry goods merchant. The house was

later occupled by his daughter, Mrs. Edgerton Rees,us

then by George Robertson. It is now an apartment

.house. The architect used wood llberally to

‘accent the aﬁphltectural detalls and to add light-

e
ness to the bulldlng.

Page 31. =

.
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4§§0NS FOR DESIGNATION (cont' d)
P ad

J/17) ROSEMOUNT APARTMENTS - 46 Sydenham Street (cont'd)

A Regency verandah originally graced the Sydenham
and Earl Street facades. The removal of the
shutters and verandah have contributed to the
present rather heavy appearance of the house. The
house and grounds have been well maintained and

it is indeed fortunate that the handsome fence

still stands.

Rosemount is a square two storey house
“built in the style of a Tuscan villa, with a
three storey sguare tower an& a kitchen wing. The
hammer-dressed limestone has been painted but is’
now weathered to .a soft brown. 'Wide bracket ed:
eaves and;ajhippédfﬁboffﬁgﬁithe}maiﬁesvc@ionqof
the house and the tower, thle a'gable roof
covers the lower, kitchen wing. AThe brick chimneys
are grouped into four wide stacksbby means of

"decorative arches.

o

Steps lead up to the maln cntranC(way through

.a seml—blrcular areh 1n the't w0r f301ng Sydonham
Street. This arch.with brick capjtals at its
springing is repeated on the two SLdes of the

. tower. The front doorway is frdmed by a moulded
wood architrave with semi- 01rcular arch The door
and the leaded glass fan-1light appear to be later.
On the second floor of the tower French doors open
onto a bracketed balcony with a loQ cast iron
railing. A ball and spear finial crowns the roof
of the tower. - Other windows on this floor and on

the third floor of the tower, are all casements.

To the rlght of the tower, the lower floor has
a large w1ndow W1th side. 11ghts and stained and -
cut ‘glass transoms. Tt is” protecteq.by a wooden
canopy supported,by,q»pair/of brackets in a
ship's wheei motif. Abd§e~this, is a triple
window with semi—cifbularbafches. A shallow
projection to the left of the tower;vhouses a.
chimney. A stuccoed basement extension and a ~

two storey decorative wood porch, are later.

On Earl Street, a very large bay with three

W1ndOWS on each floor forms half of the elevation.
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REASONS FOR DESIGNATION (cont'd)

(7) ROSEMOUNT APARTMENTS - 46 Sydenham Street (cont'd)

The westerly half has a three 1ight window with
fixed sashes and stained glass transoms ahove.

The second storey has a double sashAwindqw with

a balcony matching that of the tower on Sydenhanm
Street. A wooden string moﬁlaing decorated with
rosettes, runs between the two storeys on this
side of the house. The kitchen wing‘has {wo
windows in eaqh storey on this side and one window

facing west.

The side of the house facing William Street
has a number of additions‘whicﬁ; with the old
coach house, form a kind of courtyard. 1In the
centre is a shallow projectioﬁ with an-entrancé--
way, a semi-circular arched, landing window and
a small round window and gable.above. The wooden
porch and adjacent storage shed are 'of later date.
To the left, at the corner is a‘onc.storey stucco
addition with‘windows of varying sizes and shapes

and a flat roof with a wooden balustrade. To the

right are two windows, an original sash downstairs
and a casement upstairs, the same as in this side
of the kitchen wing. The three bay garage, once

: théﬁgqaéhlﬁggse, is‘attﬁéhedxﬁo~thé'ki£cﬁén ﬁing. \'-”

This residence is situated‘pn a corner and
set well back from the street. A cast iron fence
of bold-design:withﬁsmooth\limestqngmbase and . -
decorative cast iron piers at intervals, divides .
the property from the sidewalk 6ﬂ‘Sydenham and
Earl Streets. Smooth limestone piers mark the
ends of the fence and the corner, and flank the

entrance gates. A lighter iron fence divides the

property from the adjacent one on Earl Street.
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REASONS FOR DESIGNATION (cont'd)

.(8) 149 AND 151 EARL STREET

Significance: ~This double’Stons hotise forms. an
integral part of an important gir#etscape.
Surroundedbby houses de51gned by Wlllzam Coverdale,
Wthh were built twenfy vears earller, 1t illus-
- trates how.styles can éhangewand-yet;blend,togetherJy
Although it is the tallest bﬁilding ihjthe group,
its strong horizontal llnes keep 1t in scale with
the others. .It was bullt for Robert and Jdmeb

Gardiner, merchants.

This.limestone house .has aihigh basement; two

feofull. .'fl:oo.r'sp an.d-. .a .-:m-an.s,ar-d roof. .t mak_e four' ,Stor'ey Se

In plan it is square, with a large and later rear
wing. The front facade with shallow projections at
‘each corner is rough dressed regular coursed ashlar

above a hammerndressed base storey. The side and

rear elevations are of uncoursed rough dressed ashlar.

Double stairways -with elaborhlely turned balusters
and a wide handrail rise to the eh%rance platform.- A
recessed centre section contains the.twin cntrances
enhanced by four wooden fluted colﬁmns with metal
Corinthian capitals supporting aniéntablature crested

by decorative iron work. Two semi~circular archways

- with keystones enclose plain fan-lights and later
doors with large glass panels proteeted by decorative
iron work. Above each entrance is é;segmental arched

window.
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REASONS FOR DESIGNATION (cont'd)

(8) 149 AND 151 EARL STREET (cont'd)

The large semi-octagonal bays on either side of
the entranceways rise from the ground and terminate
above the first floor in bracketed cornices. They are
constructed of large blocks of picked ashlar with
boasted margins and with singlé blocks forming the

panels under the main storey’wihdoﬁs.:'All the windows

here have segmental arches. The bays each contain,
in the base storey a centre double cascment and twc
narrow fixed windows; and in the main storey douh?e
hung sashes. In the second storey there are two

windows with semi-circular arches above each bay.

The mansard roof of decorative coloured slates-
has four large dormer windows é?framed by pilasters
and pedimenfs. ' The roof is crested by a decorative
iron railing and the eaVés;~t?immed;yith¥dﬁntils,~@pe

bracketed above a wide moulded wooden frieze.

Each side elevation has two shallow projections
rising to twin brick chimneys topped by -moulded stene
capse. Between the chimneys, centrally piaced dorm:r
windows match those of the front facadc. The fene- -

;al

tration below is limited.to. a pair of mnarrow secgme:

arched windows at the centre of thé second storey

levele.

The rear eievatiohdbf £heﬁeas€érn haif‘has a it wo~
storey brick extension topped by”éTCoyerea,poroh. At
the main storey level of this part of the house is a
large elaborate stained glass windqw; It.appgars 19
be a-later addition as it is set in{brick:in the stone
wall. Immediately above, a single‘window in the sceond
storey and a dormer complete.the feqéstraﬂion. A
wooden lean-to is attached to the réar of‘the bricL.
exteﬂsion._!The aéstérnfhalf;df_thééhousethSua;lam@e“
window in fhe maiﬁwstoréy-opening oﬂ to a‘pérch, and
single windows in the two storeys apqve,‘two of tham

dormers. i
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REASONS FOR DESIGNATION (cont'd)

(9) KERR HOUSE - 155 Earl Street, and

(10) FRASER HOUSE - 161 Earl Street, and

(11) MACHAR HOUSE - 169 Earl Street

Significance: This intentional or uninteﬁtional
grouping of representative city residences is
successful for several reasons. The land on which
they are situated slopes slightly adding.variatioﬂ
in height. All, except fof the additions, are of
the same dimensions and _bulk. The fenestration oﬁ\:
the front elevations was originally the same and -
each had a string course across the front. The
wide bracketed eaves and paired chimneys give each
a combination of lightness and solidity. Sashes N
have been replaced in ﬁhe uépér storey at 109 Farl

and in the lower storey at 161 Earl Strecet. 1t i: e

fortunate that 155 Earl Street has retained all it \\\\\
original sashes. The rccent addition of narrcw }\\-\
sham shutters:to 169: Earl Street has.upset the . l\k

proportion. The removal of vines and the restor-
ation of the porch on 161 Earl have contributed tle

its embellishment.

Kerr House

L s PO .
B . 2

‘Significanqu Thé'residence was built for Samuel
Shaw, a meréﬁant and was occupied from 1854 to
1904 by John Kerr. It is one of a group of three
buildings of similar design and proportions. It

retains its original sash and porch.
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REASONS FOR DESIGNATION (cont'd)

9
(10)

a1

KERR HOUSE - 155 Earl Street, and ~

stone was painted a brick-red colour. This is

FRASER HOUSE ~ 161 Earl Street, and I ~

MACHAR HOUSE - 169 Earl Street (cont'd)

This residence is a two-storey hammer-dressed

limestone house with three bays. At one time the

now weather worn; and softened. The main entranc:,
which is rebated, is decorated by a semi-circular
moulded Afch. On ei£her side are French deors
with.transoms which open onto a balustraded porch
the central portion.of which is covered as a
protection over the entranceway. A moulded wooden
string course divides the upper and lower stdreys.

The three windows of the upper storey retain their

original $ashes. The eaves of the hipped roof,

whichAstillvretaihS its ﬁet;l sheeting, are wide
and brackefed. A pair of‘wi&e brick chimnéys with
decorative stonework are at the sides of the roof.
To the eaét is a narrow brick addition with an

enclosed porch and a tall narrow second storey window.

"inughé'middléfof the fe&fugafden area s a

stone ‘coach house with hipped roof. and dormers.

Fraser House



SCHEDULE "A" TO BY-LAW NO. 8892 Page 38.

REASONS FOR DESIGNATION (cont'd)

(9) KERR HOUSE - 155 Earl Street, and

(10) FRASER HOUSE - 161 Earl Street, and

(i1) MACHAR HOUSE - 169 Earl Street (cont'd)

Significance: This residence was built for
John Fraser and Catharine Mowat Fraser. It is
the middle one in the group of three square

bracketed houses on Earl Street.

This is a two-storey, square, hammer-dressed
limestone residence of three bayse. The entrancew.iy
has a semi-circular archway finished with two row
of voussoirs, one slightly recessed, and a fan-Lli« .
It was flanked by French doors with a transome.

These have been replaced by fixed glazing, the ti1 wsowm
being stained glass. A fretwork balcony (c. 1010}
runs the length of the front elevation and is topped
by a balustrade. This with the string course divides
the upper and lower storeys. At the upper storey
three pairs of French doors with vertical off-cen 1o
glazing bafs.open out onto the balcony. The hippesh
roof withw*ide bracketed eaves and ‘a pair of brick
chimneys capped with decorative stone, crown the
building. There is a later addition to the west
which is well set back from the front of the houwe,

"The stone has'beeﬁ“painted'grey.

Machar House
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- REASONS FOR DESIGNATION (cont'd)

(9) KERR HOUSE — 155 Earl Street, and

(10) FRASER HOUSE - 161 Earl Street, and

(11) MACHAR HOUSE - 169 Earl Street (cont'd)

Significanée: This home was built for William ‘

" Grant. John Breden bought it in 1870 for his
daughter, Mrs. Henry Cunningham. TIn 1876 a fire
destroyed the upper storey which was subsequently
rebuilt. In 1932 the house became the Agnes Maule
Machar Home for Women which it still is to-daye.

It is the westerly house of the group of three

houses on Earl Street.

This‘residence is a square bracketed three bey
house‘of hammer—dressed limestone. It is of two
istoreys and on the lower there are French doors
w1th transom and wvertical off-centre gla21ng bars
on either side of an arched and fan-lighted entrance-
way. The upper and lower storeys are divided by a

‘1~.¢stone strlng_course across the front elevatlon..

Sash w1ndows, later.than the orlglnal 'aro in the
upper storey. The hipped roof has wide eaves and

is bracketed and the bed mould to the eaves soffi-.
is curved around the brackets where these abut the -
‘stone work.,, A pair of brick chimneys, originallv
both with stone caps, sit atop the roof. The por-h,.
which is a later addition, .covers only the entran:<cway.
To the west is a fretwork porch which runs along the
side of the main section of the house. The front
section of the house has been painted a pale grey
but the natural s&oﬁe has been retained in the reur

sections. - e T

. X
At the rear of the property is a w1de stone
coach house with a hlpped roof. Its bays have been

altered to accommodate several vehicles.
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REASONS FOR DESIGNATION (cont'd)

(12)

ST. ANDREW'S_MANSE - Southwest Corner of Clergy and Queen Streets

Significance: Until 1841 ministers of St.

Andrew's Presbyterlan Church llved in rented
houseso Slnce that date they have occupled

this dignlfled Regency House which is situated
beside and to the rear of thé Church itself.

It is a credit to the clergymén and to the

members of: the succe551ve congregatlons of thl 4\~*
Church that the bulldlng has remalned unaltercd

and in such~excellent condition. Nor has the

siting, which. is heré so important, becn inter-

fered with.;'beorge Browne designed this residence

‘with a sense of proportion and great attention to

N

detail. The contrast of rough and smooth in the
stonework serves to:accent the architectural’
déféilé-éﬁd"tﬁé symmetry. The wrought iron
balustrades,  the fén-light and the wooden porch
to the side~éll serve to add lightness. It is
among the finest town houses in Kiﬂgston.

This tw0'stofey square house fhree bays wide,
with its front fagadé/?gbihg south to Princess
Stregt, is built of hammer-dressed limestone.

It ié situated at ohe end of a long expanse of
lawn broken by trees and a circular driveway with .
island planting cingse to thé house. To the wést i

a kitchen and stable w1ng and attached to this, a

high stone wall.

4
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REASONS FOR DESIGNATION (cont'd)

(12) ST. ANDREW'S MANSE - Southwest Cormer of Clergy and Queen Streets (cont'd)

A base, string course and fascia under the
eaves, all in smooth ashlar, unify the two sections
of the front elevation, the string course and
fascia continuing around the Clergy and Qucen Strect
sides of the house proper. The main section of the
house is topped by a hipped roof and the chimneys
are grouped to form a strong centrél stone element
on the fooﬁm The wing has a gable roof and small

brick chimney at the end.

The original sashes with their distinctive
glazing of -full panes, half and quarter panes on
the three main clevations, have been retainod.
throughouf. The rectangular sash windows of the
front elevation are surrounded by smooth stone
drchitravés which in the lower storey rest on top
of the stone base, while those of thc upper storey
continue down to meet the string course and enclos:
a plain smooth stone boloW'the 511].~ The two, .
side w1ndowa of the upper storey are Gmphd%ll(d
by narrow bracketed balconies decorated with low
iron railings. The main entranceway has a semi-
circular arc¢h with smooth stone architrave to matc!
that of theAwihdows, and plain capitals at the
springing_of the arch. A simple fan-light 1s

above the door,.which has. been replaced.

To the west the stable and kitchen wins is
visually liﬁﬁed to the wall by a continuous series
- of semi—éircﬁlar and elliptical arches in the lowe:
stéféy.“ The_érchéﬁ”in‘the.wing enclose cascment
windows while those in the wall are blind. The
windows in the upper storey of the wing are also
casements. The“wholemof the front facade enbracing
the house proper, wing and garden Qall, is given

added interest by . series of shallow projec%ions.

The (lnrgy Stroot tacado has two pdlrS of

French doors on the ground floor. Thost are

protected by a Regency style porch which runs along

most of the elevation. The two windows of the
"second storeylhave similar detailing to those of

the front facade.
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REASONS FOR DESIGNATION (cont'd)

(12) ST. ANDREW'S MANSE - Southwest Cormer of Clergy and Queen Streets (cong'd)

The windows of the Queen Street facade are
rectangular, without any decorative architrave
and a small attic dormer faces west. The two
>shallow pfojectipns of the front elevation are
repeated heres At the join between the main part
of the house and the west wing is a two storey
projection containing an entranceway facing Queen
Street and .triple windows facing west. The
fenestration of the wing includes four two-light
éasement windows, one of them with two ndrrdw side

lights .

Attached to the rear of the garden wall is
a stucco garage and storage building of later date
with a lean-to roof and parapet wall faéing Queen
Street. A fence of fine spikéd wrought'iron

ralllngs w1th llmestone base and square end pillars,

d1v1des the garden fiom Clergy Streot, while on
the Queen Street side, the property is defined by

a painted board fence.

(13) BILLCROFT - Hillcroft Drive off Union Street

Slgnlflcance. This residence was built as a

‘v1lla for Frances Manning Hill; it has been
the home of Slr Alexander Campbell and was
once used as ‘the Hillcroft Academy.. The build—

ing was notable for its commandlng site which
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REASONS FOR DESIGNATION (cont'd)

(13) HILLCROFT - Hillcroft Drive off Union Street (cont'd)

originaliy included the area of the small
subdivision now surrounding it. The warm brown
tones of its stone are an unusual featurg in
Kingston and it bears a distinctive trademark
"of its architect, namely the upper storey arched

windows.

This house is an example of a country villa
built by 'a wealthy professional man of taste.

The building has been well maintained.

Thig’two and a half storeyvhouse is built
of hammer-dressed rubble limestone with shallow
.vertical projecfions of smooth stone at the
tfront corners. It now sits at fhe centre of a

crescent and is screened by maple trees.

The front elevatlon of the house is leldel

inte’ three sections. By. the é~of e shallow véntr(
progectlon and pedimento. The central section -
has a dodrway with side lights-and is decorated
with brackets. It is protected'by a wooden pnrch
with two pairs of square columns at the flont
and matching single pilasters to the rear. An
enclosed second storey has been added to this
porch obscuring the éentral'window of the second
floor and the vertiéal line created by the
projection. At the top of this central portion
is a smali round window and a pediment. The
rsectioné on eithg; side‘gfegélikeb;ﬁwide windcws
with side 1ights on the lower storey, a string
". course, and a pair of semi-circular arched windows
on the second storéy. '
The east elevatior Has a pair OftFrench:
doors wifﬁiQEHE\Iightsﬁgpening out onto a large
1one storey porch. A shutgeféd‘window completes the
fenestration on this floor. On.the upper storey arc

three grouped semi-circular arched windows and a

shuttered plain sash window.

The west elevation has a semi- c1rcu1ar archcd
landing window which has been partlally obscured

-by a small addition in concrete. This section of

¥
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REASONS FOR DESIGNATION (cont'd)

(13) HILLCROFT - Hillcroft Drive off Union Street (cont'd)

(14)

the house is topped by a hipped roof with wide

bracketed eaves. Four large brick chimneys enclosing

a total of ten flues top the roof. To the rear is

a kitchen wing with casement windows and a small

one storey angelstone'addition and attached to

this kitchen tail is a carriage house of rubble

stone with semi-circular arched windows and a sloping

roof,

BARBERRY COTTAGE - 102 Centre 'Street

Significance: Barberry Cottage was built for

Mrs. Henry Cassady, widow of a mayor'of Kingston,

by her son-in-law, after her only son was

drowned in front of her King Street West home.

This large rectangular sﬁané:éottageiis an

simple stone

with a touch
case this is
verge boards
glazing bars

the house.

'e;ample ofAﬁhe success often obtained by combining

buildings with wood details done
of lightness and elegance. Tn this
achieved by the use of ‘the sculptured

and the intricate pattern of the

on the French doors at’ the front of

The addition, although extenéive, does not

interfere with the original building. .

s

This rectangular two storey hammer-dressed

and rubble stone house has a simple doorway with

>
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REASONS FOR DESIGNATION (cont'd)

(14)

(15)

TR M A S A

BARBERRY COTTAGE - 102 Centre Street (cont'd)

side lights and a transom light. On either side

of the entrance is a pair of wide French doors

with an intricate pattern of glazing bars and
shutters. A porch (probably later) with groups

of Tuscan-like columns stretches across the - .
front. The second floor windows are rectangular
casements which are close under the caves of the
hipped roof. An extensive one storey additicn

has been made in recent years to the south side.

68 CENTRE STREET

Significance? Built about 1836-38 as a modest

country villa, this brick house is an interesting

~contrast to the large stone and stucco villas in

the same neighboutfhood. “¥n spité& of extensive -
modern additions at the reaf, the house retains

its‘original cottage charm.

Thls storey and a half dwelllng of red brick
is three bays w1de and has a. gabled roof wide
soffit, and moulded eaves return.- In-the front a
centre gable has a turned finial with pendant over
a double casement window. There are later; small.
shed dormers on either siae of the.central QableA'

and the'chiﬁﬂeys are inset at each'énd of the root.
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REASONS FOR DESIGNATION (cont'd)

(15)

e

68 CENTRE STREET (cont'd)

A verandah stretches across the front of the
house and its hip roof is supported by single slender

columns at each end and similar double cplumns

. rising to a pediment over the entrance steps. The

door with two vertical panels and the simple side
lights is slightly recessed in the brick facades.
Large double casement windows are on each side of

the entrancewaye.

The sides of the house both have two double
casements on the main floor and two smaller windows
on the upéer flobr. At the rear a 1aré¢ two-storcy,
recent addition in brick obscures the back of the

original building.

ELMHURST - 26 Centre Street

Significance: This hcuse; built.for Hugh Fraser
a well-to- do merchant, stands opp051te Bellevue
House and 1s é; 1nteres€ing contrast to it.

The house 1s ‘notable for its siting, Wthh
originally must have given a beautlful view of
the water from the south side,.for the interes-
ting variety of graceful windows and fhe richly

detailed woodwork. It represents a style and
size of villa built in this area which had only
recently become part of the City of Kingston.
This spacious residence is a square stone building

of two and a half storeys. w1th\some later—dormers

T
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REASONS FOR DESIGNATION (cont'd)

(16)

ELMHURST ~ 20 Centre Street (cont'd)

rectangulaf windows upstairs. All are shuttered.

in the hipped roof. The eaves are wide and
bracketed and the roof retains the old metal

sheeting. There is a long one storey addition to

the west. The Centre Street elevation is divided

into three sections: the central portion houses
the entranceway with its decorative door and
semi-circular arched side lights. This is

protected by a wooden porch of Italianate design

above which is a grouping of three narrow, elcngated

semi-circular arched windows. These, in turn, arc
crowned by a small round window which is under a
pedimeﬁt. Tﬁe northern section of the facade

has a shuttered sash window on each floor, while
the southern section has two narrow, long arched

windows downstairs and two narrow elongated

On the ground floor of the south elevation, thre:
pairs of tall French doors with side lights open
onto the fretwork porch which runs the length of
the house. The second storey enclosed poich
occupies only the central section and is flanked
by a pair.of sash windﬁW;; ‘Thé pérthern elevation
has a semi-~circular arched landing hindow in the
centre and two sash windows to one side - one up
and one down.

re,

(17) - BELLEVUE HOUSE —- 35 Centre Street

et st .

= .

=

A National Historic Park marked by ‘a National

Historic Sites Plaque.
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REASONS FOR DESIGNATION (cont'd)

(7) BELLEVUE HOUSE - 35 Centre Street (cont'd)

Significance: Bellevue House is of special
‘historical and architectural. interest. It was
built as a country estate by the merchant
Charles Hales, hence the sobriquets "Tea Caddy

. Castle", "Muscavado Mansion" and "Pekoe Pagoda".

However, Hales lived in it only briefiyn Its

most famous tenant was Sir John A. Macdonald whe
occupied the villa from September 1, 1848 to
August 31, 1849. At this time he was the Member
of the Legiélative Aséembly of the Province of
Canada fpffKingston. The house was purchased by
the Federal' Government in 1964 and has since been
restored and refurbished. It is:open to the public

as a national museum, '

Beilevpe House is an example of a villa built
in a romantic Tuscan style by a well-to-do merchant
who could gfford an imposing residence away from
the customéry location attached té his shop. The.
design-is wholly light-hearted and asymmetrical but
is unified by the wooden base moqlding and theé
dentils of the eaves. The villa'benefits by kuving
set off in grounds which are- stlll ample evea after

the sale of a small number of lots in recent vear-.

s

Bellevug House is a two and one-half sterey
L shéped residence with a three storey towcr 3 tin
re;entrént éngle and a lower kitchen and servant.
wing of two storeys. It is built—of stone with a
woddeh base moulding around its various sectione.
Ahove the bése moulding, the stone has been covered
with stucco fo provide a smooth sufface for the
shadow effects created by the fretwork eaves, the
verge boards and the marduee roof over the sccond
floor balcony¢ The tower,. which houses the main
' eétrance, haS‘é large porch with simple colunns
'topped by a b@lustfadeg . On the ground floor,
French‘doors,open onto this porch; the windows of
the second floor lonk out onto the roof of the
porch and each of the windows of the third floor
has a sﬁall balcony of its own. The~towér'isA
~topped by a hipped roof with a dentil motif on the -
fascia that mé@ches that of the verge board. The

roof is crowneq:byig spear=-shaped finial.

Page AS;
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REASONS FOR DESIGNATION (cont'd)

(17) _BELLEVUE HOUSE ~ 35 Centre Street (cont'd)

The west facade is decorated by a second storey
shuttered window which opens out onto a balcony with
a wood balustrade and a marquee-like canopy with
dentils. The kitchen wing is attached to this
section at right angles. It is a half storey lower
than the main secticns of the house and is without

the decorative dentils and shutters.

The south facade of the other main section
consists ‘primarily of a three-sided projecting bay
with casement windows on the upper and lower storcys.
The eaveswére decorated by the same dentils found
elsewhere on the house. The portion of this section
which faces into the private area of the garden has
a doorway protected by a caﬁopy similar to that of

the west facadea

The windows of Bellevue are of various sizes
from French doors to small casements under the‘eaves.
All, except those of the kitchen wing, are shuttered

and have off-centre vertical glazing bars.

- The redr sections ofthe roofare topped by .
three large stuccoed chimneys each having several

flues,

(18) HALES COTTAGES ~311-317 King Street West
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REASONS FOR DESIGNATION (cont'd)

(18) HALES COTTAGES - 311-317 King Street West (cont'd)

Significance: Five cottages were built for

Charles Hales of Bellevue, and rented to govern-
ment officials when Kingston was the capital of

the United Provinces of Upper and Lower Canada.

The most westerly of these was subsequehtly burned.
Their location on the Front Road, near the Governor
Generall's residence at Alwington, made them valual e

properties.

This cottage row with walled gardens in front
and stone stables (now garages) at the rear, has
great charm. It has been well maintained and, in
spite of modifications to the front and the back,
serves as an excellent example4of early, prestige,
row housing. The strong pattern of the dentils
found at Bellevue is repeated here and suggests
that the architect responsible for the one, may

. have exequted,the design for the other.

Hales Cottages, a range of four attached, one
and a half storey dwellings, are built of ruhtle
stone covered with stucco. They are unified by a
wooden base moulding, a canopy formed by deep eaves
decorated by verge boards, and the stone wall at the

street line,

Each Qﬁit is threé bays wide with a gabled
entrance porch and, on either side of the door, arc
wide windows with side lights and transoms. The
front entrances have fan-lights, side lights and
doors fecessed in stone arches. The typical door
had four fielded panels but the doors now vary in
designe ’

"=

The upper storeys are lit by large, gabled
dormers, originally two to a unit, .each having two

windows. Three ofsfﬁe=cottages now have modified

dormers te give a full second storey and an

additional window above the centre doors. The

dormer modification in No. 311 gives a cross

gable roof line. 1In Nos. 313 and 315 the original
- gables have peen joined to give, across the two

units, a common roof line with four gabled windows.
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REASONS FOR DESIGNATION (cont'd)

(18)

(19)

HALES COTTAGES - 311-317 King Street West (cont'd)

Three large brick chimneys mark the divisions of

the range into four units. The window frames and
panes have been changed so that there is no longer

uniformity in the overall fenestration of the range.

At the rear there have been various additions
and alterations. Only No. 317 remains as it was,
the others have all becen modified. No. 311 has a
large, siﬁgie, gabled dormer, as in its front fac.de,

and a triple window at the stair landing. No. 313

" has a wide, ,shed dormer and a large, two-storey,

stucco extension with a sunrcom in the second storey.
No. 315 has a large, shed dormer of dark green
clapboard, with windows of various sizes, but the

original Palladian window at the stair landing has

been retained.

ST. HELEN'S - 440 King Street West

Significanéé: Thomas Kirkpatrick, then Mayor
of Kingstoﬁ; moved into his new qquntry villa
in Septemher 1838 and was remove&:fram office
because he;;ived outside the town. This house

FERY
has served .as the residence for such Kings-

2
7 .

tonians as ‘James Morton, F.J.B. Pense and
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REASONS FOR DESIGNAIION (cont'd)

(19) ST. HELEN'S ~1440 King Street West (cont'd)

A+Bs Cunningham when it was known by various names -
Mortonweod, Ringwéod and Ongwanada. In 1860 the
house was selected to be the one night residence

for Albert Edward, Prince of Wales; but the

Orange Arch incident cancelled his visit to Kingston.

The building was expropriated to serve as
Sydenham Hospital for veterans of World War I and
in 1924 became Headquarters for the Fastern OntariB
Military District. An extensive wooden wing at the
southeast corner was added bty the Government but
the hodsenitself has been excellently maintained.
St. Helen!'s is an elegant country villa set well back
from the street, with a decoraﬁive cast iron fence
;and a pafed driveway to the house. There are
extehsive, well landqcaped and well maintained
grounds extendlng on the south to the lake shore.
The Federal Pcnltentlary Service now cccupies

St. Helen's.

This, ihrme, two storey bulldlng of stone

- “covered w1th stucco is built on an 1rreﬂu1ar rlan.
The central-sectlon has two rectangular bays
rising thé.full height of the house to pedimented
gables. To the east, a single storey wing with a
hipped roof and central chimney is. joined to the
‘main bulldlng by a narrower sectlon with a gable
roof. The truncated hip roof of the main building,
with two massive, central chlmneysg extends to the
west to cover the éemi-circular west side elevatioﬁ.
All of thévfoofs are covered with ribbed metal and

the deep eaves have boxed cornices and brackets.

S~

N,
3y

A portlco with carriage-way and closed porch
was added. about 1866 to protect the-main entrance.
Square wooden columns on stone pedestalg, three at
'each corner, support a moulded archltravv and
balustraded balcony. Wooden panels, each with two
nafrow aréhéd lights, enclose the porch. The main
entrance, }écessed in a semi- eliiptical opening
has Ian-llght, side lights and doublc doors with

eight flelded panels.
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REASONS FOR DESIGNATION (cont'd)

(19) ST. HELEN'S - 440 King Street West (cont'd)

On either.side of the entrance, in the bays,
are double casement windows with transoms. 1In the
second storey the windows are double casements, as
in fhe single storey wing. To the west, in the
facade, the main floor casement window wilh stide
lights is set in a slightly recessed panel. All

the windows in the facade have shutters.

The semi—éircular western elevation has unusual
fenestration symmetrically placed on either sidé‘
of a centralbprojection which rises to a chimney.
On the secpnd floor, oriei windows with double
casemeﬁts,nare supported by decorative corbels and
have awning type‘roofs. On the main floor, the tall
double winabws.each have two circular lights above
twolnarfOWiarched lights. This window is repeated

in the rear elevation in the westernmost opcning.

The rear c¢levation has double Froench donors
with transoms and side lights on either side of a

central door, now blocked. 1In the second storey,

there are déﬁble casements with side lights and
onefdouble‘casement; The.main. feature of the rear
elevation ié a wide balustraded platform at the
ffrst‘floof‘level (added about 1855) which is
exﬁended in fhe centre to support two large
circular columns and pilasters, rising two storeys
to:a huge pedimented gable. Under this gable, at
second storey level, French doors open onto a

balustraded balcony.

The long wooden addition at the south-castcern
corner obscures the remainder of the original

building.
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REASONS FOR DESIGNATION (cont'd)

(20) HAZELDELL - 225 Mowat Avenue

" Sicnificance: Sir John A. Macdonald's mother

resi‘tcdhere from 150062 and his sistcr s trom

2

1860 {o’:‘i_g‘j'()S. Later it was the haune for maas

»

vears of; 'he Reve Conway Cariwright, Choplain
at tht Ponitentiary. This simple but el
Regency leoase is architecturally valoal Le Vo

its fine propeirtions and successtul sitirg.

Thi tve-idence is a vectang thar el b
threec bay s wide of hammer-~droessoed limestone vt
a hippcd 100t aud a pair of stone chimnoy <, o
at each rh(!i.. On either side ol the simple o1ty
protected by a porch which replaces i ¢ il
full ].en‘_‘;i}.}l porch,is a pair of shattered Troeioh
doors with of {f—centre veritical g:']d?ill!_‘; bose s
sccond storey windows, sct (:lom‘*_un(hl the ¢ v
are small “ca-.ments wilh the same off—cci i

‘glaziug.

There dis 2 later adiition at {he 1ear ob
housec. Biyoni this wing the grownd diop - oti 1
to an old quorry, now a park. This c<reet o

feeling of space and distant. vicwse

The house is sited well bact from the oo

ta
and at an anefe, with Large tree- in an osler s

front area.

Page 54.
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REASONS FOR DESIGNATION (cont'd)

(21) ROSELAWN - Union Street West at College Street

Designated as being of national significance by

the Historic Sites and Monuments Board of Czinad«;

in October 1969,

For many years in private hands; latterly the
resid nce of the Commandant of the National D(fcnee

Collcegen.

Eignificaﬁ&e: For a variety of reasons Roselawn

is one of the most notable of Kino-stonl's countivy
houses of the 1%40's. Tt still .1>r~taine me-t o g
original piarkland sites As a proupine of buildiv

it is superbly integrated and onc of the f<‘4w locat
examples of the heiusce-wall-porte~cochiire corl inal ?a
The original stable block remains intact and eive

to this courtyard area a sense of eunclosuice which

is as impm'fr.,ant as the architccture itself,
Individual]X, 1he 1)111'1(11';1g<; show great vieour in

the handl ix _’, ol '--fb,g)’t.h. -1"}-1,(;» d(tdl]s -(jrn('l, t he Er et ic

as a whole, llltllﬂ:,l;{]} h-mn(\what marrc Vb.‘v chhwnges i
the rool s face gm(l--.in the rear clevation . oi th
house ard 1y the loss of the tront verandibhe. 1l
building as a whole retains. its oz iginal ~cale an
integrity.  Tho interior spaces are very f inc,
especially the stairvcase hall -although.{lici ¢ have
been later altcrations in the detaile 11 docs hov ve .

still retain-a sense of elesance and space.
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AN

REASONS FOR DESIGNATION (cont'd)

(21)» ROSELAWN -~ Union Street West at College Street (cont'd)

Roselawn is a rectangular stonce house with
three bays, pedimented front and rcar, Until 1000
the Venctian windows of the ground floor opened on
to a one-storcey- verandah which ran across the front
of the housec. They have since been replaced by
shorter sosh windows and the verandah by a smalloe
portico. A screencd porch has becn added to the
side. The cnlrance doorway is ant claborle cbassieal
compos,i't;'ion with pilasters and side lightss  The

upper storey fenestration is intact except for the
~

insertibn of a small window to the left of the \\\

central windovw. The clevations are crowned by a
brackcled corniec, a hip roof, a pair of ma--ive
block chimney<. The rear elevation makc- u-e o
¢ triads in the torm of fenestration and aiche:
mezzanine window has been inscrted on the vight.
To the west runs a high wall articnlated with a
niche and blind arcading ending in a pedirentod

. _
porte-cochére. To the north there is a one and o

half stordy stable block. The inteérior coatains
several spacicus 1’*c=c<’-[)l:iob rooms which retain souve
original wooduwork and fittings including an «lab
orately carved marble fireplace. The 1o ce =tais
case hall has a stair of threce flights and two

landings and its original hardwood balustirade.

(22) ROCKWOOD HOUSE - Kingston Psychiatric Hospital Grounds

S pAs
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REASONS FOR DESIGNATION (cont'd)

(22) ROCKWOOD HQUSE - Kingston Psychiatric Hospital Grounds (cont'd)

Significance: On July 23, 1841, tenders were called

"for erecting an Italian Villa near Hatters Bay for

John S. Cartwright, Esq., according to plans and
specifications drawn for the same. Tenders to be

opened on the 10th of August next. G. Browne, Architect.®
John Seclomon Cartwright, a lawyer, was President »f the
Commercial Bank of Kingston, Member of the Legisiative
Assembly and twin brother of the Reverend Rohert Gavi i

Cartwrigh@.

His funcral procession was from Roclkwood House,

" in December 1845 and the next gpring his widow o1ierdid
the house for rent but had difficulty finding a tenant.
The Crown subsequently purchased the property in 1856
and the house was occupied by D?. J.P. Litchtield,
Medical Superintendent of the ﬁéw Asylum for Fem.le
Lunatics. Rockwood Hospital wa; the first scparaste

institution for the criminally insane in Ontario.

H

The house continued to serve as the residenc» ot
superintendents of Rockwood Hospital until 1055 when
it became-impossihle to get sufficient domestic help

. for such ; lavrge eﬁtablishment.: Tntil recently, it
has been ﬁ%@d as a nurses! residinces. Tt has bocss
well maintained and its spacious site enhances this

handsome country villa.

Rockwood House is a large, two storcy villa with
a two storey central wing and two twentieth ccontury
additions at the rear. The original section is ol
limestone stuccoed and lined to imitate a smooth
ashlar surface. It is set on a stone base faced 11ith
wood toppéd'by a wooden base course. This base, o
wooden string course bhetween the first and second
storeys aﬁd the chunky dentils under the caves, all
served to ﬁnify the various elevations. A further
unifying factor was the basement-<level fenestration
with its high segmental arched windows and deep wells,
This unity has been broken by the additions which do

not carry out these architectural featurcs.

The front elevation, which faces north, is
dominated by a massive two storey central portico
: 7 .

with_a pediment and Tuscan capitals to the columns.
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REASONS FOR DESIGNATION (cont'd)

(22) ROCKWOOD HOUSE - Kingston Psychiatric Hospital Grounds (cont'd)

This portico projects from the front wall only the
depth of the wooden columns -~ the sguare columns to
the outside as they are attached to the building and
the round, lighter columns towards the Confre as thes
are free-standing. Behind these columns (he wall
area is divided into a central portion consisting of
a doorway with transom light and simple wood surronnd
in the lower storey and a small rectancular window in
the upper} A pair of pilasters separates this central
section from the curved arca on cither side. The
area to the east of the doorway bas a tall, n.rvcw,
round arched window in the lower storey and a rectan.
gular window in the upper while the area to the west

: has these same features but bLlind rather {1han open.
The other windows in this north clevation arce sronped
into four pairs. All are double casemenls with oft -
centre glazineg bars; those of the lower storey hanvine
a transom and those of the upper cach having a brackoted
wooden balconys A shallow projection of the wﬁl] ancd
cornice serves to accent both corncers of the tacade
and f)rov'i_dcs a fru:n(\‘ for the fenestration and portico.
This symmelry is carried through in the 1ibbcd meul
hipped roof where a pair of pierced'brick chimney s
with plain stone caps rise on either side of the
panelled octa<conal dome which is crowned by a shylight

of rose-coloured glass and topped by a ball finial,

Facing west the facade of the house proper i
simple, consisting of a shallow projecting bay which
includes the cornice and which is decorated with a
blind arched niche in the lower storey and a rect in-
gular fielded panel in the upper. The south section
6f this elevation has a paif of French doors with

transom and two smaller double casements in the upper.

The rear elevation, originally bLoasted the
symmetry of the front. The area is framed by the
same shallow projections of the wall and cornice
"found on the front elevation and is dominated by the
wing with its gabled roof, eaves return and wood ¢roins.
There are no openings on ﬁhe side of Fhe wing hut the
end has three large windows with side:ljghts, and

originally, double casements. The upper‘gfbréy*
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REASONS FOR DESIGNATION (comt'd)

(22)

ROCKWOOD HOUSE -~ Kingston Psychiatric Hospital Grounds (cont'd)

window opens on to a wooden balcony with an oriel
bracket and tent-awning roof. To the west of the
wing a sunporch replaces the original greenhouse and
the upper storey window with its classical woocd
surrounds has been altered to contain a door. To
the east of the wing the original French door with
transom remains in the lower storey, altheough it
opens oﬁ to a porch of fairly recent construction.
Above, is a window whose design repeats that found

in the west side.

e

The two-storey addition intrudes on both thg\\

south and east elevations. It has an ashlar base, TN

three small windows and a shed roof. To the east there \\\\

“are two high basement windows, three sash windows in \\\\\

the lower storey and three in the upper; to the

north a tall narrow sash window and a door in the

upper storey which serves as a fire exit. The franine
of the fenestration in the remaining section of the
east facade is original. The basement level has

French doors with side liéhts which open on to a
terrace. The first and second floor windows are d:uble
casements with side lights and the facade is completed
by a rectangular segmental arched blind in the main

storeys

Rockwood House is situated in the beantifalls
landscaped and generous‘érounds of the Kingston
Psychiatric Hospital. The house itself is on a slicht
rise approached by a sweeping curved drive. A limv-
stone coach house is to the northeast. Limestone walls
serve to terrace the site and to provide some smaller,
sheltered arecas. A sta;rway of éione decnrated with
a scroll design on either side leads from the hou.c
level to the lower level which originally led down to

Lake Ontario.
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REASONS FOR DESIGNATION (cont'd)

(23)

BISHOP'S HOUSE - Cormer of Bagot and Johunson Streets

Significance: This Classical Revival building is
an importsnl andmarh in this historic avea of 4

City. i~ {esting {0 the mommmental and its fous.

P

storey %’n‘.ieﬁh‘; outl the theme of inpress) ve
architectuy o wituc ssed by Che near by St Goeor et
Cathedral complex.

.With'in. t%vé hlovks, the Anglican Church has boen
represnfwmt by St Georgels from 1575 on, +iw
Congrepat ional ists by the First Congregatsonad Ol

;
of 1865 {uew the Masonic Temple), the Baptis

the Baptist Clutrch of 1882 (now Greek Orthadox), e

the Catlinlics by the vesidence of the Bishiop.

The fir={ (ncord of this building is it Or foan e

Papers ot 2%nd day, 1313 when the Rev. Macdomnetld

house i~ fisled as gecupiced by 100 Addinglon wmilis s
On Decowmber 8, L8L8 the Rev. Alcsounder Masdnnunetl
advertisod the building and gardeun te Let with
immedianic posscssione. In his will, he lefl the b
and land Uor an edncational esgtablishment @ov JERRTE I
Bishop Ganlin moved out din 1846 to allew e Hieteos
of Notie Dame to oeenpy the building while Lhey hooid

classes Pirst su a small roughcast buildimg and § ¢«

in the old St. Joseph!s Church.
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REASONS FOR DESIGNATION (cont'd)

(23) BISHOP'S HOUSE - Corner of Bagot and Johnson Streets (cont'd)

In 1897 and again in 1914 large additions were made
to the original building to house the Convent of the
Congregation of Notre Dame and the young ladies who

studied there.

The original building is of smooth faced limestone
with the joints minimized on the walls facing Johnson
and Bagot Streets. The other two walls, less

prestigious in location, are of rubble construction.

The main facade on Bagot Street is five bays
wide with emphasis on the central bay. The door is
recessed in a panelled reveal which has an ellipse

‘head. The side lights terminate in Gothic Revivael
‘arches wh%ch make a pleasant change in mood from

?the overall Classical style. Dentils run herizon-
tally above the door proﬁér. Thev. are repested

'in the ellipse arch on the wooden doorway surroun-
which is separated from the reveal by stonework.

The surround arch was supported by two pilasters

with Composite capitals. These were remcved recently.
On the second floor level, the central window is

"Palladian .and uses an .ellipse:..arch in the centre.

On the first two storeys-the windows are
rectangular and have twelve panes. The third sterey
is marked»off by a string course, running arcund the
Johnson and Bagot sides. Its windows are topped by
a segmental arch of scphisticated workmanship. The
Johnson Street Tacade has only six window openings,
as the central area is snlid to accommodate interior
fireplace construction. The opposite side of the
house has two doors with transom lights above them

on the main floor and windows on the upper storeys.

In 1877, the roof was altered to a mansard style
in order to provide more living quarters for the
Sisters. Poésibly, the original roof was hipped and

had two large chimneys, one at each end.
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REASONS FOR DESIGNATION (cont'd)

(23) BISHOP'S HOUSE - Corner of Bagot and Johnson Streets (cont'd)

At the time of this description, the building
is partially demolished. Tt has recently been
bought by the City of Kingston and the site will be
used for senior citizens'! housing on Bagot Strect
and for a new public library on the remaining land.
The Bishopt!'s House will be preserved and usecd o1

library functions.

(24) VICTORIA AND GREY TRUST COMPANY - 168 Wellington Street
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REASONS FOR DESIGNATION (cont'd)

(24) VICTORIA AND GREY TRUST COMPANY - 168 Wellingtom Street (cont'd)

Significance: This is one of the threes rounded
corner commerciasl-residential buildings which
George Browne designed for the downtown area of
Kingston in the 1840's. This particular building
has three definite phases. Originally, the first
floor was a series of segmental arches. During

the 195015, alterations were made to the offices

of the Victoria zsnd Grey Company con the ground
floor. The. lower portion of the arches was filled
in and the upper portion was glazed. Cn the
Wellington Strect gide the arches were replaced by
square-headed windows. The corner itself was
replaced by three angular. openings. and square stone
posts to shelter the main entrance. In 1270, the -
Directors of the Company decided to expand. 1In
doing so they made the commendable decision to
restore the architectural integrity of the building
by replacing the arches. The gracefulness of the
round corncr has been returned to the building.

The exterior lighting has proved to be an effective
method of discreet advertising which does nnt co?er

any part of the building itself.

This is a throee and a half slorey round corner
building of swoolh ashlar with seven bays on Brock
Street and thirteen on Wellington Street. The ground
floor consists of a series of segmental arches on a

projecting base with a keystone and a raised block
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REASONS FOR DESIGNATION (cont'd)

(24) VICTORIA AND GREY TRUST COMPANY - 168 Wellington Street (cont'd)

‘at the springing of each arch. Those arches which
are glazed have a single, broad band of wood acress
the arched area at the springing of the‘arch. In
restoring the corner, the architect has emphasized
it by using a curved window which is totally free

of glazing. Where deorways oécur,-they are recessed

in order not to break the rhythm.

The ground floor serves as a foundation for
the upper storeys which consist of an alternating
pattern of windows and simple pilasters sct on a
string course. Thesc pilasters serve to vigugilv
link the second and third storeys and to counter-

-act the length of the building on Wellington 5Street.
In the second and third storeys, the windows have
been altered and, at present, there are scme of the-
6riginal double casements, some later double-hung
sash windowsbwjthout glazing bars and some fixed
windows of plain glass. The narrow rectangular
attic windows which sit on the wide moulding above
the third storey appear to be in their criginal
state. The roof slopes gently up from the front of
the building so that it is scércely visible except

- for the parapeted dividing wall between the seventh
-and eighth bays on Wellington Street and the brick.
chimneys. The rear faééde of the‘building is rubble

limestone and brick.

(25) 103 WELLINGTON STREET
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REASONS FOR DESIGNATION (cont'd)

(25)

103 WELLINGTON STREET (cont'd)

Significance: The earliest records available
for this house are the assessment rolls for
1839-1844 when Widow Bosley and her son, Benjamin

are shown as occupants of a one-storey cottage.

Sidney Scobell, a builder, came to Kingston from
Devonshire about 1830 and his deed to this lot

was registered in October 1841, although he had
been in poésession for sometime. A particularly
charming early Greek Revival cottage showing a
whimsical treatment of what. became a stern and
correct style. It has the scale and character of
the earlier Loyalist style cottage. This home
was once designated for democlition. It has been
restored in two stages by successive owners to its

present state.

This is a storey and a half house with kitchen
tail of stucco and clapboard on frame. It occupies
the full width of what is a small lot and has the
right of eaves over the adjacent properties. The
front facade has an elaborate doorway with glazed
side lights and recessed panels and an elaborate
fan-lisht with a central -medallion and elliptical
glazing to. the side. Fluted pilasters and a lintel
with Soanian key and medallicn in rclief provide
the frame of the doorway. This same pattern is
repeated over the windows on either side of the door-
way. These windows have a six on six glazing pattern
and shutters, with the lower portion panelled and the

upper louvered. The three main architectural features

of the front are framed by a wooden base, ccrner
‘pilasters and a fascia board which is the background
for the dentils along the edge of the eaves. The:
roof is a gently slopiﬂgﬁégbled roof. The house
proper has double casement windows in the upperAA
storey on either side with“dentils edging the eaves.
To the rear is a window in the lower storey and a
replaced dormer with casements in the roof. 1In the
kitchen wing, which is covered with clapboard siding,
there are three windows in the lower storey and one
in the upper. There is a simple doorway which lets
on to the walled garden. This area to the rear was

formerly a shed and later a parking area.
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REASONS FOR DESIGNATION (cont'd)

(26) 67 EARL STREET

Significance: '~ Although this residence has under-

gone a series of minor alterations it none the

less remains important as a corner building of a
block éﬁ%homés Whiéh‘Wére;éiichné%fuptedfbcférg_
1860. ﬁﬁilfrfér’Christophéfﬂdi§éns,'iﬁ was sold

to Peter Hanley in 1858 and remained in that family,
into this century. Consequently, it is known to

many older residents as the Hanley House.

This two—sforey paihted brick residence with
gabled roof rests on a limestone base. It has a
central doorway which is decorated by a recent
wooden surround with pilasters and pediment. There
is evidence of a simple rectangular transom light.
The door -itself is modern. The.main facade. isy,
at present, four bays widei?aAltéréfions in;the‘
brickwork would indipate>that'i£uwas probably
originally five bays wide with a centrally placed
window over the doorway. This window still exists.
There is a pair of windows in each storey on either

side of the doorway. The alterations to the west

e side of the doorway have resulted in a 1arge,fixéd

"

window with transom in the lower storey and a single
window in the upper. All the windows in the house
are double-hung sash and have had their glazing bars

removed. The roofline of this facade has been broken

by a steep turn-of-the-century gable dormer with a

B N T TR
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REASONS FOR DESIGNATION (cont'd)

(26) 67 EARL STREET (cont'd)

doorway opening onto a curved balcony supported by
brackets. 1In the 1960's a pair of shallow dormers
were added to let light into the attic area. Two

brick chimneys are set on the ridge pole.

The end facades both have the gabled roof with
eaves return. On the east end there are no openings;
on the west, there were originally two pair of double-

hung sash windows, one pair to each storey. One of

these has been altered and enlarged, so that now

it has a fixed glazed portion with a transom.

The one~storey kitchen wing has a gabled roof
and eaves return and is topped by a tall brick
chimney. There is a single window on the Wellington
Street facade. The original openings on the rear
of the house prdper have been obscured by an upper
storey wooden addition. It is pfobable, however,
that there were a pair of windows in the upper and
lower storey, both at the easterly end. The roof-
line here has also been broken by a steep gabled
dormer, this one having a rounded arched window as

its opening.

(27) LASALLE COTTAGE - 65 Earl Street

-

Significance: This small frame house is an
interesting contrast to the larger brick and
stone houses nearby. It was likely built in
the later lééO's as its site was advertiscd as

a vacant lot in 1858 and the house does not
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REASONS FOR DESIGNATION (cont'd)

@n

(28)

LASALLE COTTAGE - 65 Earl Street (cont'd)

appear on an 1865 map. In the 1870's it was

occupied by Disreal Beauchamp.

This small, one-storey frame house is
nestled between two large red brick buildings.
Its roof originally had gable slopes of equal
size, but at presenﬁ, a single slope covers the
rear portion of the house proper and the addition
to it. A tall slender chimney rises from the centre

cf this slope.

The main facade, four bays wide, is of white
clapboard. The doorway in the second bay, is
protected by a later enclosed porch with glazing.
In the other bays, the original French doors have
been replaced by double casements with a fixed
panel below. Under the eaves a row of dentils and
a series of S shaped brackets add elegance to an
otherwise simple facade. The back wall of the
house is finished with vertical wood panelling and

contains three double-hung windows. The first two

~have a six on six glazing pattern, while the third

has an eight on eight.

63 EARL STREET

68.
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REASCNS FOR DESIGNATION (cont'd)

(28) 63 EARL STREET (cont'd)

Significance: This brick house was buil. for
Thomas Maxwell, a ship's captain, about 1853.
It is not on an 1852 map but it appears. in an
1854 assessment roll. It has been discreetly
converted to house three apartments while main-

taining the essential character of the house.

This two-storey building is constructed of
red brick and rests on a limestone basement.
Flemish bond is used on the main facade and English
bond on the other sides. The low pitched gable
roof has a broad overhang with the eaves return,
moulded fascia boards and other trim painted white.

A brick chimney is inset at each end of the ridge.

The original door surfound, of which there is
still some visible evidence, has been replaced by
a simple wooden entablature supported by delicate
pilasters. The transom and long upper penels of
the door are glazed. In the lower storey the
original French doors have been rcplaced by double
casements with a fixed panel, altﬁough the transoms-
have been retained. Double casements have been
used in the second storey as well. All the windows

have ashlar sills.

The west wall abuts the adjacent building on
"-the iower stoféy and is blank on the uprer, vhile
the east side has a two-storey porch with a door
opening on each level. A small two-storey structure
at the rear of the house was the original onz-storey
kitchen wing. It has been expanded and altered to

e R
contain a mews type apartment.

The back wall of the house proper conteins two
windews on the ground floor, identical to those on
the Earl Street facade, and three randomly placed
windows on the upper floor. A rubble stone wall and
the kitchen wing create a sheltered and private

gardén area at the back and side ¢f the house.
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REASONS FOR DESIGNATION (cont'd)

{29) - 33-55 EARL, STREET

Significance: This pleasant double house was
built for an engineer as his home and rental -
property. 1In its site, scale and layout it is’
typical of the better class dwellings available
to military offigers stationed in Kingston in the

middle of the 19th century.

This double house is constructed of regularly
coursed rough ashlar on the front and rear,‘with
rubble limestone on the exposed end. It is of
seven bays, three in the western section and four
in the one to the east. The eﬁtranceways are in
the first and fifth bays, while the carriage-way
is in the fourth. All of these have flat arches
and the entranceways contain an elliptical fan-light
with side lights and a six panel door with brass

fittings. T . o

The windows are six over six sash except for

the basement onesﬁwhich are rectangular and create
a high basement which served as the original kitchen.
All have voussoirs and those of the first and second
storey rest on vertically furrowed ashlar sills.
The gable rog% is topped by three symmetrically
placed stone chimneys. A stone parapet divides the

, double stone from the house which abuts it on the
east. The carriage-way leads to a 1argé garden area

defined by o high stone wall, formerly the rear wall

R - o e - s -



SCHEDULE "A" TO BY-LAW NO. 8892 Page 71.

REASONS FOR DESIGNATION (cont'd)

(29) 53-55 EARL STREET (cont'd)

of the stables. Both sides of the house have
kitchen additions and large dormers. These additions

have altered some of the original openings in this

facade.

(30) 49 EARL, STREET

Significance: This residence is a simple but
dignified building of good proportions. The land
on which the house was built wasAbéﬁght b&
William Johnson in January, 1833 and the first
assessment roll (1839) seems to indicate he was

assessed for a building on this site.

This two-storey stone dwelling abuts the
adjacent building to the west. Tts gabled rcof
with plain raking trim and moulded fascia boards
is topped by two\;igestone chimneys set at each
end of the ridge. The Earl Street facade,
constructed in regularly coursed rubble stone, is
three bays wide with the méin entrance in the left
bay. A wooden addition,.with fluted Corinthian
pilasters supporting the upper members, éerrs
the original square-~headed doorway. The glazed

transom and voussoirs are visible, but obscured.
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(30) 49 EARL STREET (cont'd)

 The door, a replacement, is reached by three
wooden'steps and rests on a furrowed ashlar sill.
The remaining bays on each floor contain recent
casement win&ows resting on vertically furrowed
ashlar sills and have flat arched heads of upended
limestone blocks. The southeast side of‘the house

has one small window in the uncoursed rubble wall.

The rear of the house, three bays wide, has
a one-storey frame kitchen addition with an attached
porch. There is a long garden with an avenue of
A.large maples extending to the remaining wall of a

stable.

(31) 47 EARL STREET

Significance: This building‘is a modest residence
of pleasant proportions which has been altered
slightly but sympathetically over the years. It
was built for Mrs. Rachel Sterling, whose boarding
house had burned in December 1840. She continued
to take in boarders in this building for about

twelve years.
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(31) 47 EARL STREET (cont'd)

Off-white stucco covers the original frame
structure of this simple two-storey house. Its
gabled roof has a chimney at each end of the
ridge. The entranceway on the Earl Street facade
has a sqﬁare-headed doorway with glazed transom
and later door. Each of the other two bays contains
rectangular, double-hung windows with wood surrounds
and louvered shutters which are replacements but of

' old materials. The brick platform with iron railing

is also a replacement made from old materials.

There are no openings in the side walls but
the rear facade has two windows on each floor. They
retain the original six on six glazing pattern. A
one-storey gabled addition, also in stucco,shas

recently been added to the back of the house.

(32) 218 KING STREET EAST

e

Significance: ThiS/Wegl—proportioned house, in

its refinement aﬁd simplicity of decoratién} is
typical of the town residences being built in the
1830t's by second generation Loyalists. Built by ~

R. Flanagan as a private house, it was converted

by 1850 into a grocery store and remained a commercial
building until 1971 when Dault and McLean Drugstore
closed. This building is now being used as a medical

Clinic .
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(32) 218 KING STREET EAST' (cont'd)

Located oﬁ the northwest corner of King and
Earl Streets, the building consists of a two and one-
half storey reéténgular Elock facing King Street
with two later additions, one in brick and one in

concrete block, on ﬁhe‘gack.

The original structure, with its gabled rooi
and white frame raking trim and fascia boards
“accenting the roof lines, is in regularly course:l,
hammer-dressed limestone with the back and north
sides in a rubble course. There are three chimnevs
on the main porti!ono On the gable at the Earl Street
end, the original stone chimney still stands, while

on the northigable and on the slope of the roof the

other two chimneys are of red brick.

During the years that this building was a
store, the ground floor of the main facade was
altered to accommodate two large plate glass windows
on either side of the centrally placed entrance.
However, this portion, as a result of the period
conversion, has beenrreconstructEd in wood and
painted white. A plain horizontal frieze between

the first and second storeys, whose end limits are

aligned with the vertical edges of the windows

in both storeys, is the main unifying element
across the facade. It is surmounted by a slightly
projecting cornice. Directly supporting this
entablature in the central portion are two slender
pilasters flanking the main doorway which is
recessed into the wall. Tt is square-headed with

a wooden transom panel and glazed side lights; the
plate glass door is modern. On either side of the
doorway,‘@géckmble-hung windows separated by narrow
vertical planking replace the plate glass ones-.
Flanking these window;>and extending from their
sills to the entablature are pilasters like those

at the main door.

Four double-hung windows in the second storey
rest on vertically furrowed ashlar lugsills and

are surmounted by a flat arch of rectangular blocks
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(32)

(33)

218 KING STREET EAST (cont'd)

with a wedge shaped keystone causing them to spread
slightly. All of the windows in the main building
have white frame surrounds contrasting with the

rough limestone.

The north side of the house has no windows.
On the Earl Street side there.is an attic under the
gable and below it two second storey windows, like
those in the main facade. The ground floor, however,
has been greatly altered. A window has been convorted
into a door surmounted by a wooden gabled projection.
Asymmetrically placed between this door and the
old window on the ground floor is an opening which

was probably the original door for this facade.

The brick addition, in a common bond on the
back of the original structure, slopes from one and
one-half to one storey but is hidden behind a one and
one~half storey parapet on the south. There is a
single window in this wall, and on the opposite

side of this brick addition is a door.

_ The garage, which is directly linked to the
brick structure, is of concrete block and, being
out of sight, does not detract from the original

building.

220-222 KING STREET EAST
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(33) 220-222 KING STREET EAST (cont'd)

Significance: This modest house is an important
component of the streetscape. The Tand on which
it stawds was bought in 1866 by John Neill, a
grocer . The iwo-storey double house was completed
by 1868. It is a good example of a design popular
in the 19th century when those who could not
afford large houses built these comfortable two

family units and rented one.

There are only three exposed sides to this
building. Red brick in a common bond faces the
King Street and south sides while limestone in
a rubble course faces the back. The building re:ts
on a limestone basement. Construction in brick
had, earlier in the century, been a rare occurreisce
in Kingston because of its scarcity. By the 186u's,
good local brick was more plentiful. The only
chimney for this~building, also in brick, is

centrally placed on the ridge of the roof.

The front has been painted pale grey with
shutters (replacements) and trin on doors, windcws,
and roof painted black. Two frame "sentry box"
doorways at each end of the facade rest on concrete
bases., Composed of an enclosed projecting portico
borne on Tuscan pilasters, each box has a set ol
double~leaf doors. These lead to an inner square-
headed dooy with a transom of two fectangular parmnes.
The sentry boxes have been there for many years yet

bricks in the facade indicate they are later additicns

Four windows in.this facade are double-hung
sashes and retain their original glazing. Those
in the lower storey are located betwcen the two
doorways. Two basement windows, below ground 1. vel

have flat arched heads of limestone and are protect-:!

-by a low cast iron fence. At roof level there

is ;hﬁoujded frieze beneath the soffit.

The exposed end wall is of unpainted red brick
and contains a single window, off-centre in the

second storey. The transition from brick to
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(33

(34)

220-222 KING STREET EAST (cont'd)

limestone at the rear is marked by stone quoins.
The rear placement of doors and windows is identical

to the front.

"224-226 KING STREET EAST

Significance: This handsome double, two-storey

stone dwelling with arched carriage-way at each
end was built in anticipation of Kingston remaining
the Capital of Canada. John Watkins and Samucl
Muckleston, merchants, were the owners of this mo.t

important bdilding in the streétscape, one of the

few Kingston buildings showing Palladian influence.
Its arches have a grace and rhythm seldom attained

with rough éshlar. Although the doorways have been
replaced, almost all the original windows have

been retained. Their design helps to counteract &

certain heaviness in the design of the building.

Thiéraouble residence of substantial scale
is symmetrical throughout except for recent minor
alterations. TIts céntral two~storey portion of
six bays houses the main entrances while the
projeéting pavilions are two éndione~half storeys
high and contain carriage-ways. The high basement
level of the central section has four rectangular
windows with voussoirs while the bays abutting thc
pavilions contain the stairways leading up to the

main entrances on the first floor. 1In the main
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(34)

(35)

224-226 KING STREET EAST (cont'd)

filoor all openings are recessed in a series of
interlocking segmental arches while the cavriage-

ways have semicircular arches.

The double casement windows of the first floor
have transcms and off-centre glazing bars. A
smooth ashlar string course éerves as the sill fo
the second storey double casements in both the
central and end sections of the building. From
this string course in the end pavilions a central
recessed area creates projecting cormers which
extend through the upper string course to meet in

segmental arches. The pavilions are topped by

smooth ashlar blocks to form plain parapets.

The upper string course serves a: sills for the
small rectangular windows in the third storey ol
the end pavilinsns and forms a frieze for the
central s¢ ticn..  The eaves ate:stpported by
brackets aad the gabled roc! is divided by a ston.

fire wall.

The King Slreet facade is of regularly cours. d
rough ashlar while the ends and the rear are in
rubble limestone. One side df the rear has been
stuccoed. Both ends are without openings but the
rear, which faces onto a large garden, has fenes-

tration almost identical to the front.

232 KING STREET FEAST

Page 78.
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(35)

232 KING STREET EAST (cont'd)

Significance: This simple stucco covered building
is said to have been erected about 1812. Built by
the Stuart family as a rental property, it remained

in their possession until 1850. It is known to

older residents as the Davis House becausc the owners

of the Davis Dry Dock occupied it for many years.
It provides an interesting contrast to other

buildings in this streetscape.

This two-storey double dwelling is constructad
of stucco over the original heavy frame énd the
rear addition is covered with insul-brick siding.
The gable roof of the main section has large
chimneys inset at each end of the ridge. The rear
two-storey extension has a flat roof and the one-
storey addition has a shed roof. The house iz set

directly against the sidewalk.

The building is five bays wide with a deeply
recessed double entryway framed by plain wooden
supports to an entablature with dentil trim. The
entranceway contains the steps to the two doors
set in simple wood frames. The deep reveals are
panelled with simple narrow boards set verticslly.
Two very small windows on either side of the doorway
are in the basement. The four windows of the main
floor and four in the second storey are double
casements, deeply recessed and have simple wooden

frames.

The north side has no windows in the main
house but two in the addition. The south side bas
one small window in the main structure and thice

placed irregularly in the extension.
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(36) 240 KING STREET EAST

Significance: This large red brick house, though

greatly altered, is an important component of the
streetscape. It is said to have been built hy
Archdcacon George 0. Stugrt for a relative, Dr. Murrvavy.
In the 1830's it houscd the Misses Leach's Scminaty
and from 1837 it served as the home and office for
such men as the Rev. William Herchmer and William
Ferguson, then for a series of doctors -

Horatio Cates, C.A. Irwin and A.R.B. William, For

a time it was the Children's Aid Office aﬁd is now

a Day Care Centre.

The main section of this large two-storey
red brick building has a broad hipped roof with
a wide overhang. The King Street facade has a
central doorway with a wooden surround of fluted
pilasters supporting a broken pediment. Flanking
wide window emplacements have fluted suppprfs {for
an entablature and each contains a central window
with narrbw#sid9_%ights, all with fixed transom
-1lights. The fivémagzdows in the sccond storey have
shaped woodeh lintels trimmed with moulding and huve

decorated lugsills. They are double-hung and no

original glazing remains.

The William Street facade has three similar
windows on each storey in the main building and

although the original doorway te the office has
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(36) 240 KING STREET EAST (cont'd)

been bricked in, the shape is still visible. To
the rear, a brick wing two-storeys high set on a
high limestone basement is narrower than the main
structure; it has irregular fenestration in both
placement and size. The gable roof of the rear
wing has eaves returns at the rear and a wide brick

chimney on the south side.

At the south side of the main structure
there is c¢ne window in the second storey and the
" main storey is completely obscured by a later,

heavy one-storey porch, now enclosed.

(37) EMPIRE LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY - 243 King Street Fast

Significance: This large and impressive commercz:i
building was built for the Commercial Bank of the
Midland District. The main entrance was on King rtreu
while the William Street entrance provided access

to the_apartments of the manager. He and his family

i S
lived on the upper two floors with the exception

of their dining room which was on the ground floo: .
The building was sold in 1867 to the Merchants Bank
of Canada and again in 1899 to the directors of
Regiopolis College, who used it as a high school

for boys. In 1914, it became the Kingston office
.of James Richardson and Sons, Grain Merchants, wh:
remained there until 1925. At this time the
0ddfellows'! Relief Association bought it and four
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(37) EMPIRE LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY - 243 King Street East (cont'd)

Vi

. form a head fdf"Eaghlwindow. The moulded stoneu- \

years later, in 1929, sold it to the Mutual Relief
Life Insurance Company. The Empire Life Insurance

Company purchased it in 1936 for their Head Office.

This building is a fine example of the Baroque

revival style, not only in the variety of ways in

Page 82.

which the stone is handled but also in the intercsting

use of form and detailing. The addition to the
building is an excellent example of an architect's
and client'!s thoughtful collaboration. The joining
itself is skilfully carried out; the material and

lines of the original are carried through in the

addition so that it blends with the original section

and adds to the dignity of the structure as a whole.

It in no way competes with the older section of the
building but still is worthy of being part of a

handsome commercial building.

This is a three-storey commercial building of
smooth ashlar in which the stone has been given a

variety of treatments in order to emphasize certain

architectural features. It rests on a bevelled

ashlar basement two blocks high. In order to

compensate for the slope towards the lake on the

William Street side, the wall is built up with
hammer-dressed stone which is concealed by a low
terraced ashlar wall with élternaﬁing groups of

balusters and panels.

Above this basement level, the ground floor
of the King and William Street facades is built
of rusticated ashlar. Round arched windows rise

from the BaseAand the rustication is fanned +to

\<

surrounds are recessed in two planes from tha wall
surface and each window has a recessed panel
beneath its sill. A continuous double entablature

divides the first and second storeys of these two

" facades. The frieze above is blank except for the

. finely carved stone brackets which support the

window balconies. Their base, which is the upper

entablature, forms the lintel of the lower storcy

windows.
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(37) EMPIRE LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY - 243 King Street East (cont'd)

In contrast to the rustication of the grounud
floor the second storey is of plain ashlar with
raised and bevelled quoins at each corner. The
windows are square-~headed and each opens onto a
balcony where the pattern of panels and balusters
is the same as that of the terraced fence. Narrow
pilasters frame the window 6n the sides and the
top is decorated with a lintel above a rectangular
panel and supported by a pair of scroll corbels

with an acanthus leaf motif.

Between the second and third storeys, there
is another entablature. TIts cornice is decorated
by dentils. On it rests the third storey and in
order to give the impression of a square building
with a wing, the third storey ih the fourth and
fifth bays of the William Street facade is lower
and simpler in design. It consists of an altgfuatjnﬂ
pattern of a rusticated panel with rectangular
opening and a window with a plain ashlar surround
and set in smooth ashlar. At the corners thesc
panels end in four-~flue chimneys of the samc pattcrn.
A moulding.edges the hipped batten roof. The Towes

section on Williamuétreetvﬁas a flat roof.

The two entrances to this building, onc on
King Street and the other on William Street, a1
indicative of a dignified commercial enterprisc.
The King étreet entrance preojects from the wall and
fises in three levels which follow the same hotizontal
patterns as the building itself. The door- is panclicd
with a rectangular glazed transom light and abeve
this,-a round arch contains a shell motif carved inp
stone. The-second level is an open balcony similar
in design to the small balconies in front of thw
windows. The square groupings of columns and two
pilasters in the Tuscan order support the cntabhlaturce
-which is decorated with dentils. 1In the third stovey
is another balcony identical to that of the second.
Opening onto it is a small round arched window whosc
head breaks into a decoration on the roof, thusg

adding further emphasis to the main entranceway.
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(37) EMPIRE LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY - 243 King Street East (cont'd)"

The decoration is in two levels with a projecting

ashlar moulding between, and at the top. The

lower portion is rusticated with a scroll at each

side. The upper portion.is a rectangular block

with a horizontal recessed panel.

The William Street doorway is smaller in scale

and only one storey high. It is surmounted by a

balcony similar to those in front of the windows.

Supporting this balcony are two full columns and
two pilasters, square and rusticated in keeping
with their position on the ground floor. The

columns rest on rusticate& plinths which form a

casing for the steps rising to the door which is

set in a round arch whose head contains an undecoratod

ashlar semi-circle.

The northeast and southeast facades of the

building are simply treated and contain numerous

windows randomly placed. The older section is in

rubble limestone while the rear of the‘addition is

- in bricke .

(38) FRONTENAC CLUB - 225 King Street Fast

T

P
R

This building on {he southon

Significance:
34

corner of King and William Streets wWas buill fov

the Bank of Montreal which occupied the proemises

until 1906. As was customary, the bank oifices

oo s S
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(38)

FRONTENAC CLUB - 225 King Street East (cont'd)

were on the lower floor of the three-storey
building and the bank manager and his family
lived in the two upper floors. In 1008, the
building was sold to the Frontenac Club, a local
men's organization and extensions were added for
such activities as bowling and billiards. A
plaque affixed to the north side of the building
lists the members who lost their lives in the
First World War. In 1934 the Club was sold and
converted into apartments. It is maintained as

such today.

\

In the dignity of its design it is a fine example
not only of the Qlaséical Revival style, but alsc
of the symbolic use of'architectufe. Bankers

were anxious to have their business associated
with stability and culture by their prospective
clients so that a classical design for their budid-

ings, symbolic¢ of these elements, was popularaf

The building consists of a,thfeeustorey

'reétanguléf bloék-faciﬂémKing Street with numerous

random later additions to the eastern and southein
sides. The King Street facade, constructed of
smooth ashlar, is in thé classical style, boing
divided into three bays by four Doric pilastiers
rising in a giant order through two of the
storeys. Their bevelled plinths rest on a base
two blocks in height. This emphatic vertical
thrust supports the horizontal entablature
which divides the second from the third storey.
The pilaéters are continued on a smaller scale
into this atfic level and directly support the
cornice. Strongly projecting from beneath the
broad hipped roof, the cornice echoes the entab-

lature above the second storey.

What was formerly the main entrance to the
bank from King Street is now the entrance to one
of the apartment units. The doarway, the central
point of the facade, has an attached pediment
resting on two pilasters. Here, as on the other

pilasters, edges are horizontally furrowed. The

85.

3



SCHEDULE "A" TO BY-LAW NO. 8892 Page 86.

REASONS FOR DESIGNATION (cont'd)

(38)

FRONTENAC CLUB -~ 225 King Street East (cont'd)

doorway is square-headed and recessed but the

door has been replaced by a modern one.

In the classical manner, the fenestration
of the main facade is symmetrical, with a window
on either side of the entrance and in each bay
of the two upper storeys. The giound stcrey
windows are the most elaborate. Resting on selid
ashlar lugsills with two plain sgquare brackets
beneath, the windows have a moulded surround znd
are surmcunted by a blank ashlar frieze and a
cornice~like projection. A rectangular block
above the cormnice projects from the wall surface
and is the width of the window surround. The
three second storey windows have no entablature
but are otherwise identical to those below them.
In the attic storey, thgiwindows with the same

moulding and sill, are shorter than the cthers.

On the William Street facade, also coﬁstructed

of smooth ashlar, the overall design is the =ame

as the main facade except in the treatment of
windows and the entrance. The windows are lcss
ornate and rc\f on plaln ashlar lugsills which 4.
not progect S0 fur as those on the main ifacade.

Two plain rectangular windows are recessed into_
the basement level and protected by iron bars.

A1l the windows of these two facades retain their

original- -glazing

The side entrance, located in the east fravy
of this facade, is approached by a set of boxed
ashlar steps which rest on a bevelled base. This
formerly gave access, through a spacious intecricr

hallway and up an elegant staircase, to the private

. apartm&nt of the bank managerof Each of the double-

leaf doors has a cornlce—llke pxogectlon with a

row of small dentils below it on the top rail.

The rectangular upper panel is glazed in an as synunet
rical pattern and this is repeated at rlght angloes
in the transom. Four Smaller‘recfangulaf‘fieldcd

panels form the lower half of the door.

The east and south sides of the building

lack the decoratlon of the street facades and are

e
o

At i s et
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(38)

FRCNTENAC CLUB ~ 225 King Street East (cont'd)

partly obscured by random additions of hammer-
dressed limestone. They have an irregular pattein
of fenestration and two minor entrances and a

dormer window has been added to the east slope of

" the roof. Broad rectangular ashlar chimﬂeys

are inset on the north and scuth sides of the

roof.

A regularly coursed, hammer-dressed limestone
wall about seven feet high, covered with metal,
encloses a side yard to the south. The entrance
in the wall, close to the main building, is
marked by two square ashlar posts about nine feet
high with a flat concrete top. On the north sids,
the wall curves out from the main building and

extends along William Street to the next structure.

A -door -and..a gate-in thgﬁwall_give aqqggs to,the

service yard. The frame door is set under a

solid ashlar 1lintel and has a surround of
alternating broad and narrow blocks. The ashlar
gate—posts_neﬁtion,beleled,basesiand haye.g .
cornice-like projection on top with a-diamord -
crown. The gates, simple frame structures, are

in a poor state of repair.

The one and one-half storey building east of

the main building and adjacent to the William Stireet

-portion of the wall was fTormerly a private bowling

‘ﬁiiéy for the Frontenac Club. It is a flat roofed

structure of regularly coursed hammer—dressed
limestone. Radiating voussoirs form an arch around
a semicircular window, formerly an attic window
which sits on a projecting ashlar lugsill. The
other opening in the long rectapgular building is

a door to right of centre.
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Significance: This two-storey building was

constructed by John Solomon Cartwright to s

as a law office and residence for his law stu:lent. .

Tt is directly linked to his residence at 221 hin:

Street East. At present it is a private rosiugn

The design of this building is simple, in
keeping with its function. However, in order to
provide a wvisual link between the two buildings
many of the same structural and decorative
features are used in both. Although not as tall
as the house, the office section has the same
broad hipped roof with wide bracketed eaves. It
also is constructed predominantly of hammer-
dressed limestone with ashlar used for the
decorative features, the basement, string course,
quoins and pair of chimneys. These features are
emphagi;éﬁ‘by\the“qhamfering and furrowing on the

main facades vhile they are simplified elsewhire.

""" The main entrance, on the long north side,
is a large but simple doorway with a double -lcaf
door of later date. There are only two windows
in this facade¢, one in each storey. As all other
windows in this building, they are double-hung wi
a two on two glazing pattern and a flat arched he
of rectangular blocks. A one-storey wooden porch

has been added to the eastern half of this facade

-

th

add
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(39) 223 KING STREET EAST (cont'd)

The King Street facade is two bays wide with
four windows in all, the two in the upper storey
being slightly shorter than those in the lower.
The south side has four windows symmetrically
placed and the projection which joins it to the

other building.

The eastern edge of the property is marked
by a limestone wall with nine openings covered

by a frame lattice.

(40) 221 KING STREET EAST

Significance: This impressive house was built

as the town house of Jsohn Solomon Cartwright
and was well suitced to Lhe prominence of the
Kingstonian who was a lawyer, judge, banker and

Member of the Legislative Assembly of Upper Canada.

In order to“have his law office and law students
nearby, Cartwright constructed the attached two-~
storey building at 223 King Street East. The

house at 221 is maintained today as business and

professional offices.

This building has been given a highly
individual character by the unique handling of
planes, textures and details. In spite of the

numerous unsympathetic additions, its character
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(40) 221 KING STREET EAST (cont'd)

is still strong. The two and one-half storey
square building is of three bays and rests on an
ashlar basement. It was originally tWo'storeys
in height before dormer additions were made to
each slope of the hipped roof. In textural
contrast to the regularly coursed limestone which
comprises the main wall surfaces, furrowed ashlar
is used for the quoins, window surrounds, string

course, basement and wide corner projections.

The King Street facade provides the best
preserved example of the treatment of some of
these elements with the play of strong forms, in
the quoins and the string courses, giving the house
a sense of solidity. The raised and bevelled quoins
are set on broad vertical bands of ashlar which

..

project from the hammer-dressed surface. This \k\\\\‘
o
verticality extends through the eaves to the ashiar ™~

chimneys centered over the corner projections.
There are four chimneys, two on each of the side
‘slopes of the roof, resting on a projecting base.
decorated by a recessed panel and crowned wilh a
double cap. Counteracting this verticality and
breaking through the quoins is a continuons ashl
string course over a broad band of stucco belweern
the first and second storeys. The stucco ccvers
bond timbers inset to support a verandah which
originally extended across the front and {the Farl
Street sidé of the building. The windows and dooey -
way with their raised ashlar surrounds also add
to the play of planes and textures. The wmain
entrance is flanked by pairs of French doors and
all three rest on the ashlar base. A centrally
placed square of decorative stonework accents the
sides of {hEtlower window and door surrounds.

The three uppar storey windows which rest on
bevelled ashlir sills are double-hung and much

shorter than those below.

The main entrance is now covered by an
aluminum porch and inside the porch only ‘a portion
of the original surround is visible. The door

has also been replaced. On the remaining three
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(40)

(41)

221 KING STREET FAST (cont'd)

sides of the house, most of the architectural
features have been almost obliterated by extensive
modern additions and alterations. -Still untoiched

are the upper storey windows facing the lake.

The centrally placed landing window is larger

and lower than those on either side which rest

on ashlar lugsills supported by simple rectangular
brackets and retain the original eight on eight

glazing pattern.

Originally, 221 and 223 were joined by a

wrought iron fence on a limestone base with round

- ashlar posts, each topped by a ball finial. This

fence extended from the northern edge of the
property, along King Street and thence east along
Earl Street where it ended in the facade of a '

coach house, since demolished.

21 EARL SiREET

. | ———
Significance: This is another of the buildings

on a complete block of old limestone structures.
An 1815 map shows a building on this lot which
belonged to the Cartwrights and the propertyiwas
sold by them in November, 1867. That part of

the building which faces onto the garden has a
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(41) 21 EARL STREET (cont'd)

definite rural rather than urban feeling about

it.

This two-storey regularly coursed limestdne
house has a gabled roof with a broadly flared
overhang and wooden eaves return. A pair of brick
chimneys are located on the ridge of the house
proper while a limestone chimney tops the kitchen
wing to the west. The Earl Street facade contains
three levels, the basement being particularly high

_because of the slope of the land. Originally, there_
were six rasdomly placed large rectangular windows
in “the basement level and _at present, there are
only three. The first and second storeys are f1v:
bays wiae with double-~hung sash w1ndows_of varying
- sizes. The second bay contains a large elliptical
arch resting on a furrowed sill. The sﬁrround‘is
;iﬁ limestone with quoinedisides.- At the‘sprjnging
of the arch. are raised blocks which support the

solld stone curve w1th 1ts keystone.‘

PP -

At present because of the convers1on of the
house into two units, there is a door in the arch -
AWthh 1s completely obscured by an enclosed wooden
-porch.u Prev1ously, there was a tlrst storey~ T
entrance opening -onto a Wooden porch which ran the

length of the house.

The gabled wall facirg the lake has, at present,
one blind window 1nd one small rectangular opening
v.The or1g1nal entrance to. the stables 1s stlll marked

by a. palr of ashlar gate—posts;

The facade of the house which faces onto

B!

the garden appears to have been the main ontrance.

e = i

The dooriway in the centre bay has a glazed transon
and single side light to the left. In the bay, on
the lake side, is a double-hung sash window and.

in the westerly‘baylis a-large elliptical arch
opposite. to that on the Earl Street facade. It has
since been brlcked in and had windows added. The
second storey coxtalns three double-hung sash

@

windowse.




SCHEDULE "A" TO BY-LAW NO. 8892 Page 93.
o

REASONS FOR DESIGNATION: (cont'd)

" (41) 21 EARL STREET (cont'd)

The outside wall of the wing is in uncoursed
rubble stone and contains two small, randomly placed
windows. The basement windows and a square-headed

door, with the exception of its transom, are stoned

ovVer.

The lower pértions of the two remaining sides
are both obscured by sepérate wooden additions.
Howevér, the upper storey under the gable portion
contaihs a small window.and a door while the other

wall contains only a window.

e

(42) 20 WILLIAM STREET

Significance: Formerly a private house, this

was one of the first structures built on the
block of land owned by the Cartwright tamily.
In 1942, when the property was sold, it was

enlarged and converted to apartments.

This two-storey building is constructed of
hammer-dressed limestone. A regular course is
used on the ﬁorth wall where the main entrance is,
but on tlie east and south sides the stone is laid
in a rubble course. 'Thg west wall of the house
under the sloped section of the roof was extended
in 1942 and is now directly attached to the old

bowling alléy of the Frontenac Club.




e s el pmgn g e

SCHEDULE ""A" TO BY-LAW NO, 8892 Page 94.

REASONS FOR DESIGNATION (cont'd)

(42) 20 WILLIAM STREET (cont'd)

Covering the entire structure is a ribbed,
metal roof with a moulded soffit under the eaves.
There are two hammer-dressed limestone chimneys,
both located oﬁ-thé ridge of the roof. One marks
‘the rear of thé;égiginalitwo—storey sfructure and
is located almostfin the}centre of the present
building. The other, constructed in 1942, is on
the south gable. Thg 1942 additions to the building

were built of limestone quarried on the site.

The main entrancé, on William Street, is
protected by an enclosed porch in limestone. The
~entryway has a semicircular head'with voussoirs
radiating from the keystone. An interesting
feature of the entablature of this porch is the
concrete mouldings. Pieces of cord set into the

mould create the impression of vertical joints.

The gabled portlon of the William Street facade _
is two bays w1de. ‘A single basemernt window with
ashlar lintel and wood surround is located between
the two bays. Two rectangular windows are symmet-

. rically placed on each storey and have flat arched
heads bf*rectangﬁiaf:bidéké éﬁd—asﬂlaf'éillé'ﬁut’“:
the double casements replace the ofiginal windows.
‘A semicircular attic window (an original) is set
under an arch of radiating voussoirs but has a
wooden sill and surround with a fan-like glazing
pattern. The eaves returns are moulded and are

-.connected. by a .wooden string course.

The east facade, in”fubbléﬁiimest;ne, was
constructed in‘Ewdbsections with a second storey
being added over the existing ground floor on the
back of the house. The first bay of the ground
floor has a door leadlng into the lower portlon of
the ﬁ;ﬁse where the original bake oven is still

intact. Three rectangular windows are in each of

the other bays.

The left bay of the second storey contains two
large round-headed windows under separate moulded

concrete arches. These were added in 1942 and are
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42)

43)

20 WILLIAM STREET (cont'd)

from the Montreal house of Sir Herbert Holt, a great
Canadian financier. The windows rest on wooden

panels partially hidden by iron balconies set on a

concrete platform.

In the second bay is a smaller rectangular
window and in the third bay a larger window. A door,
formerly a window in the fourth bay opens onto a

concrete platform supported by decorative iron

brackets.

The south side, also in rubble course, was

enlarged in 1942. It has irregular fenestration.

'128-132 ONTARIO STREET

Significance: This stone row, known as Hardy's

Buildings, was built in the old commercial sectinn

of the city whqn Kingston was the capital. The

1841 assessmentrfgil noted the building as "not

quite finished".™ It-housed for a time the government
printers, Desbarats and Derbyshire. In the
succeeding years, it housed a variety of tenants

from Falconer!s Sailmakers, Haaz Vinegar Works,

-through a series of woodworking'firms such as

Carnovsky; Hooper and Slater, and the MacLachlans.

This large three-storey building is constructed

of hammer-dressed limestone with only the main
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(43)

128-132 ONTARIO STREET (cont'd)

facade in a regular course. It is directly joined,
on its east wall, to the old Nicholson Meat Market.
The gabled roof has a parapet at either - end and

also one between the seventh and eighth bays.
Supporting the parapets are decorative corbels.

Both of the red brick chimneys are on the east gable,
one on each slope of the parapet and imbedded in

the limestone wall.

The street facade is eleven bays wide. At the
basement level there are five windows with only
their flat arched heads now visible above the sidewalk
level. The ground floor exhibits the most irregular
pattern of openings. In the first and eighth bays
the segmental archways, originally carriage-ways, -
‘have heads of upended hammer-dressed blocks ‘bordering
them from the springing of the arches. They are now
filled in with a frame structure and contain modern
doors. Above each of the basement windows and also
in the eleventh bay of the ground floor are large

rectangular windows with modern glazing. Two doorways

:_have been modernlzed wh11e that 1n the tenth bay

..1s p0551bly the orlglnal.' The square-headed doublem

1eaf door rests on an ashlar base and has a framc

transom.

A Generally, the w1ndow and door openings are
of the same . constructlon, hav1ng flat arched headﬁ,
ashlar sills and frame surrounds but the glazing
pattern varies. Each bay of the second flocor
contains a rectangularvwindow with a six on six
glazing pattern. The third floor bays have smaller

windows with a six on two pattern. The regularity

h.of the fenestratlon 1n these two upper storeYS;

not only 1n de51gn but also 1n placement, glves the o

main facade unity and solidity.

Both side walls of this building are in fubble
course and were originally’blankf The south wall
now contains a fire escape. The beck,'enly elght
bays wide, is also in rubble course wlth a generally
irregular pattern of fenestration and door openings.

The two round-headed arches of the carriage-ways
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(43)

(44)

128-132 ONTARIO STREET (cont'd)

correspond to those in the main facade. There are
two modern doors and over another door, a narrow
concrete block extension has been built.. Each bay
of the second and third storeys contains one window
with those of the second and fourth bays being at a
lower level than the rest. The third storey windows
are, as on the main facade, slightly smaller than

those of the second storey.

NICHOLSON MEAT MARKET ~ Corner of Ontario and William Streets

Significance: Located on Ontario Street in the
0old commercial section of Kingston, the Nicholson
Meat Market was built as a house and shop. It may
be a slightly later addition to the row called
"Hardy'!s Buildings", whicﬁ the 1841 assessment roll

noted as "in progress'. Capt. M.T. Hunter had a

ship chandlery here in 1843; later it was used

for a time as an inn. Thomas McConville opcned

a butcher shop in the building in 1880. Nicholson
had taken over by 1887, bought the building in 1893
and continued iﬂ business there until the early
1950's. The building-is no longer in use, the

openings are boarded over.

This two and one-half storey rectangular
building, attached to the building to the south,
has a gabled roof and brick chimney with projecting

base inset on the free gable. Constructed of
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(44) NICHOLSON MEAT MARKET - Corner of Ontario and William Streets

hammer-dressed limestone, the Ontario and William

‘Street facades are regularly coursed while the

back is rubble coursed.

The Ontario Street facade, the only side where
the ashlar basement is visible, is four ba&s wide.
Smooth ashlar with avborder of horizontal and
vertical furrowing is used on the quoins and ‘the

window and door surrounds on both the street

. facades. Each of the openings has a solid lintel

and a surround of alternating wide and narrow blocks
flush with the wall surface. The first bay of the

Ontario Street facade has a rectangular window

like the four in the second storey. 1In the thlrd

bay--is a larger rectanguhar w1nd$w'probab1y ubed
for display purposes. There is a door in each of
the second and fourth bays, with the 1attefAbeing
slightly wider. An added feature of this facade
is the series of small projecting wooden pegs,-
resembling dentils,.on the fascia boards. Two

gabled dormers.,. probably later addlt]OHS, are

located on’ thlé Slope of" the roof.

The William Street facade, two bays in width,

has two doors on the ground floor. The door in

the second. bay “is wider and the surround indicatecs

that it may originally have been a large window.
Above these, in the second storey, are two rectan-
gular windows, and in the gable, two quarter round
windows with plain ashlar surrounds rest on
projecting lugsills. Wooden squares which project
at regular intervals from the line of moulded trim-

decorate . the soffit under the gable roof.

The back of this bbuilding( is in a rubble course
and has an irregular pattern of window and door
openings. The four windows, all located toward the
right side,'have.flaf arched heads. ‘In the central
bay of the ground floor is a small d06f>while to
the left of it is a large frame opening in the shape
of a_gable, flush with the wall surface, indicating

the shape of a former addition.

98.

(cont'd)
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(45%) ROYAL CANADIAN HORSE ARTILLERY CLUB - 193-195 Ontario Street

Slgnlflcance' Thls large stone row was bUJ]t f01

‘John and Willlam Breden to be used foA"“

hopq and
offlces w:th dwellings above.. IL occupies an
important corner in the old commercial district
and dates from the period when wharves on the
waterfrbnt;wGreﬁtheytfaﬂShipmentvpointéﬂforﬁﬂppcrﬁ_

Canada.

" The three-storey building is constructed
of limestone in a regular course with the string
course, quoins and window sills in smooth ashlar.
It has a gable roof and corbels support the
learapets and d1v1ders which. rlse to..three.sets of
large tw1n 11mestone chlmneys 11nked at_ the baqe.
The building is ten bays wide; the ground floor
so altered and obscured that original openings
cannot be easily seen. 1In the second and third
storeys, the flét arched windows are in a regular
pattern with the fifth bay at a greater interval
from the others. Windows in the third storey are
two-~thirds the height of those in the second storey.

No original glazing remains.

The Clarence Street facade of the main building
is three bays wide. 1In the ground floor the central
bay has a window larger than the others .and there is

a door in the third bay. The windows above, three
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REASONS FOR DESIGNATION (cont'd)

(45) ROYAL CANADIAN HORSE ARTILLERY CLUB - 193-195 Ontario Street (cont'd)

in each storey, correspond to those in the Ontario
Street facade. 1In the attic storey is a semicircular

window resting on a plain lugsill.

The other end of the building is blank, bearing
the remains of brick fireplaces and flues from an
adjoining building, now demolished. The rear of
the building has irregular fenestration and wooden
fire escapes. Most of this facade is obscurcd by

stone and wood extensions.

The stone extension on the Clarence Street
side is rubble in a random course. Originally
a two and one-half storey warehouse, the gable
roof has been raised and the upper storey windows
altered. At the back, stucco and tin obscure ali

but the rubble limestone base storey.

(46) '6-10 PRINCESS STREET

Significance: These two buildings, with 253 Ontario
Street, form a pleasant grouping of early limestone
buildings pliﬁgéd as commercial apd residential

propeftiéé in tﬁé central business district of curly

Kingston.

Y
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(46) 6-10 PRINCESS STREET (cont'd)

Number 6 Princess Street is a two-storey
hammer-~dressed limestone building with a gently
pitched shed roof and a carriage-way to the west.
This has since been enclosed with a modern garage
door. It has a simple, slightly rounded arch with
a keystone, also in hammer-dressed limestone. To
the left is the entranceway and to the east of this,
two windows which were originally'double casement.
Three double casements are in the second storey.

The end and rear of the building are of rubble
limestone with randomly placed openings which have
been altered. The upper section of this part of the

building is covered with tar-paper.

The building presently houses a combined

commercial and industrial use.

Number 10 Princess Street is a three-storey
limestone building of foﬁr bays. The front facade
is hammer-dressed while the others .are rubble. The
openings in the lower storey have been alter«d but
the voussoirs are still wikible to indieate the
original window openingé and eﬁffanceway. At present ,
there is a single double-hung sash window to the
east and a large display window with entranceway to

the west. The second floor has the four original

-, double-hung sash windows.with their six on six

glazing patfern. The third storey alsa-retains

its originél windows, one being blind. The eave:s
are supported by a pair of decorative stone brackots,
one at each end, and the parapeted end walls risec

to hammer~dressed limestone chimneys topped by a

narrow capping.-
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(47) WESLEY TERRACE - 272-286 Johmson Street

Significance: Wesley Térrace is a handsome row
of brick faced dwellings across from St. Mary's
Roman Catholic Cathedral and the Bishop's Palace.
It was built for William Anglin (1836-1886) and
namedfby:him~althoughﬁitgwasﬁ§om¢timgsArefgqredfﬁo
as Tosééll's Buildings. This is ;n'exéellent N
example of a quality row on a good residential

street. It is mainly unaltered.

This row of six dwellings is faced with red
brick in common bond.- The first unit has brick -
sides and back, the others have backs of rubble
stone. All rest on a limestone basement. The gakle
roof has parapeted end walls and dividers, each
rising from stone corbels to double, joined brick
chimneys at the roof ridge. Three units have
later dormers on the front‘slbpe of the roof and

all units have rear dormers.

Each unit is three bays wide and five of the
units have a doorway in the third bay. A wide doox
and fan-light with Y-tracery is set deep in a semi-
circular arched opening with panelled reveals. Only
No. 282 seems toc have the original double-leaf door.
Four doorways have a variety of canopies over them.

The sixth unit has at the side a one-storey porch
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(47) WESLEY TERRACE - 272-286 Johnson Street (cont'd)

with double columns supporting a simple wooden

pediment trimmed with dentils. Tﬁe porch leads te
a doorway with a transom light set into the rubble
stone side of this sixth unit. There is one small

window beyond the door.

Each unit has two wide arched windows in the
basement protected by areas on light wells. The
two windows in the main storey and three in the
upper storey of each unit are flat arched with
limestone sills and most of them have the original

six on six glazing pattern.

To the rear of the sixth unit is a long
two-storey brick wing and other units have various
rear additions in brick or frame which obscure
the original fenestration.

(48) MCINTOSH CASTLE - 14 Sydenham Street . '

Significance: Thif is said to have been the first
major project for architect John Power, who had come
to Kingston from Devonshire. Built in 1852 for
Donald McIntosh, a ship owner and forwarder, this

Gothic dwelling was sold in 1857 to Joseph Doyle,
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(48) MCINTOSH CASTLE - 14 Sydenham Street (cont'd)

whose estate sold it to the Reverend James Brock.
Later owners were D. Stewart Robertson and a series
of doctors. The house is built high on a corner
near City Park and is in striking contrast to the

other buildings in the block.

This Gothic Revival villa is built on an L-shap«d
plan with an octagonal tower set in the angle. The
ends of the wings are bays with three planes. A
square tower is centred at the back of the east wing
and a larger kitchen extension at the back of the
north wing is hidden from the street by a high stone

wall extending from the back tower to the garden gate.

The one and one-half storey dwelling is constructod
of rusticated stone with the string course, sills an:d
copings on the battlement in smooth ashlar. The
central tower is three storeys with battlements
supported by stone corbels rising.above the main_rowf«

line.

The steep pitched gable roof is hipped at the
ends with central gables breaking the reocfline at the
end of each wing. At the back, each wing has an
offset gable and a _double brick chimney. with applicd
géble trim. The gables have décorative barge-boards
and are toppcd with large wooden finials and pendant =
which are repeated to mark the edges of the bay=. A
tall lantern rises from the central part of the main

roof.

Stone steps rise between low stone walls to
a platform at the front door. The low doorway arch
has heavy voussoirs and a large projecting keystonc.
The round—heagsd door is a replacement. Narrow
casenment windgagtflank the door and are identical
Po the @hree in the second storey of the tower, all
with f£lat arched heads. In the third storey the

openings are narrow slits.

The large French windows in the bays have
louvered shutters, rest on the string course and
have flat arched heads with heavy keystones. Thesc

windows each have a circular pattern in the top light.
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(48) MCINTOSH CASTLE -~ 14 Sydenham Street (cont'd)

which repeats the shape at the ends of the barge-
boards. The casements in the gables have triangular
heads. Wide-basement windows are set under flat

arches.

At the back, the square two-storey tower has
a door at street level and a wide double casement
" to the east.. This tower has corbels at the second
storey level and a narrow string course serves as
the sills for the wide window embrasures on three
sides.. A second string course marks the botteom of
the battlements. The kitchen extension is one-storey,

has a side door and irregular fenestration.

"(49) HOCHELAGA APARTMENTS - 24 -Sydepham Street

Signifinance;' An‘éXéellehﬁﬂéfampié“6f“léﬁé'

Victorian architecture with elaborate ornamen-
tation. This building is an intcecresting contrast
to the Castle on one side and Clyde Terrace on

e

the other.

This three-storey red brick building with
elaborate wood and brick decoration is set behind
a limestone wall topped by a decorative iron railing
and the gateway is flanked by cast iron light
standards. The house rests on a high limestone
base, the corners including the chimney edges,
have brick quoins and all the eaves are heavily

bracketed. The front facade, asymmetrical yet
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(49) HOCHELAGA APARTMENTS - 24 Sydenham Street (cont'd)

balanced, has a central square tower, a heavy bay
window to the north and to the south a wide wooden

- verandah which continues around the south side of
the house. Two full length windows oped onto the
verandah and the bay window has Corinthian columns
supporting an elaborate moulding. The second storey
has symmetrical fenestration; a pair of gothic
windows on either side of the tower are placed
under large hipped roof gables cut into the high

mansard roof.

The doorway, located in thevtower, is avdoublem
leafed door with glazing and panels aod is recessed
in a receding arch with avlimestone keystone. " The
entranceway is decorated by wooden pllastcrs and-

a lintel supported by a- palr of - elaborate wooden
brackets. In the south side of the tower a doorway,
with a rounded arch light, opens onto the verandah.
Above the main entrénce is. a, full length double
'casement w1ndow. ~The square Hower rlsesfabove Lhe
second storey to a wide wooden mouldlng and brackets

which support a roof with hipped corners. At the

third storey level, the tower becomes octagonal
"with a broad band of leaded glass casement windows
around it. Above this 1eveirthe steeply pitched
octagonal roof, broken on four 51des by sma]l gable
roof dormers, rises to a. Small flat t0p decorafed
by iron filigree and supported~by a wlde wooden

moulding.

The south facade. has fenestratlon llke the e
southern half of the front, with the addltLon of
two small dormers ‘with leaded casements and 1ow

pitched hipped roofs‘set at the third storey level.

The northern facade, now almost completely
hidden by other buildings, has, at the front, a
recent addltlon of a one-storey sunporch ‘built into
the corner made by the shallow éxtension on the
north side. At the second storey, a front corner
window is recessed and has a Corinthian column at.

the centre to support the corner. An elaborately
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(49)

(50)

HOCHELAGA APARTMENTS - 24 Sydenham Street (cont'd)

pierced barge-board frames the mansard roofline
at the end wall of the side extension. At the
third floor level are two dormers with double
casements with leaded glass and shallow hipped
foofs set in the mansard roof. There are three

decorative brick chimneys.

The rear wing of the building appeérs to have
been designed almost as a separate unit, bearing
little relation to the house proper. A small red
brick section with shed roof is attached to the
house. Back of this is a long two-storey stuccoed
section with a gabled roof, randomly placed openings

and dormers with shed roofs. ,

‘CLYDE TERRAGE -~ 30-36 Sydenham Street’

Significance: A range of brick buildings was built
here by Mr. Tossell, a contractor, for Mr. Thomas
Hendry, a wholesalgrgrocer. This was quality row
housing in‘én area of lérge and expensive single

family dwellings.,

This two-storey row is constructed of red
brick in common bond and rests on a random coursed
rubble limestone basement finighed with a hammer-
dressed string course. There are four flat arched
windows in the basemeﬁt of the Sydenham Street

facade. The building has a low pitched gable roof

Page
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(50)

(51)

" and small ‘chimmeys. 0

CLYDE TERRACE - 30-36 Sydenham Street (cont'd)

with a hipped gable at the Earl Street end. A
narrow projection and the remains of a parapet
indicate the fire wall which divides the building

in two.

The sections are symmetrical, each five bays
wide with a central elliptical arched carriage-way,
now closed by wooden gates. On either side of the
carriage-way, steps lead to doorways which are inset,
with panelled reveals and have pléin transom lights.
The doors are flanked by windows with flat arches,
ashlar sills and wood surrounds. Only the Earl Street
corner has the origiﬁal_six on six glazing and
louvered shutters. In the second storey, the windows

are directly above each main floor opening.

The end walls are blank except for small

ventiléting openings with louvered shutters under

the roof ridge. Chimneys rise from each end-.

The rear facade has symmetrically patterned
fenestration with windows at three levels. ZDOofs
on.either side of the carriage~way open onto an
enclosed yard. These are visible only on the
Earl Street half of the terrace as the othef half
has two rear wings, both two~storey brick with
gable roofs. The extension to the southwest is

the 16nger one and both have irregular fenestration

66 MAIN STREET
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(51

o e

66 MAIN STREET (cont'd)

Significance: This dignified residence is one

of the few large;buildings in this area.
Originally, there must have been a reasonably
gracious gardén,area sugrouhding the house but,

at present, if is hemmed in by post-second world
war housing, a complicated intersection of five
streets and a great deal of wiring. None the‘less,
it is stlll 1mposlng because of its size, symmetry

and detailing. ‘i
_~;’; £
This is aAtwd-storey regularly coursed lime~
stone residence:of centre hall plan with a two-storey
kitchen wing. The central doorway is obscured by
a later porch but otherw1se remains unchanged. The
door 1tself 1s a six panel Georglan door “with rounded
arched 81de llghts and an elllptlcal fan—]lght with
a delicate design of intersecting ogee arch forms.

rcheuv

pattern are carrlcd through to the sécond storey
window above. - Here the double casement has a fixed
rounded arch top with voussoirs. Four flat-headed
Venetian windows are symmetrically placed on either
side of the central portion. On the mgin~facade3
the eaves with their pattern of dentils on the
fascia board are broken by the centrally placed
pediment and the symmetry of the main section of the & -
building is. emphasized by a pair of limestone

chimneys, one at each end of the ridge pole.

The pattwrn of dentlls As - cwrrled to 1he gables
and-eaves returns on the sides of the building
where originally there were four Symmetrically

placed windows - two in each storey. Alterations and

additional.opeﬁings have been made here. The

kitchen wing appears to have been originally a

storey and a half w1th a gable roof A sccond

storey has been added and alteratlonq mado to -

the original stonework. The kitchen chimney,

" which matches those of the house proper, remains

although it is in need of repair.

Page 109.
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(52) CRIMEA TERRACE - 198, 200 and 202 Queen Street

Significance: Sheriff Corbett had these three

dwellings built adjeining his large, brick double
house as rental properties and named them Crimca
Terrace. - Although these buildings are similar
in style, size and construction, the addition of
wide dormers has detracted ffom_the symmetry of

the terrace. . ) :
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(52)

(53}

CRIMEA TERRACE - 198, 200 and 202 Queen Street (cont'd)

These three two and one—halfrstorey dwellings.
joined at the side wélls are faced with limestone
and have brick sides and back. They are set on
a high basement and have matching semicircular
arched entryways. Each unit has a.fan—light above
the inset door and a wide window beside the door -
with two windows in the second storey. The exposed
side wall to the west has two openings in each of
the second and third storeys; one is now a doorway
to a fire escape. The rear has irregular fenestration

and various additions.

The gabled roof is obscured by dormers of

_various sizes. Chimneys rise from each dividing

wall which.forms a parapet.

"CORBETT'S HOUSE ~ 196 Queen Street

Significance: gheriff Thomas A.:Corbett, who

owned four lots on Queen Sﬁreéﬁ’neafﬁ§§aehham;”

Commissionqg William Coverdale to build this

handsome, double house. oo

This large, two-storey douﬁle-house is
constructed of Yellow brick in én English bond,
it has beén painted-light grey. Ashlar‘quoins
'decorate all corners except the southwest side.
The house rests on a high, ‘squared rubble basemecqt..
Originally, the roof was hipped with a broad over-

hang and brick chimneys on the north and south
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(53)

Hdlrectly abov the’ entrance. ‘To its left, is a

CORBETT'S HOUSE - 196 Queen Street (cont'd)

slopes; however, numerous dormer additions have

altered its shape.

The Queen Street facade contains one of the

main entrances as well as various window openings.

The doorway is located centrally on the ground floor

with a fan-light under the elliptical head of
upended bricks. The single-leaf door with side lights,

‘now boarded up, rests on an ashlar sill. Over the

‘door and extending along the west half of the facade,

is a modern, wooden porch. This entranceway has

two large windows on either side. Each has a slight
elliptical head of upended bricks and rests on an
ashlar sill, as do all the other windew openings

in the house. These large windows have:a central
double-hung scction with a six on six glazing pattern,
flanked by two narrow double-hung windows. On the
right siderof the door is ome small rectangular
window. In the second floor, a rectangular double-

hung w1ndow with a 51x on six g]az:ng pattern is

small w;ndow and above each of the large windows

are windows identical to them. The basement level
of this facade has two sunken openings, one bencath
each large window. They have been eﬁlarged to serve
as doors to the basement apartments, but were
probably simple basement windows in the original

house.

The Sydenham Street facade is very similar to
that on Queen Street, wlth an 1dentlcal door pla(ed
sllghtly off—centre., It 1s flanked by two Flench
w1ndows Whlch have glaaed transoms and rebt on "’

ashlar s1lls. A wooden platform w1th a lattice-work

“base spans these’ openlngs “and . marks on the facade
- indicate the”™ shape(of the porch‘roof,,now removed.

~0n the segqndﬁﬁlogr‘Levélv aboﬁeueach of. the ground

floor openings, are thrée large, rectaﬁguiarfﬁbuﬁlew'“

whuhg windows with a six on six glazing pattérn.

A one-storey, sloped roof, brick extension in. a
common bond, on the south side of the building
covers the central section. On the east side of

this extension are a window and a door, and one small
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REASONS FOR DESIGNATION (cont'd)

(53) CORBETT'S HOUSE - 196 Queen Street (cont'd)

window on the back. The rear of the main section,
to the south, has been greatly altered and has an
irregular pattern of fenestration and a number of

fire escapes and doors.

The west side of the building is directly joined

to the next house.

(54) ELIZABETH COTTAGE ~ 251 Brock Street

e e




SCHEDULE "A" TO BY-LAW NO. 8892 A Page 114.

'~ REASONS FOR DESIGNATION (cont'd)

(54)

_the style of the orlglnal struct

ELTZABETH COTTAGE - 251 Brock Street (cont'd)

Significance: This house, of which only the
eastern section is original, is said to have
bgen designed after the aréhitect‘s family home
in Sherborne, Dorset, England. His daughter

Elizabeth and her husband, Dr. Fyfe Fowler were

the second occupants of the house. They had five
children, none of whom married. At the passing

in 1954 of Louisa Fowler, the only remaining member
of the family, the house was converted into a
residence for elderly ladies, as had been stipuluated
in her will. It was also requested that the home

be called "Elizabeth Cottage" after her mother.

The residence, which was opened in 1955, is furnished

with the belongings left by the Fowler family.

Ellzabeth Cottage is a dellghtful example of

the romantlclqm of a Regency Gothlc style. - Originall, .

the main section of the house on the east was Jjoined

by a high stone wall to a carriage house and établc

on the west. These were both demolished to make way

“for a smaller house which was adapted in deqign Lo

e and gvcntual@‘

301ned to 1t. nght gfe{;stucco -ch; the or1pxna3
red brick building. There is a basic symmetry to
the overall U.~shaped design but numerous additions
have been made fo the building. The use of Gothic

motlfs along the eaves and on the WlndOWb and doors,

'H;éSpec1ally arross the main ad i es thp addttlﬂnw

variety.-
randomly placed on the roof which slopes towayrds the

back of the house and out of sight from the front.

. The main facade, w1th a view towards Brock \tscctr

has been -given the most attentlon.. It is dJV]dtl

into-three sections with two gabled and projecting

wings on the east and west sides and a section
with a smaller gable in the centre. All of the
gables are decorated by delicately designed barg: -

boards.
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(54) ELIZABETH COTTAGE - 251 Brock Street . (cont'd)

The eastern section is the original part of
the building. A porch with open-work sham buttresses
serving as posts covers the lower portion. Opening 7
onto this are two Frenoh'windows witﬁ cusped’mullioos
decorating the uppef part of -the rectangulaf:windows
and quatrefoils decorating the'lower panels. An
oriel windoﬁ is set in a parallel recession of the
second otorey wall. Cusped muilions are also used
on these, K small casement windows.  Above the glazed
portion are a series of six quatrefoil panels, while
below it is a sklrt of cusped decorations. 0On either
side of thls are tw0 long rectangular W1ndoWs with
the same cusped mullions in the glazed portlon. They
" are surmounted by a square—headed mouldlng. The
false gable on the roof of this. sectlon is typ:cal of

'athe«Goph1c€Rev1val style)T Wooden plnnacles docoxate

thex and corners o is gable. Attached to thﬁlwﬁ

rlght side of this eastern section is a two- %torry

addition. The lower portion is supported by two

stepped bﬁttresses between which is é French window -
.Asurmounted by a label._ Sépérafing thé two storeys

are seven quatref01ls.vAfﬁé”goooﬁdhéﬁoré§”ié a more
_modern addition which serves’ as a sunroom. To unite

it with the original section of the house, barge-boards

of the same design as those on the gablp decorate the

eaves.

u'sqéfﬁéfhﬁihfféétufé5b?’%ﬁé?oéntﬂalﬁfecessgdﬂ;,ww;am;
section of'the house is the shali géBIe in_ the

. roof with a pendant cut~out dropping from its apex.
The rectangular window below it is modern and
double—hung. Beneath this is a bay w1ndow with

21g—zag mouldlng and t f01l cut outs trlman"

the roofline. Cuspedimulllons agalnjdecoratc the
rectan%ular casements. To the right of this bay
window Is a one-storey flat-roofed rectangular

block containing a pointed arch door surmounted

by a hood moulding. MThe roofline is decorated by

a row of quatref011 panels and small rectangulal
depressions that resemble dentlls.' On the left
side of the bay window is another pointed arch

door. This,.the main entrance, is sufmounted by

a hood moulding and features Y- tracery 1n its upper

panel. In the wall above this, is a rose window.



SCHEDULE "A" TO BY-LAW NO. 8892 - Page 116.

REASONS FOR DESIGNATION (cont'd)

(54)

ils a double-hung w1ndowlw1th cquedvmulllon p

ELIZABETH COTTAGE - 251 Brock Street (cont'd)

The west section of this facade also has a
pendant cut-out dropping from the apex of .its gable
and finials on either side of the roof slope at the
base. The ground floor has a full length bay window
with a crenelated roof. On each of the three siies
is a window with a pointed arch surmounted by a
hood moulding which is terminated by a decorative
label stop. Above this bay window in the second
storey are two ogee arched windows sharing a common

hood moulding and sill.

The Clergy Street side of the house has a
small gable along the roof edge which is trimmed

by barge~boards and a pendant decoration. 1t

contains one window. Below it on the ground flow:

one-storey, flat-roofed addltlon has been made to
this side.  Gothic arch motifs and trefoils border

the top of the projection. This side of the

“Tproperty 1s enclosed by -a cast Bils ile) s 2N fence whi.ch-

- termlnateo at Brock °treet in a- 1arge ‘'stone corn:ar

post which is decorated on four 31des by pointed

arches.

The rear and east side.walls.of the house arc

plain with modern windows and door openings. Under

/

the east séction of the‘ﬁdugéuhOWéVer;;ﬁﬁéfﬁfﬁginaIV’“'
limestone basement is étiilﬂviSibl;.Wifh three
basement windows sunken into the ground under heads

of upended rectangular blocks.

e ’_,—‘.,\;fm

o



N

SCHEDULE "A'" TO BY-LAW NO. 8892 Page 117.

REASONS FOR DESIGNATION (cont'd)

(55)

., was. advertised for rent -as_a handsome three stor

‘residence. with cut stana front. :It<was a. doublo

HORSEY STONE - 247-249 Brock Street

Significance: 1In 1843 Edward Horsey's stone house

v

terraced residence with stone stables and coach

house and was set in the best part of Brock Street.

Originally, it was a double residence whose
occupanﬁs shared a central carriage-way. Later,

it became a girls' private school and then' a hal:-

T5Wéf'h0u§é3for patlents from the- Klngston Psych1at11

”Hospitél. It is at the time of'wrltlng vacant. In

the quality of its design, this building is the

finest example of terrace housing in Kingston.

This large three-storey structure has a ga
roof which is framed by parapets and a pair of brick”
chimneys at each end. The building rests on a

bevelled ashlar base. Its front facade is constructpd

"of dressed ashlar with a yeilowish tinge. It is an

unusual stone for Kingston and is said to have come
from thg old Fort Henry when 1t was: rebullt, The
particulhr:boloufsls duée. to the iron depo»wtb to

the east of the Cataraqui River, where it was originally
gquarried. Tﬁe quoins of the main facade are in Kingston
limestone and are raised and bevelled, while the
remainder of the building is constructed of rubblc

limestone.
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(55) HORSEY STONE - 247-249 Brock Street (cont'd)

The Brock Street facade is seven bays wide with
a central carriage-way flanked by a pair of entrances.
These three openings have rounded arches. The
carriage~way has beeﬁ filled in with a wooden, gothic-
like window and door. The recessed entrances arec
obscured by storm doors. The panelled reveals and
the elliptical fan-light do remain although there
are no glazing bars in the latter. The double-lecaf

doors have glazing inserted in the upper sections.

The windows of the first and second floors have

a six on six glazing pattern, while those of the
third storey, being smaller, have a three on three.
The windows all retain their original louvered
shutters. Both side walls of the house are blank
except for a 51ngle ground 1evel w1ndow on the

‘q_Western end.

The rear facade of the building is obscured
by numerous additions constructed at various times.
It is still possible however, to discern the

»original\window*patternat The openlngs 1n‘the lower

floor were essentially the. same as the f1ont —A.M&Y&AJ-
four windows, two entrances and a carriage-way.

The carriage-way has been bricked in. On the sccond
floor there is a central window above the carriage-
way flanked by a pair of landing windows which are

at a lower.level.  There are two additional windows
on_ either. side as well. The thifd floor retains

the same window pattern as the front. The windowé

retain their original glazing and have no shutters.
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(56) 110-112 RIDEAU STREET

Significance: This house was built for Lieutenant.—
~Colomnel Donald ‘Macphérson and was ecoupied-Lfrom '
1835 to 1839 by John A. Macdonald, his parents . and

two sisters.

This double, two-storey .stone house is
constructed of rough limestone in a regular course.
The front, in recent years, has been covered with

. stucco. Tt has a gable roof with a stone chimncy

‘set in at each end of the ridge. The building is
four bays wide with doorways in the second and third
bays. Steps to a cement platform lead to the plain
inset doors with transom lights. All tﬁe windows
are square-headed; have wood enframements. and the
vfour upper windows régain the original six on siXx
glazing pattern. Thé;e are two small windows in the

basement storey.

The north side is obscured by an adjoining
wooden house. The south side has a. single window
toward the back of the second storey. The rear is

partly obscured by an addition.
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(57) WELLINGTON STREET BREWERY -~ 308 Wellington Street

Significance: John Darley, the proprietor of

Freeman'!s Tavern, was the first owner of the

Brewery. It changed hands in 1811 and became

Robins! Brewery' and again in 1826 when Philip Wen:z
bought it and added to it in 1857. Jacob Bajus
purchased it in 1861.

The Wellington Street Brewery consists of
three distinct sections which are joined together
and have been built at various times, . The earlicst
section is a long rubble limestone building with a
gable roof, the end facing Wellington Street.
Directly under the gable is a small, round window
and under this, three small, symmetrically placed
windows. 1In the basement and first floor, there
are two windows to each floor, all in the two bays
to the north. The length qﬁ the building which
faces Ridéau Térrace.is puﬁcﬁuated by numerous
door and window openings. The easterly section
has a doorway, a single window to the side and a
pair above. To the west, is a double doorway with
ééé@éﬁféiféféh;uWhibh'A£bééf§>ﬁﬁuhéVé:Béeﬁ,used-as
part of the brewery operation. A large double
casement window is above this. Further to the west
and up the slope there is a vertical row of three
small windows and then a large double door opening
with a window above. In the most westerly portion

of this facade is a long, narrow window opening
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(57)

WELLINGTON STREET BREWERY - 308 Wellington Street (cont'd)

and above this, what appears to have been a loading
bay. The roof is raised as a gable dormer with a

single, small window.

The middle section of the brewery appears to
have been the latest addition. It is of rubkle
limestone on the Wellington Street facade and brick
elsewhere. TIts shed roof slopes towards the struoct.
A pair of double casement windows with segmental

arch are in each of the three storeys.

The tallest portion of the building is of
rubble limestone on the Wellington Strect side and
has a gable roof facing north, which is at right
angles to the other sections. There are a pair of
windows at ground level, a pair on the next fleoor and
then a row of iron stars which refer to 'Twelve Star
Lager!, a beer which was brewed. there at one timo.
Under the eaves is a large window flanked by a pair
of oval decorative openings with smooth ashlar
surrounds contaihing the kegs indicating the funition
of the building. The northern facade of this section
is set on a deep baserf limestone. It is constructaed
mainly of brick with ashlar quoins and has two
randomly placed openings Whth 1nd1cate Lha1 Lhc;;
may have been some exterior flre escape or 1nad]ng o

facilities.

The westerly facade of the brewery has openings
and star pétterns identical to the easterly and i=

of stone. The eaves are broken by a vertical esxtension

i of the llmestone and a gable dormer for loading

purposes. This sectlon is topped by a broad shallow
brick chimney while the lower sections have two tall

brick chimneys. The northwest corner is a square
_ . am

wing attached to the original long, gabled secticn.

~ It is: of -rubble: limestone, w1th quo1ned corners le

a hipped roof. Some metal shacking fills in Lhe

area created by the two sections of the structurs

The westerly end of the original section ha-
a gable and five randomly placed openings, one of

these being in the wing at the back.
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(57) WELLINGTON STREET BREWERY - 308 Wellington Street (cont'd)

The building is presently used for residential,

industrial and storage facilities.

(58) RIDEAU TERRACE - 2-8 Rideau Street

e A

# “ o éé

-

3
%ﬁ il{a 4 LT H i

"Significance: These buildings were puilt as
workmen's cottages, in connection with the
Brewery, and it is likely that they were built

before 1826.

Tﬁié tefra;éufgwﬁéﬁnéiéés.ofrfﬁé-dbﬁglé>
cottages side by side. One has been covered with
a vertical wood siding, while the other retains
its originai limestone exterior. The cottage to
the east has a central, double entranceway with
a pair_of pila§ters_tp each_door and a single

-7 lintel above.’vThe tfansom lighﬁ'ié‘recpangular
with vértical panes. Té either side of the
entranceway is a double casement topped by a
lintel. At the front, the gable roof which is
topped. by a chimney has been_.altered by abpﬁir
of double dormers with a sloping roof. At’the
eaéterly end, under the gable, are four windows.
Here, because of the slope of the land, the
basement is deep. To the rear, a small porch
has been added to one side and the roof has been

raised by a long dormer.
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REASONS FOR DESIGNATION (cont'd)

(58) RIDEAU TERRACE - 2-8 Rideau Street (cont'd)

The cottage to the west is of regularly coursed
limestone. TIts doorways are at either end, while
the double~hung sash windows are in the central
portion of the building. The eaves are supported
by a pair of brackets on a moulded fascia beoard.

The roof has a chimney:an& a pair of smgll original
dormers. Under the gable at the westerly end, there
is a single window to each storey. Here the basement
level is almost non-existent Because the land slopes
to the east. A single porch has been added to one
side of the rear of this building and the original

pair of dormers has been retained.

(59) 1 RIDEAU STREET and

(60) 87-89 BARRACK STREET

Significance: Built for David Benson in 1826,

this was the Benson family home for over fifty
years. 1Its size and shape is governed by the

land-available on this, then important, corner.

Though it is in the same material as the adjoining
building, it exhibits its difference in the main
floor windows and in the decorative stone surround
to the original door at the corner.

This long, narrow two-storey house is four
bays wide and one bay deep. A fire wall separatcs
it from the adjoining double house on Barrack Strceet.

It is constructed of hammer~dressed stone with smooth
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(59) 1 RIDEAU STREET and

(60) 87-89 BARRACK STREET (cont'd)

'ashlar biocks set flush with the wall, marking what
was once a.doorway. The present door is. off-centre
in the Rideau Street side. The two main floor
windows are wider than the five in the second storey

and all are flat arched with plain ashlar lugsills.

The roof is hipped on the south side and gabled
with a parapeted end wall on the north where a low
limestone chimney rises at the ridge. A brick

extension covers this side of the building.

87 -~ 89 Barrack Street

Sighificance: The central unit in this block of stone
buildings is typical of the simple, unadorned dwellings
erected in the early years of the 19th century in,
what was then, a fashionable residential street. The

" interior was ‘sericusly danaged by Fire in"18 54. Hall
of this building was owned by the Jamés.Duff %amily

for many years.

This double house is constructed of rough
.-ashlar_in regular course with smooth ashlar
window sills. It is two low storeys set on a °
string course and is six bays wide wifh doors in
the first and fourth bays, inset with transoms.
All openings have flat arches of small rectangular
blocks. The six double~hung windows in the second

storey have the criginal six on six glazing pattcrn. -

H‘E The gable roof haé 'Apar'ape;t:s .mar';AkiziAlé t»htek énd
wallsvagainst the adjoining buildings. Three
limestone chimneys, one centre and one at each end

of the roof ridge, mark the divisions of the buildings

in this block. -

i



1

SCHEDULE "A" TO BY-LAW NO. 8892 Pageflzg.

REASONS FOR DESIGNATION (cont'd) i

(61)

“John's brother;,Drs James Medgher,

85 BARRACK STREET

Significance: An.importapt unit in this block
of early stone houses, number 85 is half of a
building erected here for John Meagher, a produce
merchant. The Meaghers had owned the property
since 1835 and the house built then was damagad

by fire in 1845 and destroyed late in 1854.

~The- stone buildingAwas,erectedﬂthe;next~yeaq,andv‘..

occupied the.
Wellington Street half. The Meaghérs sold the
property to the Anglins who still own it.

This large wa and one-half storéy dwelling’
is}constructediof,smpoth,éshlér_pn thé_front with
random course rubble stone on the now exposed side.
There are réised quoins on only one corner, the west,
indicating this is half of a once double house. The.

high basement is topped by a wide string course,

~ which is cut to arch over the two basement window:s.

The gable roof with a central dormer on the
fronqyslope, has parapeted end walls which rise
from stone ééfbclé/zg’large brick chimneys. The
building is three bays wide with an elliptical arched

:The door .is.inset with

déebly fielded pahels on the reveals, the sidc¢ frame
and the double~lecaf door. The fan-light and side
lights retain their original glazing pattern. The
rectangular, double~hung windows have flat arches
made of upended long and narrow blocks. No original

glazing remains.
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(61) 85 BARRACK STREET (cont'd)

At the now exposed cast side a one~storey porch,
added about 1860, is surmounted by a smaller balconye.
The grouped wooden pillars of the porch'have TIonic
capitals and are joined by a balustrade. The hipped
roof of the porch is supported by a moulded fascia

with dentils and over the steps a pediment has inset

wood tracery. The smaller balcony, enclosed by
glass, has filled panels between the pilasters
which support é gable roof. There arec three
visible openings in this facade; two doors witih
transoms at the main floor level and one small

window at the third floor.

To the west, the side wall rises above the

wall of the adjoining house.

At the baﬁk, two windows in each of the {irst
and second storeys have the original six on six
glazing pattern. Halfzof‘the.back,is obscured by
a tﬁd:stoﬁey flat roofed;fstuccgiexﬁeﬁsidﬁ, arnigled
from the maiﬁ house and joining a gable rceofed
stone outbuilding. The extension has irregular

fenestration, including a shed roofed bay window.

(62) ST. PAUL'S ANGLICAN CHURCH - Queen Street at Montreal Street
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(62) ST. PAUL'S ANGLICAN CHURCH — Queen Street at Montreal Street (cont'd)

Significances St. Paul's Church was built in
memory of Reverend Robert Cartwright, who hasi
been the curate of St. George's parish for

thirteen years., The building was financed by
public subscription and by gifts from officer=

and soldiers in the garrison.

In 1854, embers from a fire across the street
blew onto the roof which burned and caused
extensive damage, but the Church was rebuilt
immediately with the addition of a chancel.
Additions to the back of the Church for a Sunday
School were made in 1872 and 1970.

St. Paul's gravéyard was the first, and for many
years the only, burial ground in Kingston. The
earliest registered plot dates back to 1785. 1In
the centre of the yard and enclosed by an iron
fence is the family monument. of the Cartwrights.
Also buried in this cemetery are members of the
Stuart family, Sir Richard Bonnycastle, Molly Brant

and many others.

St. Paul's Church is constructed of rubble
limestone in ‘a regill4t courde and Fests on a
bevelled ashlar base three blocks high. The nave
and its side aisles form a rectangle and are covoered
with a gambrel roof. The steeper pitch is over
the nave with a more gradual slope over the aisles.
Projecting from the front of the nave is a square
tower; dits roof in a pyramidal shape is slightly

-taller ﬁhan thewroﬁf’riﬂée bf,phéihéve. At the rear,
the smaller rectangular chancel, an extensionlof
the nave, has the same roof slope as the nave, aboui

half the height. -

fﬁe QueéhAStreéf facade, in front of which
runs a small iron fence, is symmetrical. TIts main-
feature is the square tower which projects from
the centre, with each of the exposed corners
supported by stepped angle buttresses. The threc
set-backs on the buttresses are accented by ashlar.
Pointed arch motifs are used on the lower step
with sloping ledges on the two upper levels. .In

the front, four steps lead to the main doorway
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(62) ST. PAUL'S ANGLICAN CHURCH - Queen Street at Montreal Streét (cont'd) -

whose pointed arch recedes iﬁ four to form a

compound arch. The ashlar door surround which

fills the whole space between the buttresses, rises
to a peak above the arches. The date-sﬁone of the
Church is set in this peak. Decorating the tympanum
above the double-leaf,: square-headed door is a

glazed trefoil. Between the two levels on the

front of the tower is ﬁ bevelled ashlar string course
and above it are two recessed lancet windows
separated by a pilaster with its ashlar plinth
resting on the string course. .The side walls of

the tower are blank and are set back at three levels.
One pilaster on an ashlar plinth decorates the centre
portion above the second set-back. The tower
domlnates this Queen Street facade s0 thdt the front
~AWal_'Ls on elther 51de of 1t, w1th thelr r1s1ng ronf
slope create a buttress—llke effect. ‘Each side

is divided by strlng courses and contains a pointod
arched doorway,'above which a bevellcd ashlar

pFOJeoflon rlscs to a peak bredkLng 1nto fh( uppRer

string course. Immedlately above eazh duor isa T

recessed lancet window.

Both sides of the church nave, which run
parallel to Montreal Street, are identical.
All four corners are supported by stépped angle
__Abuttresses WLth four stepped buttresses suppﬂrtjz
fthe sidé¢ walls at regular intervals. The corner
buttresses are wider and heavier than the middlc
ones and give strength to these important porticns
of the building. Between each of the four wall
: buttresseswand'abbve&theRbevelledwashlarmstring
course are five large pdinted arched windows with
Y-tracery and quatrefoils in the glazing. Thesv
windows, with the upward thrust of the buttresscs,

give a strong vertical~effect to the side walls.

Extending from the back wall of ﬁhe Church
is a short and narrow chancel. Three lancet windows
with ashlar surrounds, the middle one the tallest,
light the interior from the upper back wall.
Beneath them is an ogee arch containing a tombstone.

Stepped angle buttresses support each exposed
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(62) ST. PAUL'S ANGLICAN CHURCH - Queen Street at Montreal Street (cont'd)

‘corner of this &h@ﬁcel wall. Later additions are

v *

less symmetri:ca\ifi On the east side of the chancel

is a small s]oped ‘roof addition shorter than the

chancel. It has a’ stepped angle buttress supporting
its one e\posedlcorner and two lancet windows on
its side wall. TIn the rear wall is a pointed arc¢h

door.

The new Sunday School building, which can
be seen from Montreal Street, is a low one—staréy
structure with a flat roof and is partially
attached to the rear wall of the Church. It is
of Gothic derivation and being constructed of

limestone blends with the limestone Church.

A rubble stone wall with a metal;cbping
encloses the churchyard on the Montreal Strect

side.

. (63) 136 PRINCESS STREET ~ Southeast Corner of Princess and Bagot Streets

Significance:“ Built in 1872 for Macnee and Minncs,

a wholesale dry goods firnm, this large building
dominates the Bagot streetscape and is a focal
point at an imporfant intersection. With the Mowai.

round corner building and the limestonc building
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(63) 136 PRINCESS STREET - Southeast Cornmer of Princess & Bagot Streets (cont'd)

on the southwest corner, built 1842, this building
illustrates the development of Kingston's commercial
structures, and like most other old buildings on
Princess Street, the architectural and historical

significance can be seen only in the upper storeys-

This three-storey limestone building occupies
a substantial part of a large city block. Its
main facade is on Princess Street and it is this
facade therefore, that is given the most elaborate
treatmenf. It is seven bays wide and the ground
floor has been altered beyond recognition. The
second and third storeys have alternating pilasters=
in the Corinthian order and large ‘double-~hung
windows with\a moulded surround. The glazing is
at present, two on two. Resting on the pilasters
is an entablature with a cornice decorated by dentils.
Above this is a parépet wall made more elaborate
by an alternating pattern of square bldcks with a
pointed capping and recessed panel which follow the
‘t'liﬁe of the pilasters and long rectangular blocks
with a fielded panel, some with decorative central
motif, others plain. The architectural detailing
‘of the Princeds. Street facade is-ecarried. over into
the first bay of the twelve bay Bagot Street favade.
Whereas the Princesé Street facade is of smooth ’
ashlar, the Bagotrstreet is regularly coursecd
hammer~dressed ashlar. With the exception of the
addition of simple scroll brackets under the sills
of the third storey level, the windows are identical

to those elsewhere in the building.

Intéﬁe figg% sto?éy; aifﬁdﬁgh tﬁéywindows have
been stoned in, the original sills, outlines and
keystones are remaining. In the eighth bay, the
original‘carriage;way is visible but it too, has

been stoned in.’ Abdve“this; in" the -second: and. Lhivd.
storeys is a pair of double arched windows with a
central Corinthian column in the manner of Italian
Renaissance. 1In the tenth bay on the ground floor
is a second entranceway with a moulded four-corncred
segmental arch suppérted on Corinthian columns.

The string course between the first and second storeys
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(63) 136 PRINCESS STREET - Southeast Cornmer of Princess & Bagot Streets (cont'd]

is still evident here and is probably a feature that
was obliterated on the front of the building. The

éntablature and parapet wall are carried through in
a simplified form after the first bay. A portion of

the entablature is in moulded tin.

The other walls of the building are of brick

construction.

(64) ARTILLERY PARK BARRACKS GUARD HOUSE - 119 Barrack Street

Significance: Although an 1827 map shows a
building on this lot, it seems more likely that
this is the old "Artillery Park Barracks Guard
House" builp about 1843, and referred to in
Walkem!s "Documents on Ordnance Lands and Kingston
Fortifications". The Provost Corps used it for

many years.

This rectangular twoistorey building is
constructed of rough ashlar in regular course
with quoins and sills in smooth ashlar. It
sets on a furrowed string course. The gently
sloping hip roof is. topped by a square lime-
stone chimney. Decorative stone corbels

project below the cornice.

The building is four bays wide on the
Barrack Street facade with a door and transom

in the second bay. The windows and doorway have
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(64) ARTILLERY PARK BARRACKS GUARD HOUSE - 119 Barrack Street (cont'd)

flat arched heads of upended long narrow blocks.
One ground floor window on both the Barrack Street
side and on the Bagot Streét side has been filled
in with stone blocks. On Bagot Street there werc
two openings in each storey, the ground floor
window with the stone lintel may have been altered.
The north side has no windows, the east side only

one small window.

(65) 141, 143, 145 JAMES STREET

Significancéf Here iS'aﬁ ékcéliéﬁﬁiexéﬂbié of
multiple housing on a very modest scale. It
was built in the Village of Charlesville, a tiny

suburb on the Montreal Road, which became part

Of'the”Cityfin;1850;”1Thisgbuilding;iS“unusual~*r

in that it houses three small cottages.. It

is well-proportioned in appearance. The unity
of the building as a whole has been maintained
on the James Street facade. One is much more
conscious of the single building than of three

separate. units. . AR

This low, rambling residence which houses
three separate cottages is built of irregularly
coursed limestone on the front and rubble on the
sides and rear. FEach home is a grouping of
walkway and doorway with a pair of windows to the

right. The doors themselves have been replaced
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REASONS FOR DESIGNATION (cont'd)

(65) 141, 143, 145 JAMES STREET (cont'd)

by modern doors with aluminum storms. The giazing
bars have been removed from the original windows
and now there is a glazing pattern of two on twe.
Originally, there were no openings on the side.
Two modern ones have been made in the east side.
The rear is c¢bscured by three later additions, one
to each unit. The roof is a hipped roof witih

J

three chimneys atop the ridge pole.

»(66) 18 BARRIE STREET

Significance: This house commands attention as

1t 1s on a promlnent corner overlooklng two arcaw--

of Macdonald Park. Its overall ‘physical %17r and -
scale of ornament justify its function as a pivoial
point in this landscaped area. The original house
facing King Street and built by Thomas Rogers

,uln 1830 ]S dlsgujsed undcr the later remodcl]lno

and 1905 adetlon of t Bernnnh
family.
The two-storey house is of brick, painted groey

with white wooden trim. The outline is irregular
through the use of different geomelric shapes, but
attention is primaril& focused on the Classical
Revival portico. Four tail coiumns,“Wéll executoed
in the Tonic order, are repeated on the one~stordy
verandah to the side and end. Unity is also obtaincd

by shaped mutules under the broad cornice, which forms
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(66)

18 BARRIE STREET (cont'd)

a traditional pediment over the portico. These

mutules are repeated on the verandah cornice.

Windows are grouped in different sequences and
are varied by being either rectangular-headed or
Ttalianate round-headed. However, they are unified
by emphasis on the heavy surrounds treated in a
Renaissance manner. The majority have eared upper
sections and have stone lintels, each supported by
a pair of corbels. The verandah has French window
openings. All have large panes of glass on the

street facades.

Fitting into the triangular shape of the pediment
is a semi-elliptical window with rayed glazing bars
and crowned by a keystone. The round motif is
repeated on the fan-light over the main door in the
porticbg- Tt features a more-elaborate glazing bar

design, derived from the neo-classic school. ‘The

:side lights are plain. The portico area is defined

by a fluted pilaster to each side.

stone strin

rod- by &

" Unity is alsc ‘achi
which-iéh;iéigié, ekceﬁt where the verandah roof is
attached. Limestone forms the basement level and
is also used as pieps to support the verandah columns.
A»single stone gate~post of square section, carved

and moulded, remains on the King Street side.

The roof is metélmwith bgtﬁéﬂé, ékéeptnfofﬁ%h;
shingled verandah roof, and has two brick chimneys,

dormers and a skylight.

e wedt “side of b

of round and rectangular shapes. There is an Ionic

porch on the north side.

In conclusion, the house strikingly pulls together
into the predominant mood of Classical Revival, even
though a surprising amount of variety and number of

styles are employed.

“Course B
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(67) SUNNYSIDE - Northeast Corner of Union and Macdonnell Streets

Significance: This house, in the Regency style,

was built in 1847 for Kingston'!'s most important

Mayor, "John Counter. “He Tivéd in Otterburn on
the opposite side of Union Street, until his ncw

home was ready. It was called South Roode Coﬂtaﬁe

after his wife's maiden name, Hannah .Roode, bul

“His tow Lnown as %unnys¢dp,‘aﬂchildmén*sAhomh;"“

Counter'!'s home was one o:‘: the large country
estates, such as Hillcroft and Lakeview, in this
rural area. It fortunately retains some of the
spacious_landscaped grounds which once accompanded

it.

The use of stucco w1th pa' ﬁgd.ﬁoodeﬁ trim
is typical of the Regency style. It aiso has
the usual hipped roof which still retains batten
and metal roofing, popular in‘the iOth century .
The windows have the off-centre glazing patlicro,
and the first storey ones are typically French
windows opening onto a verandah.

The house is two storeys high and thr ec bays

wide. The outline of the house is unusual with

the front end corners chamfered off. The sides

are also Cut_back midway by chamfers to make the

_house nagrower at the bapk than at the iron{.:AA

small porch on the east .E.ld.e allows orltran( ¢ into
the house from the circular drive which swings in

front of a concave wall which hides the back yard
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(67) SUNNYSIDE - Northeast Corner of Union & Macdonnell Streets (cont'd)

area. The drive continues on to the coach house
which is behind and at one end of the curved wall.
The entranceway to the estate, off Union Street,
is graced by two handsome limestone piliars, each
topped by a stone ball. The spear-headed wrought
iron gates are still in place, although one of

the classical urn finials is missing.

The house facade is rather austere and topbed
by two large chimneys which parallel the roof ridge.
Solid panel shutters and paired, shaped brackets
under the wide cornice add decoration. On the east
side there is an emphasis on round-headed arches.
These are repeated on the small porch which has
three open arches which form a cross-vault on the
porch ceiling. The square supporting pillars are
relieved by a recessed panel and the railing is
decorated by divided diamonds with a fosette
applied to. them. The housé door_ is topped by a

' round-headed transom light. -~

Coming out at right angles tc this side is a
straight lined projection which is relieved by a
recessed panel. This area forms a transition

. ) between the house proper and the sweeping concave

his w; rated

fb&ffwelﬁe'receséed'nound:arc
Later additions have obscured the back of the
house and wall. Windows stuck into the blind wall

wdetract. from, its SWeeping MObion. . . a2

The céach house is a long, rectangular building
with a hipped roof and a weather vane. The half
nearest Union Strcet is in orange brick and the
other halflin red. Facing Union Strect and meeting.
the driveway are two wide doors made of beadcd

vertical boards with large hinges. The side facing

*oMacédohnell "Street s .six Bays wide-with openings

convenient for its use as a stable.
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(68) LAKEVIEW - 86 Beverley Street

Significance: Lakeview was built by John Crawford,

an “architect,as” his hoii& and, at-that “time; it

was a storey and a half cottage. hHe sold to

John Breden who commissioned William Coverdalé to
repair the severe fire damage and to increase the
cottage to two storeys. Breden sold to A.B. Cunningham
and in 1912 the Van Straubenzees bought Lakeview.

Thls JS one of the very few Klngston houseb which

.'only most of 1ts o 1i1nal yaId and

garden but also the attached "offlces" which are

little altered.

‘ _ This. square two storey house w1th attached
outbuildings is constructed of rubble llmesione-LA
a regular course. The low pitched hip roof with
wide overhang.has brick chimneys inset on the sidc

slopes and on the back.

The Beverley Street facade is three bays wide
with a central doorway containing a transom 1light
above the double-leaf door. On either side of this,
the two French windows have wooden panels at the
bottom. The second storey windows are double
césements and all the windows have the glazing
pattern peculiar to Kingston with a one-third panc
flanking the centre pane. Until recent years, the

house had a one-storey pbrch on the front and south
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(68) LAKEVIEW - 86 Beverley Street (cont'd)

side, but now has only a front railed platform and

a canopy over the door.

The south side of the house is two bays wide
with the double casement windows in the main stprey

being longer than those in the second storey.

To the north, there is a double casement
window near the front corner of the main floor and

a large window with fan-light at the level of the

inside stair landing. The kitchen wing covers

the other part of this north side. It is two
storeys, though not so high as the main house, and
the second storey may be a later addition since

it covers only part of the Wing, and although the
front is stone, the side is shingled. This wing

has two windows in the second storey and a door

i;covered by a WOOden enclosure, and,tWOA”'
.on 51x w1ndows in the flrst storey..‘The shed roof
of the partial second Storey contrasts with the

gable roof of the rest of the w1ng which extends

‘a ‘door - to“the out—

. over an open porch Teadi

buildingss & GoC e

The outbuildings, a storey and a half, constructed
of rubble stone have a gable roof with a small
chimney inset at each end. It is five bays wide
with the carriage entrance set in a wide low arch

The I

’"double casemén’

flrst one is set in a Tow arch- and is¥wider- than the;%

others, having fifteen panes in each casement, while

the other two have ten panes. 1In the 1ow upper
. storey are flve w1de low w1ndows, ‘set directly under
She
north end of the building is blank and the back has

the eaves, double casement' i%X panes each.

irregular fenestration.
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(69) OTTERBURN - 124 Centre Street . -

Significance: ' This house

try residence

L1830 cous
gardeﬁiand still retains a certain élegance due
mainly to the doorway and the wide windows on‘
either side. The varied levels of the wings add

“interest.

This is a one and one-half storey square
building of rubble stone covered with stuccoe.
There is a rectangular wing aloﬂg the north side
with a lower kitchen wing attached to the end of
Vthis. The front corners are emphasized by shallow
vertical projections. The arched entranceway with

‘side lights-and fap-light-is_ covered by a small:.

gable. The entrance paving has been recently
altered. Flanking the entranceway is a pair of

tall rectangular windows containing French doors,

side.lights and transom with vertical..olf centre

glazing. -

Windows on the side are tall and narrow and
all rest on a wooden basement course. The windows
in the wings are small casements. The hipped roof
of the main section is broken by a small ofiginul

gable over the main entranceway and by three later

" dormers.






